Wiltshire Counclil

S

AGENDA

Meeting: Southern Area Planning Committee

Place: Wylye Meeting Room, Five Rivers Health & Wellbeing Centre, Hulse
Rd, Salisbury SP1 3NR

Date: Thursday 10 November 2022
Time: 3.00 pm

Note: Due to the limited space inside the meeting room, should there be a high
number of public attendees for any specific application, we will rotate attendees
in order of application of interest. Please contact the Officer below for further
information.

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Lisa Alexander, of Democratic Services,
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line (01722) 434560 or email
lisa.alexander@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:
Clir Andrew Oliver (Chairman) Cllr Charles McGrath
Cllr Sven Hocking (Vice-Chairman) Cllr lan McLennan
Clir Trevor Carbin Clir Nabil Najjar
Clir Brian Dalton Clir Bridget Wayman
ClIr Nick Errington Clir Rich Rogers

Clir George Jeans

Substitutes:

Clir Ernie Clark ClIr Ricky Rogers
Clir Kevin Daley Clir Graham Wright
Clir Bob Jones MBE Clir Robert Yuill



http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/

Recording and Broadcasting Information

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes
within the Council.

By submitting a statement or question for an online meeting you are consenting that you
will be recorded presenting this, or this may be presented by an officer during the
meeting, and will be available on the public record. The meeting may also be recorded
by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.
Public Participation

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of
questions and statements for this meeting.

For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution.

The full constitution can be found at this link.

For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for
details

Page 2


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0

AGENDA
Part |
Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public
Apologies
To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting.
Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 7 - 16)

To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23
June 2022.

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by
the Standards Committee.

Chairman’'s Announcements
To receive any announcements through the Chair.
Public Participation

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.
Statements

Members of the public who wish to speak either in favour or against an
application or any other item on this agenda are asked to register no later than
10 minutes before the start of the meeting. If it is on the day of the meeting
registration should be done in person.

The rules on public participation in respect of planning applications are linked to
in the Council’s Planning Code of Good Practice. The Chairman will allow up to
3 speakers in favour and up to 3 speakers against an application, and up to 3
speakers on any other item on this agenda. Each speaker will be given up to 3
minutes and invited to speak immediately prior to the item being considered.

Members of the public will have had the opportunity to make representations on
the planning applications and to contact and lobby their local member and any
other members of the planning committee prior to the meeting. Lobbying once
the debate has started at the meeting is not permitted, including the circulation
of new information, written or photographic which have not been verified by
planning officers.

Questions

To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council
received in accordance with the constitution which excludes, in particular,

Page 3



questions on non-determined planning applications.

Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than
5pm on Thursday 3 November 2022, in order to be guaranteed of a written
response. In order to receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no
later than 5pm on Monday 7 November 2022. Please contact the officer named
on the front of this agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without
notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is urgent.

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website.

Planning Appeals and Updates (Pages 17 - 20)

To receive details of completed and pending appeals and other updates as
appropriate.

Planning Applications
To consider and determine planning applications in the attached schedule.

7a APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2021/09778 - Station works, Tisbury
(Pages 21 - 72)

Outline planning application for redevelopment of the Station Works site to
provide a mixed development of up to 86 dwellings, a care home of up to 40
bedspaces with associated medical facilities, new pedestrian and vehicular
access and traffic management works, a safeguarded area for any future rail
improvements, and areas of public open space.

7b APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2022/02766 - Land to the rear of
Caynton Lawns, Alderbury (Pages 73 - 92)

New dwelling with associated drive, carport/garage and garden amenity space
(as approved under planning ref 20/07065/FUL with revised access position) —
resubmission of PL/2022/02035

7c APPLICATION NUMBERSs: PL/2022/03968 & PL/2022/04157
Berrybrook Farm, Sedgehill (Pages 93 - 114)

Proposed change of use of the Long Barn to holiday accommodation, including
new fenestration, rooflight's, an extension, internal alterations and refurbishment
of a granary.

Urgent Items

Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be
taken as a matter of urgency

Part Il

Page 4



Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should be
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Wi ilishire Council

—————

Southern Area Planning Committee

MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD
ON 23 JUNE 2022 AT THE GUILDHALL, MARKET PLACE, SALISBURY,
WILTSHIRE, SP1 1JH.

Present:

Clir Sven Hocking (Vice-Chairman, standing in as Chair), Clir Sven Hocking (Vice-
Chairman, in the Chair), Clir Trevor Carbin, ClIr Brian Dalton, Clir lan McLennan,
Clir Bridget Wayman, ClIr Rich Rogers and Clir Graham Wright (Substitute)

96 Apologies

Apologies were received from:

The Chairman, Clir Andy Oliver — Vice-Chairman Cllir Sven Hocking
chaired the meeting in his absence.

Cllr George Jeans — who was substituted by Clir Graham Wright

ClIr Nick Errington

Clir Nabil Najjar

Clir Charles McGrath

97 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 1 June 2022 were presented.

Resolved:

To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes.

98 Declarations of Interest

There were none.

99 Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public.

100 Public Participation

The committee noted the rules on public participation.

Page 7



101

102
103

Planning Appeals and Updates

The committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the
agenda.

Resolved
That the appeals update be noted.
Planning Applications

APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2022/00560 - 27 The Oakbournes,
Bishopdown

Public Participation
Karen Stokes (Applicant), spoke in support of the application
Trudi Dean spoke on behalf of Laverstock & Ford PC

The Planning Officer, Tom Collins, presented the application for the single
storey front extension.

The Officer summarised an update from Laverstock & Ford parish council to
reiterate its objection.

The application was recommended for Approval with conditions, as set out in
the report attached to the agenda.

Material considerations detailed in the report included:
e Principle of development
e Scale and design, impact to character and appearance of area
e Neighbour amenity

It was noted that the dwelling was set back from the neighbouring property and
road with a mix of styles of architecture along the Streetscene. The extension
would be shielded by the side gable of the neighbouring property.

Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer,
where the position of the proposed extension was clarified in relation to the
neighbouring properties.

Members of the public as detailed above, then had the opportunity to speak on
the application.

The applicant would require disabled adaptations to her property in the future,
having the proposed extension would enable her to continue living in her home
in the ground floor rooms. The extension was of a similar size to two other
dwellings in the neighbourhood and not considered to be detrimental to the
neighbouring properties

Page 8



The parish council representative noted its objection based on the large scale to
the front of the property, the sloping nature of the site and over development of
the plot.

Local Member Clir lan McLennan spoke on the application noting the already
built large extension at the rear, the affected view of the other neighbouring
properties, amounting to a loss of amenity.

He drew attention to the covenant which applied to the estate but noted that it
was a civil matter and not a planning consideration.

Clir McLennan then moved the motion of Refusal for the reasons as stated. This
was seconded by Clir Dalton.

The Committee discussed the application, the main points included clarification
from the presentation slides on the extent of the extension in comparison to the
side wall of the neighbouring property. The support of the neighbour subject to
conditions was also noted.

After discussion, the Committee voted on the motion of Refusal. The motion
failed.

The Chairman, Cllr Hocking then moved the motion of Approval in line with
Officer recommendation, subject to the conditions set out in the report.

This was seconded by Cllr Wayman.

An amendment to add a condition restricting the hours of construction was
made by ClIr Dalton this was supported by CllIr Hocking and Wayman.

The Committee voted on the motion of Approval with the added condition to
restrict the hours of construction, as set out by the Officer.

It was,
Resolved:

That application PL/2022/00560 be Approved in line with Officer
recommendation, subject to the following conditions:

1.The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration
of three years

from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning

Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

2.The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following

approved plans:

Page 9



104

Site Location plan —no reference

Block Plan — no reference

Existing and proposed plans and elevations ref 21/1716/01 Rev B
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.

3.Materials shall be as shown on the approved plans and application form.
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and
appearance of the area.

4. No construction work (excluding the internal fitting out of the
extension) shall take place outside the hours of 08.00 —-18.00 Monday to
Friday, 0800 — 1300 on Saturday and at no time on Sundays and Bank
holidays.

REASON: In order to protect the residential amenity of the adjoining

residents.

APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2022/01048 - Land Adjacent to 2 Old Sarum
Cottages, Portway, Old Sarum, SP4 6BY

Public Participation
Caroline Everette (Agent) spoke in support of the application
Trudi Dean spoke on behalf of Laverstock & Ford PC

The Senior Planning Officer, Lynda King, drew attention to the late
correspondence circulated at the meeting, giving a summary of the content
before presenting the application for the erection of 4 terraced dwellings with
parking, amenity areas and a new access road.

There were no objections from the statutory consultees, however Ecology, had
requested an amended condition, and Highways, had requested a southern
drop kerb be included.

The application was recommended for Approval with conditions, as set out in
the report and late correspondence.

Material considerations detailed in the report included:

Principle

Highway safety

Drainage

Layout

Impact on residential amenities of adjacent commercial operation

It was noted that it was a brown field site, just outside of the urban area,
suitable for redevelopment.

The land sloped down at the rear, with a section of the site to be retained for

continued use as a coach business, with office and parking. A section of coach
parking would be removed, and the two existing dwellings would be retained.

Page 10



The proposal was of a contemporary design, in keeping with the other
development on the Old Sarum development. It was noted that the site would
not be particularly visible from the road.

There was existing approval for a development of 6 dwellings, granted in 2021.

Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the Officer,
where it was clarified that the previously granted permission for 6 dwellings was
still valid. If this application was granted, the applicant would have the option to
build either permission.

The footpath between plots 1 and 2 would allow access to the rear of the
properties.

Electric charging points were included on each of the new parking spaces as
well as on the spaces for the existing two properties.

The current application was for four 3 bed units, whereas the previously
approved was for six 4 bed units.

Members of the public as detailed above, then had the opportunity to speak on
the application, some of the main points related to the design, quality of
materials, retained employment use, protection of the amenity area, comparison
to other local mixed-use sites.

It was noted that the flooding concerns raised related to fields which were in the
ownership of a local farmer, and not part of the development site.

The Laverstock & Ford parish council representative spoke in objection, noting
flooding, access, design, and the impact of mixed use on residents.

The statement of Local Member ClIr Andy Oliver, who had given apologies, was
read by ClIr Hocking. It focused on the areas of objection which had been put
forward by Laverstock & Ford PC, which were noise, design, safety, and
flooding.

Clir Hocking then moved the motion of refusal for the reasons given above. This
was seconded by Clir Mclennan.

The Committee then discussed the application where it was noted that the
reasons for refusal had been addressed by means of the conditions.

The provision of a zebra crossing, for 4 dwellings was advised as unlikely, as it
was not within the power of the applicant to agree to.

The Committee then voted on the motion of refusal. The motion failed.

Cllr Wayman then moved the motion of approval, in line with Officer
recommendation. This was seconded by ClIr Wright.

Page 11



With no further discussion, the Committee voted on the motion of approval with
conditions.

It was,
Resolved:

That application PL/2022/01048 be Approved, subject to the following
conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans:

Proposed location and block plan — Drw. No. P20-033 02-02-003 Dated Jan
2022, received on 9th Feb 2022

Proposed Site Plan — Drw. No P21-090 02-02-004A dated Jan 2022,
received on 24th March 2022

Proposed Elevations Plot 1 — Drw. No. P21-090 02-02-001 Dated Jan 2022,
received on 9th Feb 2022

Proposed Elevations Plots 2 — 4 — Drw. No. P21-090 02-05-002 Dated Jan
2022, received on 9th Feb 2022

Proposed Bin/Bike stores — Drw. No. P21-090 02-05-003 Dated Jan 2022,
received on 9th Feb 2022

Proposed Floor Plans Plot 1 — Drw. No. P21-090 02-03-001 Dated Jan 2022,
received on 9th Feb 2022

Proposed Floor Plans Plots 2 and 3 — Drw. No. P21-090 02-03-002 Dated
Jan 2022, received on 9th Feb 2022

Proposed Floor Plans Plot 4 — Drw. No. P21-090 02-03-003 Dated Jan 2022,
received on 9th Feb 2022

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning

3) No development shall commence above slab level on site until the
exact details and samples of the materials to be used for the external
walls and roofs have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in

Page 12



an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character
and appearance of the area.

4) The dwellings hereby approved shall not be occupied until the Building
Regulations Optional requirement of maximum water use of 110 litres per
person per day has been complied with.

Reason: To avoid any adverse effects upon the integrity of the River Avon
Special Area of Conservation (SAC).

5) No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and
soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include :-

e a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply
and planting sizes and planting densities;

finished levels and contours;

means of enclosure;

car park layouts;

other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;

all hard and soft surfacing materials;

minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment,
refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc);

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in
an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the
development and the protection of existing important landscape features.

6) All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years,
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning
authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the
development and the protection of existing important landscape features.

Page 13



7) The development shall only be carried out in accordance with the
approved Drainage Documents

4288-SARU-13-001-BR-01.001-Infiltration Rate

4288-SARU-ICS-01-XX-P02 Storm Simulations

4288-SARU-ICS-01-XX- M2-C-0205-P01-S2_Exceedance Routing
4288-SARU-ICS-01-XX- M2-C-0300-P01-S2_Surface Finishes
4288-SARU-ICS-01-XX- M2-C-0100-P01-S2_Levels Design
4288-SARU-ICS-01-XX- M2-C-0200-P02-S2_Drainage Design

and the Surface Water Drainage Strategy contained within it.

REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained
without increasing flood risk to others.

8) No development shall commence within the area indicated within the
red line of

the application site (2021/01048) until:

a) A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should
include on-site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing
and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority; and

b) The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried out
in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in
an acceptable manner, to enable the recording of any matters of
archaeological interest.

9) Prior to the commencement of any works, including ground preparation
or vegetation removal, the details of the proposed biodiversity
enhancement scheme, including the number, design and locations of bat
roosts and opportunities for birds, hedgehogs and insects and hedgerow
planting specification in accordance with the ‘Ecology Report’ KP
Ecology, 1st June 2020, shall be submitted to the local authority for
approval. The scheme shall be informed by the findings of an updated
Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey (dating no more than 24 months earlier
than the scheme). The approved details shall be implemented before
occupation of the final works. This condition will be discharged once
photographic evidence of installed features has been submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority.

REASON: To provide mitigation /enhancement for biodiversity.
10) Prior to first occupation at section of footway shall be provided across
the site frontage (as per drawing P21-090 02-02-004), together with a

dropped kerb opposite, in accordance with details which shall first be
submitted to and approved by the LPA.

Page 14



REASON: In the interests of sustainable travel.

11) No development shall commence on site until visibility splays have
been provided between the edge of the carriageway and a line extending
from a point 2.4 metres back from the edge of the carriageway, measured
along the centre line of the access, to the points on the edge of the
carriageway 115 metres to the right (west) and 125 metres to the left (east)
from the centre of the access in accordance with the approved plans.
Such splays shall thereafter be permanently maintained free from
obstruction to vision above a height of 900mm above the level of the
adjacent carriageway.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety

12) Notwithstanding the submitted details, the proposed development
shall not be occupied until means/works have been implemented to avoid
private water from entering the highway.

Reason: To ensure that the highway is not inundated with private water.

13) No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until
the access, turning area and parking spaces (including the parking
spaces for Old Sarum Cottages) have been completed in accordance with
the details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall always be
maintained for those purposes thereafter and maintained free from the
storage of materials.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

14) The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the
first 5m of the access, measured from the edge of the carriageway, has
been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access
shall be maintained as such thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety

15) Prior to the occupation of the first dwelling, details of the charging
points infrastructure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. No individual dwelling shall be occupied until the
points have been installed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of reducing the carbon footprint of the
development.

Informative
The development involves work to provide a new footway across the site
frontage on land which is existing public highway. A S278 legal agreement

is necessary with the Highway Authority to facilitate this work.
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material

Page 15



samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning
Officer where they are to be found.

The development hereby approved could be subject to the Community
Infrastructure Levy. Wiltshire Council has now adopted a Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule. CIL is a charge that local
authorities can place on new development in their area. The money
generated through CIL will contribute to the funding of infrastructure to
support growth.

More information and the charging schedule for CIL can be found using
the following link:
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/dmcommunityinfras
tructurelevy.htm

105 Urgent Iltems

There were no urgent items

Late correspondence

(Duration of meeting: 3.00 - 4.05 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Alexander of Democratic
Services, direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.alexander@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line ((01225) 713114 or emaill
communications@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 16


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/dmcommunityinfrastructurelevy.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/dmcommunityinfrastructurelevy.htm
mailto:communications@wiltshire.gov.uk

Wiltshire Council
Southern Area Planning Committee
10" November 2022

Planning Appeals Received between 10/06/2022 and 28/10/2022

Application No Site Location Parish Proposal DEL or | Appeal Type Officer Appeal Start | Overturn at
COMM Recommend Date Cttee
PL/2021/05463 Agricultural Building at | Donhead St Change of use of agricultural DEL Written Refuse 28/06/2022 No
Charlton, Shaftesbury, | Mary building to 1 no. dwelling Representations
SP7 OEN (resubmission of 20/06835/FUL)
PL/2021/07826 1 Grays Orchard Durrington Erection of a timber shed DEL Householder Appeal | Refuse 20/06/2022 No
Durrington, Salisbury (Retrospective)
SP4 8GQ
PL/2021/07940 Snowflakes, Rectory Alderbury Demolition of domestic outbuildings | DEL Written Refuse 16/09/2022 No
Road, Alderbury, and erection of two chalets to the Representations
Salisbury, SP5 3AD rear of the bungalow Snowflakes,
and associated parking, and hard
and soft landscaping.
PL/2021/08271 Land Adj to Ashvale, Winterslow Proposed dwelling adjacent to DEL Written Refuse 28/06/2922 No
The Causeway, Ashvale Representations
Winterslow, Salisbury,
SP5 1QW
PL/2T021/08473 1 Bourne View Allington Erection of single 2 storey 3 bed SAPC | Written Approve with 16/09/2022 Yes
jab) Allington, Salisbury dwelling Representations Conditions
Q SP4 0AA
PL/2021/08548 Land to the rear of Idmiston Conversion of existing barns to form | DEL Written Refuse 28/06/2022 No
':" 127 East Gomeldon a single storey two bedroom Representations
Road, Gomeldon, SP4 residential dwelling (Use Class C3)
6NB and associated works
PL/2021/09272 42 Kitchener Road, Amesbury Subdivision of plot, alterations to DEL Written Refuse 16/09/2022 No
Amesbury, Salisbury, existing dwelling and the erection of Representations
SP4 7AD 3 dwellings (Use Class C3) and
associated works
PL/2021/11289 South Lea, Tytherley Winterslow Change of use from agricultural to DEL Written Refuse 16/09/2022 No }
Road, Winterslow, E(0)(iii) light industrial (formerly B1) Representations
Salisbury, SP5 1PZ (Q
PL/2021/11477 Former Piggery Winterslow Change of use of barn to dwelling DEL Written Refuse 16/09/2022 No
Building, West Dean Representations -
Road, West O
Tythereley, SP5 1QA e
PL/2021/11842 15 Highfield Rise, Shrewton Construction of upper storey to DEL Householder Appeal | Refuse 12/10/2022 No
Shrewton, SP3 4DZ existing single storey dwelling e
PL/2022/01129 Florence House, Whiteparish Double Garage in front driveway DEL Written Non 16/09/2022 No CD
Romsey Road, together with associated Representations Determination
Whiteparish, landscaping 5
Salisbury, SP5 2SD
PL/2022/02040 Peartree Cottage, Ansty Erection of garage (variation to DEL Householder Appeal | Refuse 12/10/2022 No [®))

Coombe Lane, Ansty
SP3 5PZ

approval 17/07021/FUL)




PL/2022/02691 Bishop Wordsworth's Salisbury Proposed preconstructed toilet DEL Written Approve with 12/10/2022 No
School Playing Fields, building to be provided Representations Conditions
Britford Lane,
Salisbury SP2 8AL

PL/2022/03156 69 Tollgate Road, Salisbury New dwellinghouse DEL Written Refuse 16/09/2022 No
Salisbury, SP1 2JP Representations

gT obed




Planning Appeals Decided between 10/06/2022 and 28/10/2022

Application Site Location Parish Proposal DEL or | Appeal Type | Officer Appeal Decision Costs
No COMM Recommend | Decision | Date Awarded?
21/00684/FUL Greenacres Farm, Coombe Bissett Proposed redevelopment of DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed | 08/08/2022 | None
Rockbourne Road, outbuilding to residential dwelling
Coombe Bissett, with amenity area and parking
SP54LP
21/00943/FUL 4 The Flood, Middle Winterslow Four Bedroom Detached House DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed | 16/08/2022 | None
Winterslow, Salisbury,
Wiltshire, SP5 1QT
PL/2021/03133 | Sandyhills Farm Barn, Teffont Conversion of existing agricultural | DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed | 13/07/2022 | None
Teffont SP3 5QX barn to form a single storey
residential dwelling (Use Class
C3) and associated works
PL/2021/05339 | Hatts Farm, Semley, Sedgehill & To replace a derelict barn for a DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed | 15/06/2022 | None
Shaftesbury, SP7 9AD Semley holiday let and/or staff
accommodation.
PL/2021/05463 | Agricultural building at Donhead St Mary | Change of use of agricultural DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed | 13/10/2022 | None
Charlton, Shaftesbury, Parish building to 1 no. dwelling
SP7 OEN (resubmission of 20/06835/FUL)
PL/2021/07390 | Furze Farm, Sherfield Landford Retention of internal and external | DEL Written Reps | Refuse Dismissed | 04/07/2022 | Appellant
o English Road, Landford, works to former stable building, applied for
Q Salisbury, SP5 2BD use as tourist accommodation and Costs -
«Q use of land for agricultural REFUSED
) purposes
PL/2p21/07826 | 1 Grays Orchard, Durrington Erection of a timber shed DEL Householder Refuse Dismissed | 21/09/2022 | None
O Durrington, SP4 8GQ (Retrospective) Appeal
PL/2021/08056 | Brackendale Alderbury Demolition of the existing dwelling | SAPC Written Reps | Approve with | Allowed 14/07/2022 | None
Junction Road house 'Brackendale’, and for the Conditions with
Alderbury, SP5 3AZ erection of 2 x detached Conditions
dwellings, associated parking,
access and hard and soft
landscaping.
PL/2021/10613 | 56 Harper Road, Salisbury Raise roof line of existing DEL Householder Refuse Dismissed | 21/09/2022 | None
Salisbury SP2 7HQ Bungalow to form bedrooms, two Appeal
storey extension to rear
PL/2022/02218 | Land at Porton Road Amesbury New single illuminated 48-sheet DEL Householder Refuse Dismissed | 10/08/2022 | None

adjacent to Lovibond
House, Sunrise Way,
Amesbury, SP4 7GR

digital advertisement display

Appeal




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7a

REPORT OUTLINE FOR AREA PLANNING COMMITTEES Report No.
Date of Meeting 10" November 2022

Application Number PL/2021/09778

Site Address Station works site Tisbury

Proposal Outline planning application for redevelopment of the Station

Works site to provide a mixed development of up to 86
dwellings, a care home of up to 40 bedspaces with associated
medical facilities, new pedestrian and vehicular access and
traffic management works, a safeguarded area for any future rail
improvements, and areas of

public open space.

Applicant Tisbury Homes
Town/Parish Council Tisbury

Electoral Division Tisbury (ClIr Errington)
Grid Ref

Type of application Outline planning

Case Officer Richard Hughes

Reason for the application being considered by Committee

The application has been called-in by ClIr Errington. Notwithstanding, the applicants have
formally appeal against non-determination of the application. As a result the Planning
Inspectorate is the determining authority, not this Council.

1. Purpose of Report

The purpose of the report is to assess the merits of the proposal against the policies of the
development plan and other material considerations and to consider, in light of the non
determination appeal, Members need to consider whether the application would have been
refused as recommended.

2. Report Summary

The issues in this case are:

o Principle of development, policy and planning history;

¢ Design, scale and impact to the amenity of the area/AONB/heritage asset impacts
General Amenity issues

Parking/Highways Impact, rights of way

Impact on railway station and line

Archaeology

Ecological Impact

S106 matters

3. Site Description

The site is located on the southern edge of Tisbury and its Conservation Area, and has
historically been in industrial use, originally associated as its name suggests with the adjacent
railway line and station. The site is Iocatedggvithin t fjfined settlement boundary of Tisbury,
and is allocated for development in the Tis u@g@ig urhood Plan. The site contains a
collection of industrial buildings, with vehicular access points onto the adjacent road to the



south west. The railway line and station form the western/northern boundaries of the site. The
land to the north and east of the site is elevated open land within the countryside. A footpath
system lies adjacent to the north of the site and across the railway line.

4. Planning History

The planning history of the site largely relates to the industrial uses on the site, although the
applications below are relevant as history:

S/2011/0660 - prior approval granted for the demolition of the office block and a warehouse on
the site.

In the early 2000’s two planning applications for a mixed-use development of residential and
employment uses, with alterations to the site access, reference S/2002/1367 and S/2003/2547
were refused, due to the loss of employment land was unacceptable and that the site lay
outside an area allocated for residential development.

5. The Proposal

The proposal is in outline, with all matters other than access reserved. The application is for up
to 86 dwellings with open space on the site, and also a 40 bed care home. Access would be
from the existing access points to the south west of the site off Jobbers Lane. The submitted
details include:

o 2 x1-bedroom flats

o 10 x 2-bedroom flats

o 42 x 2-bedroom houses
o 29 x 3-bedroom houses
o 3 x4-bedroom houses

e 12 of these dwellings to be affordable housing, as follows:
o 2 x1-bedroom flats
o 4 x2-bedroom flats
o 3 x2-bedroom houses
o 1 x 3-bedroom house

o A 30-40-bed care home, to possibly also include community medical
facilities.

e Areas of on-site amenity space and landscaping;

e Provision of an area of approximately 0.4 hectares of land
safeguarded for future improvements to Tisbury railway

station, including an indicative vehicular access to this area;

e Closure of the norﬁ@lggrrggf the existing vehicular

access to vehicle traffic to improve visibility for traffic



entering and exiting the site. Using the northern arm of the
existing vehicular access as a pedestrian and cycle
access only, linked to a new pedestrian crossing;

e Creation of a new dedicated pedestrian and cycle route
between the site and the existing Stubbles footpath on Station
Road toward Church Street, including exclusive use of one

bore of the existing railway bridge for pedestrians and cyclists;

¢ Traffic management measures including the provision of
traffic signals on Station Road and Jobbers Lane to allow
single lane alternate running of vehicle traffic through the

right hand bore of the railway bridge.

6. Local Planning Policy

National Planning Policy Framework, including the National Design Guide and Code.

Wiltshire Core Strategy

Core Policy 1 Settlement Strategy

Core Policy 2 Delivery Strategy

Core Policy 3 Infrastructure delivery

Core Policy 27 — Strategy for Tisbury

Core Policy 35 &36 — Employment and economic regeneration
Core Policy 43 — Affordable housing provision

Core Policy 50/52 Biodiversity and Geodiversity

Core Policy 51 Landscaping

Core Policy 55 — Air Quality

Core Policy 56 - Contamination

Core Policy 57 Ensuring high quality design and place shaping
Core Policy 58 Heritage Assets

Core Policy 60, 61,62 Transport and New Development

Core Policy 67 — Drainage

Core Policy 69 — River Avon SAC

Saved policy R2 — Open space
Saved policy D8 — Public Art

Creating Places SPD

Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2015-2026
and Car Parking Strategy

Wiltshire Waste Core Strategy policy WCS 6
Planning Obligations DPD

Adopted Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan, including EB1, BL1, BL2 BL3 BL7, HNA1, & HNAS
Adopted Tisbury Conservation Area Appraisal

Page 23



7. Summary of consultation responses

WC Highways — Object (see highways section in report)

WC Landscape — Raise certain landscape impact details

WC Rights of Way — No objections, subject to footpaths near the site being upgraded via a
financial contribution.

WC Public Protection — No objections subject to conditions
WC Ecology — No objection, provided the impact of the scheme in terms of phosphates on the

River Avon SAC is mitigated

WC Drainage — Object (see flooding section)

WC Housing — Object. Scheme should provide 30 percent affordable housing.

WC Waste and recycling — No objection subject to S106 contributions

WC Education — Object as application would not provide any mitigating financial contribution
towards off site educational provision.

WC Open Space - No objection subject to open space being provided on site and S106
contributions

WC Archaeology — No objection subject to a condition

WC Spatial - Concern that the proposal does not accord with the development plan

WC Economic Development — Object to loss of/lack of inclusion of industrial employment
WC Urban Design - Concerns expressed due to limited linkages and issues with the
suggested design and layout

Environment Agency — Object as the access route is situated in an area known to flood(see
Flooding and Drainage section)

Wessex Water — General advice. No objections, but refers to infrastructure crossing the site.
Network Rail — No objections in principle, subject to the occupiers of the proposal site should
not use the adjacent footpath which runs across the railway line. Other general matters raised
regards the development works not affecting the railway operation or land.

Natural England — No objection, but advice how the LPA should consider the application and
the Habitats Regulations Assessment

8. Publicity

Third Parties: 273 responses stating the following general matters:

Protection of wildlife/ecology/swifts required with provision of built in features
Scheme would have an impact on existing parking and traffic issues
Flooding issues haven’t been addressed

Not enough facilities and services for more dwellings in Tisbury
Need affordable housing for local people

No need for the care home

Overdevelopment of the site

Will be out of keeping with the area

No energy efficiency measures included

Not in accordance with neighbourhood plan policies

No proper community consultation undertaken

Would affect the AONB

No solution to crossing the railway line has been found or assessed

Tisbury Parish Council — Object for the following reasons (summary)

Page 24




1. While we support the development of Station Works, in line with the Tisbury and
West Tisbury Neighbourhood Development Plan (2019-2036), this application
breaches the plan’s policy BL.7 multiple times These breaches are detailed below.
It also breaches policy BL.3 on the development of brownfield sites.

2. The application itself is inadequate; it lacks important detail and breaches the
NPPF as outlined in our previous comments (now repeated in appendix 1).

3 The proposed development is situated adjacent to a Level 3 Flood Zone;
recent excessive flooding demonstrates our concerns over the impact of the
development on the risk of future flooding events, as well as the risk of a lack of
accessibility to the site and, in particular, the pedestrian access to the site. Also
detailed below

West Tisbury Parish Council - West Tisbury Parish Council are grateful to be consultees on
this outline planning application which will have a huge impact on the village of Tisbury and the
surrounding parishes. As a neighbouring parish - and bearing in mind that most of the
population of West Tisbury Parish live within the settlement boundary of the village of Tisbury -
any development of the scale proposed in this planning application will affect our parishioners
and our parish. As joint authors with Tisbury Parish Council of the Tisbury and West Tisbury
Neighbourhood Plan* (made November 2019), we have been working closely with Tisbury
Parish Council on this proposed development at Station Works.

We note that the planning application is for the principle of development of 86
dwellings and a care home of up to 40 bedspaces - with all other matters reserved
except for the pedestrian and vehicular access and traffic management works.
West Tisbury Parish Council objects to the application on the grounds of:

e Scale and density

e Lack of mixed use

e Availability of affordable housing

e Pedestrian, cycle and vehicular access

West Tisbury Parish Council also consider that too many key issues are reserved,
and fear for the impact on Tisbury’s infrastructure without suitable contributions.

Sutton Mandeville Parish Council - We support and mirror the responses and comments of our
neighbouring Tisbury, West Tisbury, Swallowcliffe and Ansty Parish Councils.

Especial concerns for Sutton Mandeville Parish Council are:

- Increased volume of traffic through the parish (via C24), which residents continually raise
concerns about with SMPC and directly with Wiltshire Councillor Nabil Najjar

- knock on issues regarding access to services, schools, GP surgeries.

- limited employment opportunities arising through the development proposed.

Sutton Mandeville PC object to proposals in planning application PL/2021 09778 on behalf of
residents.

Hindon PC - Hindon Parish Council would like to add its name to the list of Parish Councils
objecting to this ill thought out planning application

Fonthil and Berwick St Leonard PC

Firstly, and most importantly must be the quéﬁé (25ccess. The existing access to the site
floods, as evidenced on October 21st, 2021, wien the height of the river rose to half a meter
above its previously record high, therefore, the facts stated in the planning documents are



wrong. 90.62m is not the highest recorded but presumably this should now be over 91m. This
shows that access to the site is not feasible or sustainable for a new development of this size.
See photographs of the road flooded and closed for a period of 24 hours. This must suggest
the flood risk assessment and advice is unreliable or out of date.

2. How would the care home and the 86 households’ access or egress the site for 24 hours?
And this is not an isolated incident. It has happened at least 3 times in the last 25 years,
Surely, this can't be a suitable or sustainable access for 86 homes and a large care home.
Paragraph 2.39 in the planning statement clearly suggests how the access is liable to flooding
surely this is a relevant factor and needs to be given suitable weight in consideration of this
application.

3. The report is less accurate in its reference to the neighbourhood plan, suggesting that the
proposed intensive development is in line with that neighbourhood plan. The scheme is far
more intensive than envisaged by the Neighbourhood plan.

4. Furthermore, there appears to be no comment that most of the access into Tisbury is
through the listed Fonthill Park and ultimately through the grade 1 listed archway. Surely this
deserves mention in terms of increasing the volume of traffic by, probably, up to 15% and
vehicle movements by up to 45 per day. At least half of the vehicles will access Tisbury via the
Fonthill arch. No consideration has been given to any effect this might have on the listed
structure.

5. Access to Tisbury via Hindon is also through a single lane tunnel.

6. As a result of the proposed development and reducing the two-arch bridge to a single arch
for vehicles will mean all major access points into the village will effectively be single file and
the one subject to this application will also have the added restriction of traffic lights.

7. Traffic lights as proposed are totally inappropriate for the area the village and the AONB and
do not respect the rural character of the location.

8. The proposed development does not take into account the current planning application
(pending) for the change of use of the South Western Hotel to a Co-op store. This in turn will
increase the intensity of vehicles in the area where the traffic lights are proposed which will
create complete chaos in that location.

9. The improvements in the footpath and the cycle way safety could be achieved without
having the excuse of an intensive development of this nature. Indeed, it would be sensible for
the parish council to draw up such a plan for discussion with neighbouring stakeholders.

10. It is difficult to see how the application delivers significant highway improvement in the
locality as stated in paragraph 6.23 of the planning statement. This must be a false statement
as clearly there is no planned tangible improvement to the highway in the locality.

11. The transport assessment states it is not considered that the proposed development will
have any material impact on the existing road network in terms of highway capacity or highway
safety. This simply cannot be true given the number of properties and the size of the care
home suggested, adding to an already congested system of narrow lanes with the only access
to the site being one which floods. The planning statement states at 7.2 that the primary
vehicle access is off Jobbers Lane: it is in fact the only vehicular access and, as previously
stated, and clearly seen, it floods even though the rest of the site may not be at risk of flooding
12. The assessment of the flood risk and the statements relating thereto are misleading. The
access to the site is clearly in a flood zone and there is a severe risk of flooding meaning
access into the site would be impossible in times of flood therefore is not a suitable location for
a care home.

13. The groundwater monitoring took place in June and September notably dry months. it
should be appreciated that groundwater rises significantly in the winter in this area and so
suggest the flood risk assessment is not sufficiently detailed or covers a long enough period or
the highway access.

14. The summary conclusion of the risk assessment report suggested the site is deemed
unacceptable for future residential use. The contamination is a known fact and so to suggest
an intensive development to afford the clean-up is misguided and not the assumed position to
start from. Surely to recognise the contaFﬁG@i@nZﬁj plan around it would be more suitable.



Swallowcliffe PC

Following an extraordinary meeting of parishioners, at which 30 were present, Swallowcliffe
Parish Council (SPC) has considered the above application. Since the application is divided
into two parts, the observations are also divided into two, and are set out below. Although the
proposed developments are only indicative and are reserved matters, SPC has reviewed them
as they are the reason why the road works on Jobbers Lane are being proposed and they are
described in detail in the application and its associated supporting papers.

SPC has also reviewed the objections raised by the Access To Tisbury Group (ATTG) on
behalf of eight parishes surrounding Tisbury, including Swallowcliffe, and fully endorses them.
This response is in addition to that of ATTG and is the responsibility solely of SPC.

Detailed Consent for Improved Access to the Site

To enhance pedestrian and cycle access from the site into Tisbury the applicant proposes an

elevated walkway through the eastern bore of the railway bridge which will require its closure

to motor traffic and the installation of traffic lights to control the resultant one way flow through
the remaining bore.

Whilst SPC are in favour of the principle of redeveloping this site, SPC objects to these access
proposals on the following grounds:

The closure of one bore of the bridge will halve the capacity of the only distributor road to the
south of Tisbury and will thus divert an unacceptable flow of northbound traffic onto the highly
constricted Tisbury Row and then either The Avenue, Park, Cuff's or Duck Lanes. This will
reduce access from the south to Tisbury as drivers, including farm vehicles, seek to avoid the
threat of delays at the bridge and will adversely affect the well being of residents on these
roads. The converse will apply to southbound traffic.

The proposed development will reduce accessibility of residents of the Tisbury Community
Area (TCA) living to the south of the railway to Tisbury’s services and shops, particularly if the
Co-op moves to the South Western Pub site.

The installation of light controlled one way flows under the remaining bore will slow the speed
of response of emergency vehicles. The Fire Brigade have commented that such an
arrangement would have to be negotiated with care; it is not clear where vehicles already
under the bridge or its approaches could go so as to provide sufficient room for emergency
vehicles to get through.

The central bore remaining for vehicular traffic is subject to frequent flooding, which will only
compound the problems outlined in 3 above. Local weather records indicate that the
incidence of flooding has increased significantly this century with the bridge being blocked by
two “one in a hundred year” floods in the past 20 years.

Page 27



There have been two such incidents in the past month, one of which led to premises just to the
north of the bridge being flooded. They also led to footpath TISB74 being under water; this is
the main pedestrian link by which it is proposed pedestrians from the site access Tisbury.
Significant flooding of the bore now occurs on average five times a year, causing drivers to use
the eastern bore which is slightly higher.

The large scale of the proposals has access implications thoughout most of the TCA, yet the
application only considers the capacity of Jobbers Lane immediately outside the site, which is
described as 5.8m wide and is felt by the applicant to be of sufficient size to cope with the
motor traffic likely to be generated by the proposed development. The applicant neglects to
deal with the fact that substantial portions of the lanes which connect to the A30 and A350 to
the west and south are less than 3m in width, so narrow that in Swallowcliffe alone there are at
least three stretches where two cars cannot pass (see example Figure 1). The same
conditions exist in Ansty and on routes to the A350. Any significant increase in traffic flow
would constitute a heightened danger and loss of amenity to residents of Swallowcliffe.

The applicant estimates the indicative development would lead to an increase of on some 40
car borne journeys at each of the peak hours. If only half of these head south toward the A30,
SID data suggests this would represent a 15% increase in peak hour flow, a significant
increase.

Insufficient account has been taken of the likely traffic generated by the care home which will
include three shifts of 12 workers, visitors, truck deliveries and specialist waste removal. This
would be exacerbated should there be an associated provision of medical facilities for use by
local residents.

Indicative plans are for some 375 residents living on the site (see Section 3.11 of the
applicant’s planning statement). In the 2011 Census Wiltshire car ownership was 596 per
1000 population. This figure is likely to be higher now because car ownership has increased
and the site is set in a rural area that does not include some of the larger towns in Wiltshire.
However even on 2011 county data the indicative population will generate a demand for some
205 parking spaces. Only 191 residential spaces are being provided on site so it is highly
likely that overspill parking will take place on Jobbers Lane and Station Road , further reducing
capacity and also reducing the attractivity of Tisbury as a service centre to much of the TCA,
some of whose trade will be diverted to Shaftesbury and Salisbury.

On the basis of the submitted documents, there is no evidence that the applicant has
considered the wider impact of the proposals on the TCA road network, nor alternative means
of providing pedestrian access to Tisbury. For example replacing the footpath crossing to the
immediate east of the station is not considered despite it being clear from the documentation
that it is Network Rail’s intention to effect these works for safety reasons. This is to be subject
to a cost/benefit evaluation and no doubt a developer contribution would improve feasibility.

In the view of SPC this application should be refused and the applicant invited to reconsider its
access proposals as the current proposals constitute a loss of amenity and a threat to the
health of residents living on lanes to the south of the site and within Tisbury itself.

Page 28



Matters reserved for Subsequent Planning Applications

SPC is concerned that if the detailed access element of this application is granted, the maximum scale of
developments reserved for future applications will, by implication, be tacitly deemed acceptable, even though
they will have to be the subject of subsequent consents. Therefore, observations are made here concerning the
indicative developments outlined that constitute the bulk of the current application.

SPC believes that both the nature and quantum of development proposed is unacceptable and in conflict with
the Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan (TNP). This seeks to make provision for commercial uses having regard to the
needs of the local and currently on-site businesses.

We understand there are currently 35 jobs and post COVID vacancies on site. Light industrial and business
uses would add to the diversity of economic activity in Tisbury and provide a wider range of employment
opportunities than the proposed “up fo” 40 bed care home. It should be noted that Tisbury already enjoys the
benefit of two such facilities in what is effectively the same use class as residential. An additional home will
have to draw from a geographically wider pool of labour, thus increasing trip generation and missing the
opportunity to diversify the Tisbury economy.

The TNP also indicates a desirable maximum of about 60 dwellings on site, of which some 30% should be
affordable or social. The proposal indicates “up to” 86 dwellings of which only 14% would be affordable. This
reduction is justified by the applicant’s assumption that the eventual developer will need to secure a 20% rate of
return. However, according to the applicant’s own submission, there is only a 0.1% difference in returns
between 14% affordable /social provision and 30%; both options showing a 23% return on cost. Given such a
high return there would seem to be scope for improved access arrangements that do not involve the half closure
of the railway bridge to vehicular traffic.

In sum, SWC'’s reasons for objection to the indicative component of this application are

The scheme would represent overdevelopment in an AONB and is at such a scale that it would exercise a
deleterious impact on the safety and amenity of Swallowcliffe residents

The proposal is at odds with the TNP’s aim for mixed uses on site and with an increase of up to 425 residents
(estimated as around 15% of the wider Tisbury population) would seriously overload the services Tisbury provide
to its TCA.

Teffont PC - Whilst noting that the Developers have applied for a scheme which makes the site a cul-de-sac that
is isolated from Tisbury by a reduced existing railway bridge. A bridge that is presently too low for many vehicles
including Fire Engines.

The highway through the bridge also floods after intense rainfall or a snow melt.

The proposed alterations to the road access will encourage vehicles to turn left out of the site and pass through
Swallowcliffe or Ansty to join the A30 thus giving rise to a ghetto the other side of the railway track isolated from
Tisbury.

Whilst is noted that Tisbury PC supports the development of the Station Works Site in their adopted
Neighbourhood Plan it is unlikely that the proposals meet the aspirations of the Tisbury citizens based on the
comments included in the Neighbourhood Plan.

The Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan only paid lip service to the highway network serving Tisbury through the
surrounding villages.

Teffont PC wishes to see Tisbury continue as a su essful#) al hub, however, it is this Highways network
particularly within the Parish of Teffont that concer?ﬁgﬁ‘o garish Council.



There is no indication that anybody has modelled the potential traffic generation on anything other than the
Railway Bridge, where the results are used to support the preposterous proposal of closing one arch and putting
traffic lights on the other.

(Why not a new bridge under the railway linked to dredging and lowering the Nadder to reduce the risk of
flooding on the access to the site and in Tisbury Row. A scheme to lower a bridge, under the railway has
recently been carried out in Westbury the original estimate was £7 million. Not a large amount if the Highways
Authority, British Rail and Wessex Water combine resources and ask for a sensible contribution from the site
developer.)

If increased traffic from the site chooses to travel to and from Salisbury on the C24 it will be using a “lane” that is
blatantly inadequate for the present traffic including the large lorries carrying goods to the EHD Site,
Chicksgrove Quarry etc.

At the very least the C24 needs improvements at the junction with the B3089 (known as Stocks Corner) and
additional lay byes to facilitate safe passing.

We have no doubts that these suggestions will be born out when the Highways Authority investigates the route
and models the increased traffic generation from a fully developed Station Works Site.

Chilmark PC

We support the redevelopment of the Station Works site as framed by the
Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan with a balance of housing and small business
/ commercial units providing local employment to minimise ‘out
commuting’.

Chilmark is a rural village 2.5 miles from Tisbury. A country road,
Becketts Lane, leads from Chilmark and Ridge to Tisbury, defined by
Wiltshire Council as a Local Service Centre, providing Chilmark and
surrounding villages with shops, services, a Doctor’s surgery and a
community centre.

We note the only matter approval is sought as part of this outline
application is Access. The matters of Appearance, Landscaping, Layout
and Scale have been categorised as reserved matters’ to be the subject
of a separate application before the development may proceed.

We make our comments on two counts as they are interrelated and will
effect the residents of Chilmark as well as other neighbouring villages.

1. Access

Tisbury, unlike every other Local Service Centre in Wiltshire is the only
one with no A or B road giving access to the village.

Consequently all traffic in and out of Tisbury, from whichever direction, is
obliged to negotiate narrow country lanes often with long stretches of
single track and through small villages with houses standing on the road
edge. Chilmark, with 20mph speed calming and a village school, is already
coping with increasing numbers of private, commercial and HGV vehicles
cutting through from the A303 and frequently damaging the edges of
conservation area stone walls and grass verges.

Negotiating restricted road conditions already presents a challenge for

local residents of rural communities. A 40 bed care home is not mixed use as understood by the Tisbury
Development Plan and does not provide for any local business enterprises

or local jobs. Given the shortage of care home workers, it is likely these

will need to come from a wide catchment area and travel to Tisbury,

increasing road traffic through villages i.e. ‘out commuting’.

The proposed density of housing with its associated increase in vehicles

together with the car journeys necessary to provide 24 hour shift staffing

for a 40 bed care home will lead to significant trﬁagﬁré‘i@es, night and

day on all approach roads and through Chilmark village itself.



This increase in traffic is not merely a noisy and disruptive intrusion but

also dangerous to the inhabitants walking through streets with no

pavements. Wiltshire Core Strategy states ‘ modest new growth in Tisbury will...take
into account narrow access roads and the sensitive landscape of the

AONB’.

The proposed access to Tisbury from Jobbers Lane through the AONB Vale
of Wardour presents insurmountable traffic restrictions, with long lengths

of narrow pinch points and single track road.

The closure of one of the railway bridge arches will cause congestion in

and out of Tisbury. The closed railway bridge is the one used for vehicle
access to Tisbury when the other arch is flooded. A frequently occurring
event. Traffic lights are an urban intrusion to Tisbury and inappropriate to

its rural location.

The suggested steel and concrete footpath running the length of a closed
railway bridge does not provide an appropriate (or fitting) solution to
accessing the shops on Tisbury High Street.

Without a bridge over the railway, pedestrians from the proposed
development will be obliged to walk a circuitous and lengthy route with
their shopping. This will force residents to use cars for these short
journeys.

2. Density

The proposed plan overdevelops the site with residential housing making
no provision for mixed development (e.g light commercial/small business)
which would provide local employment as envisaged by the plans referred
to below.

The vision set out in Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015 states that by 2026
service centres such as Tisbury ‘will become more self contained, giving a
reduction in the need to travel and minimising out commuting’

The scale of the proposed development is not in line with the Wiltshire
Council Local Plan 2021 (Empowering Local Communities) which provided
for 65 dwellings by 2036 i.e equivalent to 4 a year. The housing density
vastly exceeds this. Instead of the envisaged gradual growth in housing
Tisbury Doctor’s surgery will not be able to accommodate the needs of
what would amount to an immediate increase of 15%/20% to the
population of Tisbury.

Parking in Tisbury is already problematic but manageable. The High
Street is a narrow thoroughfare, often only able to accommodate a single
vehicle moving along parked cars. Additional vehicles from shoppers will
outnumber the parking spaces that can be provided.

Conclusion.

Chilmark Parish Council believe the application should be refused consent.
The plan submitted does not provide for the range and scope of
development nor reflect the aims as defined in the Wiltshire Core Strategy
or the Wiltshire Council Local Plan (Empowering Local Communities) or
the Tisbury Neighbouhood Plan and its scale will significantly contribute to
increased traffic levels in an AONB with narrow road conditions through
small villages.

Donhead PC: Object

. Overdevelopment of site / not in line with tfgﬁ)gzg p%rl
. Wrong category of onsite employment / not in line with the local plan



. Object to the notion of blocking off one side of the railroad arch to provide pedestrian access.
. Insufficient local infrastructure to cope with proposed develop.
Should be at least 30% affordable housing.

Access to Tisbury Group

Having reviewed this Outline application we conclude that it does not provide what Tisbury needs or the sort of
development envisaged by the Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan.

The proposal is contrary to the basic development principles clearly set out in Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015.
Principles that we would fully endorse. For example, modest levels of development, modest growth of both
housing and employment to ensure development is balanced, minimising out-commuting, becoming more self-
contained.

The scheme has excessive residential and care home accommodation at the expense of a more mixed and
sustainable development, which would develop the community as a whole. The current proposal will promote a
dormitory for the wider region.

The exclusively residential nature of the development, its density and its scale will result in high and
unacceptable traffic generation causing not just damage to our environment, but also to the well being of our
residents and communities on these access routes into and out of Tisbury.

The High Street and the surrounding narrow country lanes with their constrictions which give access to Tisbury
have absorbed Tisbury’s residential expansion and associated growth in traffic over many years. Blockages,
conflicts and aggression now occur on these roads on a regular basis and further expansion on the scale
proposed cannot be accommodated without these issues becoming more serious and difficult to manage.

The recent flooding in Tisbury has demonstrated that the access to the proposed development will be
compromised by flood water from the Nadder river and we can expect this to become a more frequent
occurrence with climate change.

A van disabled by the recent floods, prevented traffic from passing through one of the railway bridge arches and
reinforced the need for resilience and a second arch for traffic.

The scheme lacks respect for the Tisbury and wider community.
On the basis of the above we believe this application should be refused consent.

AONB Partnership (summary)

11. This AONB is, as | expect you know, in one of the darkest parts of Southern England and hence the visibility
of stars and, in particular, the Milky Way, is a key attribute of this AONB..

12. The AONB is, therefore, concerned about light pollution. Any external lighting should be explicitly approved
by the Local Planning Authority and comply with the AONB's Position Statement on Light Pollution and the more
recent Good Practice Notes on Good External Lighting and Paper by Bob Mizon on Light Fittings. In this location
that means all lighting complying with Environmental Lighting Zone E1 as defined by the Institute of Lighting
Professionals 2011.

13. The site is in the Vale of Wardour landscape character area of the Rolling Clay Vales landscape character
type of the AONB's landscape character assesspgtis@aler details of the landscape, buildings and settlement
characteristics can be found in the Landscape Character Assessment 2003. That document can be viewed in full
on our website.



14. Although the application is a mixed development up to 86 dwellings and a care home up to 40 bed spaces,
that description seems to differ from that provided in many of the consultation reports attached to the application.
Furthermore, the submitted proposals do not appear to be a ‘mixed’ development. The site is stated to be 4
hectares although, again, some of the consultants’ reports give a different figure.

15. A significant part of it is a brownfield site that is identified as contaminated land. However, a substantial area
on the south eastern side appears to comprise semi-natural habitats. There are indications that there are
protected species on site with significant habitats adjacent to it. There is no mention of the site including any
matters of geological importance. Nevertheless, the site boundary appears to include all of the slope to the south
east.

16. The application, and many of the consultants’ reports, are confusing because the orientation of the site is
oversimplified in many of the descriptions. The basic geographical elements of aspect, topography, and
orientation are missing from most of the documentation. The site is, in fact, roughly a narrow oblong orientated
along a line from the north east to the south west. It is to the south east of the railway station and at a similar or
higher level than the railway. The south eastern side is a relatively steep slope, presumably produced at some
earlier time when the full extent of the site was created. The top of the slope is approximately 115 metres AOD,
whereas the site level is in the order of 95 metres AOD. The road at the south western end, which goes under
the railway line, is at a lower level and, as is noted in some of the documents, is prone to flooding.

17. The whole of the site is within this AONB and | note that the north western boundary of the site adjoins the
Tisbury Conservation Area. The application form indicates that there would be a loss of employment land of
some 4295 sq metres with an attendant loss of 21 employees. The proposed employment generated,
presumably by the care home, would be 40 full time equivalents. The increase in car parking spaces would be
151, and whilst it is noted that the application is for up to 86 dwellings, 74 would be market and 12 would be
affordable. Bearing in mind the acknowledged need for accommodation in and around this AONB is for
affordable properties, that seems to be a rather low proportion.

18. From my engagement with the Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan | am aware that there are some key concerns in
relation to development and redevelopment around Tisbury Station.

a) A particularly pressing matter is the provision of parking so that the use of sustainable transport, the railway,
can be encouraged. The current roadside parking is not only unsightly, but it also aggravates the restricted traffic
flows to and from the southern side of Tisbury.

b) The Neighbourhood Plan team were also keen to ensure that redevelopment would provide a variety of jobs
that would enhance the sustainability of the community.

c¢) Flooding is an issue and, associated with that, the control of pollution is a significant matter.

d) The landscape corridor of the River Nadder is a key feature of the settlement and any redevelopment should
both respect and reinforce the character and qualities of that landscape corridor.

e) It is my understanding that the Neighbourhood Plan deliberately avoided making design comments about
redevelopment around the station so as not to prohibit innovative approaches.

However, the submitted application does not appear to actively address any of these issues and concerns.

19. Having reviewed the documentation the AONBRRG@r&hd is of the view that the submitted scheme fails to
comply with the Neighbourhood Plan, fails to present a scheme that is positively related to the landscape



location and context, and lacks imagination.

20. The AONB Partnership welcomes the setting aside of land for the expansion of Tisbury Station. it would,
however, be more convincing if that expansion scheme were included in some detail so that everyone could be
confident that sufficient space is being made available for what is clearly a desirable expansion of sustainable
transport. From the AONB Partnership’s position this is the only railway station within the AONB that enables
visitors and inhabitants to travel sustainably to and from one of the largest Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty
in the nation.

21. The submitted reports and documents appear to be more in the role of supporting a scheme that had largely
been decided upon rather than informing and contributing to the design and layout processes. The Design and
Access Statement appears to support that conclusion as its section on Design Evolution has little on the
landscape character of the context of the site, and there is no evidence of exploration of innovative or
imaginative uses or solutions that would address the issues identified in the Neighbourhood Plan. Clearly those
matters are of considerable concern to the local community and the AONB Partnership.

22. | note that the application seeks permission for access, with all other matters reserved. That does, however,
mean that if granted the principle of a development in the form presented would be acceptable. That has a clear
implication that landscape, community, flooding, parking, and sustainability issues have been fully considered.
On the basis of the scheme presented, the AONB Partnership has to advise most strongly that the issues have
not been adequately covered to consider an approval.

23. The AONB Partnership is well aware that the roads to and from Tisbury are less than adequate for a Local
Service Centre. Nevertheless, residents in the AONB do drive to Tisbury not just for the shops and services but
also to use the railway. It seems, therefore, that use of the railway and access to Tisbury are major issues that
do have to be addressed in any development or redevelopment.

24. Turning to specific aspects of the submission, neither the Design and Access Statement nor the Planning
Statement have full regard to Wiltshire Core Strategy Policy 51 as both omit the final part of the policy relating to
developments within AONBs demonstrating how development proposals take account of the relevant AONB
Management Plan. Whilst one expects documents provided by an applicant to strike an upbeat note the D&AS
seems to be going a bit too far on page 8 when it describes the road access to Tisbury as good! It is generally
acknowledged that one of the severest limitations to Tisbury is the narrow and twisting nature of the roads that
access it.

25. | have already mentioned the confusion within all of the documents when the south easterly and north
westerly sides are sometimes referred to as such, and at other times referred to as west and east, and the north
easterly and south westerly sometimes referred to as north and south. Furthermore, the reference to the access
points to the site, at the south westerly end, are sometimes referred to as the western and eastern accesses,
although in one case there is reference to the northern access. Fortunately, the reference to the railway arches
is more consistent.

26. One senses from the Design and Access Statement section on Design Evolution that some fairly basic
designs have been tried out before any strategy for development has been established. That may account for
the somewhat unimaginative approach to what is, admittedly, not an easy site to redevelop.

27. The Planning Statement for a considerable part summarises the specialist reports and therefore carries
forward their assumptions, assertions, or shortcomings. There is a consistent omission of reference to footnote 7
of the NPPF and the documentation, whilst keelﬂagﬁtaiﬂ full other parts of the NPPF, abbreviates and omits
key elements of paragraphs 176 and 177. The proposal is, of course, a major development and the Planning



Statement appears to side-step that, and the NPPF guidance on AONBs and the tests to be addressed by major
development proposals. The effects on the environment are only addressed in part, and what are the public
interest issues and the exceptional circumstances?

28. The proposed traffic scheme on the road outside the site appears to provide additional urbanisation, through
traffic lights, signs, and similar paraphernalia, within the Conservation Area whilst doing nothing to alleviate the
existing parking situation, let alone making provision for a future enhanced level of parking.

29. The Ecological Report, somewhat unexpectedly, indicates that areas of the site with a north westerly aspect
nevertheless provide habitat for reptiles. On the other hand, it would be unusual if the River Nadder landscape
corridor did not support large populations of bats. The report quite fairly points out the negative impact of
domestic cats on bird populations but one significant gap in the report is the lack of focus on small mammals
and the negative impact of cats on them. It should also be noted that the purpose of a Landscape and Ecological
Management Plan is not primarily to focus on ecological matters. It is to ensure that the landscape integration
and mitigation is speedily and successfully achieved and then appropriately and effectively managed thereafter.
Obviously, the environmental mitigation and enhancement needs to be included so such documentation needs
to be prepared by an appropriate qualified and experienced landscape professional in collaboration with
experienced ecologists.

30. The submitted reports provide little basic description about the site and its surroundings, and the Ecology
Report comes closest to providing an understanding of those aspects of the site. Nevertheless, the inter-
relationships between the various reports seem minimal, and the influences of the various features, such as the
grassland, scrub, and wooded areas on the character and qualities of the site, particularly the contribution to
those aspects of the south easterly bank and the south westerly entrance area, are unclear.

31. Whilst one might anticipate that an Ecology Report would welcome any native trees and hedges, | have not
seen in any of the reports any focus on the practicalities of these features, as shown in the illustrative sketches
from the architects, being successfully established on a brownfield site where there is clear acknowledgement of
extensive hard surface platforms and contamination. Without attention to these matters any scheme and
associated sketches have to be regarded as simply aspirational.

32. The LVIA, on page 5, seems to misunderstand the NPPF. It does correctly quote Wiltshire Core Strategy
Policy 51, although there is no demonstration of how the AONB Management Plan has been taken into account.
It also correctly, page 9, quotes from this AONB’s Integrated Landscape Character Assessment that
development pressures around Tisbury and loss of character are key issues. However, it does not provide the
landscape context and basic geographical and topographical details to facilitate an understanding of the location
of the site, and its location in relation to other significant landscape features and elements. It seems to
underestimate the importance of the character of the site as seen from the station and the trains, seemingly
overlooking the fact that the trains provide a means for many people to see and appreciate the landscapes of
this AONB. | am also concerned by the lack of emphasis on a landscape management plan for the whole site,
including designed open spaces, the south westerly access area, and the extensive south eastern slope. It may
well be a reflection of the brief given by the client, but the document appears to be supporting the development
rather than informing and contributing to the design proposals for the totality of the site in the context of its local
environment.

33. There are references to tree planting, and allowing existing planting to grow out, on the south eastern slope.
There does not, however, appear to be any consideration of the shading of the proposed development by that
slope and the planting, nor shading of ground cover and shrub habitats by those trees.

34. The AONB Partnership welcomes the positive approach of the applicant to a 106 agreement and planning
conditions, but these do not appear to be particularly unusual, outstanding, or innovative. The AONB Partnership
is concerned that despite the number of documents submitted many fundamental matters remain to be
addressed and little attention appears to have been given to AONB matters and policies addressing AONB
issues. The submitted scheme seems rather IimiteRagﬂQ %address key matters identified in the
Neighbourhood Plan, and lacks an imaginative approach to what is widely acknowledged to be a challenging



brownfield site.

35. The AONB Partnership is very concerned that none of the submitted documentation recognises, let alone
takes account of, the AONB’s status as an International Dark Sky Reserve. The Lighting Report seems to
consider only lighting of the spine road, and the station’s dark skies compliant lighting is not acknowledged.
There are significant shortcomings in all of the references to lighting, including the Ecology Report, and | attach
as an annex to this letter an appraisal of the situation by the AONB’s dark sky advisor.

Salisbury Civic Society - Object for the following reasons:

Despite the amount of information presented with this application the proposal’s urban design is expedient and
needs to be fundamentally reconsidered. The Station works site, as the name clearly suggests, is defined by its
immediate proximity to Tisbury’s railway station. Unlike the village, however, it is on the ‘other ‘side of the tracks
and tightly constrained by a steep embankment to the south and the train line itself to the north. Its access,
situation and industrial heritage are necessarily difficult and need particular designs to address these
fundamental givens. The plans presented do not rise to this context and instead present an expedient solution
for access and a generic layout for the housing itself.

Access

There are two lanes of vehicle traffic entering the village from the south. In the proposal one of these is given
over for pedestrian access to the development site. This compromise to an already difficult village access is,
certainly, unacceptable to everyone other than the developers. To make matters worse for the village this
expedient solution depends on an ancient pedestrian right of way across the corner of the site and railway tracks
being extinguished. Both of these ‘solutions’ are surely nonstarters and a more fundamental strategy for dealing
with pedestrian access should have been addressed at the onset of the designing.

There is mention and some allowance given to the ongoing idea of the single train line and station platform
being doubled into the development site. This would be a benefit to the rail users by ridding the waiting time
getting through the Tisbury bottleneck and, of course, to the environment by making public transport more
attractive. To work this extra platform will need pedestrian access either tunnelling below or bridging above the
tracks. There is an obvious opportunity and synergy for the railway and the developers to share this access
between themselves yet is conspicuously missed in the limited ‘options’ presented.

The idea of housing and business opportunity on this site is certainly a good one and, as it is set out in the
village’s Local Plan, clearly desired. The developers have interpreted this brief by including a care home
amongst their private housing. This is a good and hopefully a generous idea as it gives the project potential for
meaningful place making and the inclusion of an older generation.

Site Layout

Again, it is a difficult and particular site between the steep embankment and the railway line. It is north facing and
has vehicle access from one end only and a history of industry and a tectonic of large sheds. Likewise, the site
is remarkable for its potential to exploit these givens; a hillside to work with, north light to benefit from, views into
the village, working with and adding to an established natural landscape, long runs of building and making the
movement of pedestrians as simple and interesting as possible.

The urban design presented, however, misses both the opportunities of the site and its proposed programs or
uses.

Page 3
The care home, rather than being central to the schgme, is banished to the corner of the site. The requisite
public open space, rather than being integrated into the plan, is simply placed in the centre of an elongated cull



de sac surrounded by car parking. Why this open space was not shared by care home residents to both enliven
their lives while benefiting from their passive surveillance is certainly a missed opportunity. Instead, it would
appear another expedient and banal lawn (soon to be fouled by dog excrement) as small as possible to fulfil a
planning obligation.

The housing itself might have used the hillside to help hide its parking, grab views across the train line, benefit
from the limited solar gain, or engage with the existing landscape. Instead it is placed symmetrically either side
of central road with suburban housing stamped out as if it were in (another) boundless green field site with no
consideration of its east to west orientation. There were at least two further and obvious ‘options’ where the road
was either side of a single run housing yet these were conspicuously absent.

Even the flood attenuation pond at the end of the site belies the expediency and lack of ambition in

this development proposal. In today’s age of a climate crisis, ever more flooding, and an increasing loss of
natural habitat any urban design should rise above the minimum required and have ambitions to be help solve
the problems rather than do as little as possible. This development can and should include integral green and
blue infrastructure strategies, orient buildings for passive solar gain and passive surveillance, promote dense yet
interesting housing, minimise the presence and use of cars and promote and make easy pedestrian movement.

This proposal does not rise to the challenges and opportunities of the site and needs to go back to some urban
design basics.

9. Planning Considerations

9.1 Principle of development, policy and planning history

The LPA is unable to demonstrate a 5 year land supply (currently confirmed at 4.7 years) and the
provision of additional housing in sustainable locations is generally supported in principle. The current
situation in the South HMA (Housing Land Supply Statement April 2021 and published April 2022) is that
there is a deficit of 68 dwellings to be provided

However, the presumption in favour of sustainable development or tilted balance does not automatically
apply to this site under para 11 of the current NPPF . Footnote 7 includes habitats sites (and those sites
listed in paragraph 180) and/or designated as Sites of Special Scientific Interest. This includes the Area
of Outstanding Natural Beauty, Chilmark bat SAC and the River Avon SAC catchment, and areas prone
to flooding. Therefore, in officers opinion, the “titled balance” is not applicable in this case where any harm
is identified to these sites. For decision taking in the absence of a 5 year supply, para 11 requires:

where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for
determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed7; or

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when
assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.

The site is within the settlement boundary of Tisbury. The adopted Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan specifically
allocates the site for development as part of Policy BL7, as reproduced below:

Page 37



Policy BL.7 Site Allocation: Station Works

The site of Station Works, as identified on the map, is allocated for

iv) employment, residential and parking areas
v) buillding heights, envelope and density
vi) phasing of different uses

comprehensive redevelopment to include an appropriate balance of housing, 6. Make appropriate provision for affordable housing in accordance with Policy
commercial units and parking BL.2, at a minimum level of 30% in accordance with Wiltshire Core Strategy
Core Policy 43. Opportunities for self-build should also be explored
The mix for the development should be informed by a viability test. Development /- Make provision for commercial uses, having particular regard for the needs of
proposals should be set down in a Masterplan which has been the subject of local and current on-site business, in accordar»ce with Policy BL3.
consultation with the community and the other interested parties. The Masterplan 8 The residential and commercial development should be sensitively sited
should indicate the phasing and infrastructure requirements and how their and designed to mitigate any associated adverse impact (such as height of
delivery will be assured. Once agreed, development should proceed strictly in buildings, noise, smell, poliution and visual impact) arising from either use; or
accordance with the Masterplan. from the use of the railway
9. The development must reflect the site's setting within the CCWWD AONB
The Masterplan shall be in accordance with the other palicies set out in this plan and its proximity to the Conservation Area. This should include consideration
and in-addition: of the impact of traffic on the neighbouring settlements, the natural landscape
and historic buildings in the CCWWD AONB, the effect on the skyline for
|.  Proposals should be informed by a contaminated land survey and potential fight pollution and views from the south facing areas in Tisbury
remediation scheme, the level of information provided to be in line with the and the sensitivity of design, in relation to the veracular of the adjacent
Wiltshire Core Strategy. Conservation Area zones. Landscaping should positively reinforce the site's
2. Liaise with Network Rail (and other parties as required) to identify and setting in an AONB for all usemfm v:hker"e‘poss:b{c result in a net gain for
safeguard land to meet their current and future operational requirements biodiversity in accordance :Nrth Policy HNA )
including appropriate access and parking provision for the southern side of 10. Development should be of a very high design standard, reflecting the
the line. predominant local vernacular; eg. use of local brick and stone building
3. Make provision for an appropriate pedestrian accesses to and from the new materials which predominate on the southermn edge of the village and Tisbury
development and the rest of the village; and show how this is to be phased, Railway Station
as part of the development. I 1. All necessary species and habitat surveys must be carmied out to determine
4. The estimated capacity of the site is 60 dwellings in two storey buildings the extent to which the development would affect the bat species that are
plus commercial uses, but density overall must be appropriate for the edge features of the Chilmark Quarries SAC and appropriate i taken to
of a rural settiement in an AONB with the potential to impact on the avoid and mitigate impacts to roosts, foraging and commuting habitats
Conservation Area and two Special Areas of Conservation (SAC) (the River |2 Development should strive to have a minimal (approaching zero)

Avon SAC and the Chilmark Quarries SAC).
5. The Masterplan design and layout should detail the proposed:
i) mix of uses
ii) areas of public, private and amenity space
i) movement routes for different users (into and out of Tisbury Railway
Station)

environmental impact in its use of natural resources such as energy and
water and consider how the development can have a positive environmental
impact. Wherever viable, masterplanning should utilise industry best practice
on integrating principles of sustainable, low-carbon design, induding the use of
renewable energy and energy efficiency (e.g BREEAM Communities)

Tisbury is classified as a Local Service Centre within the WCS settlement hierarchy. The role of Local Service
Centres is to provide for a significant rural hinterland providing for local employment opportunities, communities
facilities and/or affordable housing provision. The broad principle of development within the defined settlement
boundaries is established, subject to proposals meeting other policies of the development plan.

WCS Core Policy 27 sets out the policy approach for the Tisbury Community Area. Key issues and

considerations for Tisbury are:

To maintain Tisbury’s role as a local employment centre;

[}

e To address a lack of tourist accommodation in the area;

e To ensure that new development is sympathetically designed to enhance local distinctiveness;
[ ]

[}

To conserve the landscape of the AONB; and

To ensure that any new development at the station works site explores the opportunity to provide

additional parking for the adjacent railway station.

In relation to policy BL7, the key matters are:

Masterplan and public consultation

The preamble text to the above policy BL7 indicates that a Masterplan should be created in consultation with

other third parties and the community, and the policy indicates the Masterplan must address the 12 criteria listed
by policy BL7. This report assesses whether the submitted scheme address the 12 main aims and objectives of

the above policy. Most of the aims are discussed in other sections of this report, but some main principles are
explored below. Page 38



There is no formal definition of what a Masterplan should contain in national or local planning guidance, other
than it is a framework for the redevelopment of an area or site. The NPPF states that at para 132:

132. Design quality should be considered throughout the evolution and assessment of individual proposals.
Early discussion between applicants, the local planning authority and local community about the
design and style of emerging schemes is important for clarifying expectations and reconciling local and
commercial interests. Applicants should work closely with those affected by their proposals to evolve
designs that take account of the views of the community. Applications that can demonstrate early,
proactive and effective engagement with the community should be looked on more favourably than
those that cannot.

Policy BL.7 of the TNDP states that:

Development proposals should be set down in a Masterplan which has been the subject of consultation with
the community and the other interested parties. The Masterplan should indicate the phasing and
infrastructure requirements and how their delivery will be assured. Once agreed, development should
proceed strictly in accordance with the Masterplan.

The appropriateness of the inclusion of a requirement for a masterplan was considered by the independent
examiner for the TNDP:

... the Qualifying Body has commented that “masterplans developed in partnership with the local
community, LPA and developer are a requirement of Core Policy 2 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy for
strategically important sites and more generally required within the supporting text and although this site
does not form a strategic site as part of CP2 it is important to the Tisbury Community and is in effect
strategic to Tisbury. The community also want to ensure a good development is delivered. Tisbury wish to
follow the example of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and is felt to be a reasonable approach. A masterplan
approach does not need to be too onerous; the community simply asks to be part of and consulted on the
masterplan development so that this can be agreed with the community prior to any planning application
being submitted and thereby reducing or eliminating any objections that may be received if a planning
application is submitted ‘cold’. This would also enable any discussion to be had with the new owners over
why or not they are proposing to include any elements of infrastructure requested and enable discussion
with Network Rail.”

Itis clear from the submitted Statement of Community Involvement that the applicants have engaged in a range
of efforts to engage with the community and parish councils, and the results of this engagement have led to a
number of adjustments to the proposals that are now presented. However, given the volume and nature of the
various third party comments, the scheme is not considered to be acceptable by many local people or the
relevant Parish Council’s.

In summary, engagement appears to have comprised the following:

¢ Engagement with the Wiltshire Council highways officer and the Council ecologist;
e Formal pre-application request to Wiltshire Council planning department and highways officers;

e In principle discussions with Network Rail, and formal pre-application request and response from Network
Rail;

e Tisbury Surgery/Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group regards care home

e Tisbury Parish Council/West Tisbury Parish Council/Local Ward Councillors, including initial meeting to
introduce proposals and indicative layout; %}e meeting to discuss proposals in more detail, attendance at
public meeting (Victoria Hall), further meeti g@gﬁ ¥$Bury Parish Council to review outcome of public
consultation



e Community engagement, including Virtual consultation from 6" May to 6" June 2021, including dedicate
website, delivery of approximately 1,400 leaflets to all residential addresses in Tisbury village, explaining
the proposed development and how to respond to the consultation.

The applicants Planning Statement acknowledges that the responses from the community have been both
positive and negative (at paras 7.4 & 7.5), and provides a useful table of the general types of responses, as
below:

SUPPORT/POSITIVE COMNCERN/NEGATIVE

Site is an eyesore and needs redeveloped General concerns that the site is being
overdeveloped

Housing is needed in the village, especially for No provision of a bridge or tunnel over/under

younger people/families. the railway

Affordable housing is needed in the village. Traffic lights will cause delays/congestion, and
are not needed

Local roads are unsafe for pedestrians and Care home is too large/not needed

speeding is an issue.

Rail safeguarded area supported by Network Block of flats is bulky and affects setting of a

Rail. listed building.

In response to the above, the applicants indicate that the final scheme as submitted was adjusted thus:

o The size of the proposed care home has been reduced from 70-bedspaces to
30-40 bedspaces. This will also allow the provision of community medical
facilities within the same building footprint on the site, which could also facilitate
new premises for Tisbury surgery.

o An indicative footpath route up the landscape bank to the south of the site has been
deleted, both to avoid conflict with adjoining private landowners and also to protect

wildlife habitat on the bank from encroachment.

o Although indicative only, the layout for the block of flats has been amended to split the
flats into two smaller blocks rather than a single large block, thus reducing impact on
views from the listed former station hotel.

o The proposal will include traffic signal sensors which will reduce average wait times at
the lights still further at quieter times.

o The pedestrian footway/cycleway under the Three Arch Bridge has been reduced in
height further following analysis of updated flood data, thus further reducing its impact.
(Use of the third arch of the bridge was investigated. This arch carries the River
Nadder, part of the River Avon SAC system. Use of this arch for the
pedestrian/cycleway would involve culverting the river at this point, as well as
removing significant amounts of trees and other vegetation. This option is not therefore
considered acceptable in Iandscﬁfﬁg@riﬂa@e or ecological terms by the developer).



Given the nature of the third party concerns expressed as part of this proposal, officers had suggested to the
applicant that further discussions may be appropriate with the public, in order to address some of the concerns.
Whilst the applicant indicated recently that it may indeed discuss matter with Tisbury PC, no further details or
adjustments to the application scheme have been forthcoming.

Housing need and guantum

Point 4 of policy BL7 indicates that the “estimated capacity” of the site is considered to be 60 dwellings. The
current proposal envisages 86 dwellings, and up to a 40 bed care home (erroneously indicates as a 70 bed in
parts of the submitted documents). The applicants argue that there is no real basis for 60 dwellings, and that the
site is capable of taking more housing, and that the scheme makes efficient use of the land. Members should
note that the housing allocation figures in the Development Plan are also intended to be “at least” figures.

In officers opinion, the elongated application site is of a significant size, and the submitted indicative plan
appears to indicates that 86 dwellings and a care home could fit onto the site without any significant harm
resulting in terms of the final scheme being overdeveloped or cramped. Whilst the concerns of the Council’s
Urban Designer, Landscape officer, and Conservation officer are noted, it has been agreed with them that most
the detailed concerns they have referred to in their submissions can be dealt with as part of any future
application for the detailed design and layout of the buildings and the site. The Council would however also like
to see any future application being submitted with a supporting Design Code document or similar (as previously
promised by the applicant), which clarifies the qualities of the materials, landscaping, and architectural detailing,
and how they are complimentary to and would enhance the site and the general area.

Care home / employment uses

TNDP policy BL.7 sets a requirement in addition to the delivery of approximately 60 dwellings, for the
development of: ‘commercial units, having regard for the needs of local and current on-site business, in
accordance with Policy BL.3’

The exact quanta of commercial development is not specified by the policy. It is explained within the supporting
text that while business activities on the site have reduced over the past number of years the site remains
Tisbury’s largest commercial site. The supporting text goes on to state:

‘A business park comprising units of a size and form required by modern businesses could attract a diverse
employment offer. This could provide for technology-focused businesses, or similar enterprises within use
Class B1 supporting the needs of smaller local firms, as well as businesses moving into the area. This would
help to minimise out-commuting by extending the availability of local employment opportunities.’

Instead of industrial/commercial uses, the proposal suggests a 30-40 bed care home, located at the southern
end of the site (it is noted that a few of the submitted supporting documents refer confusingly and erroneously
to a previously proposed 70 bed care home)

The applicant’s Planning Statement argues that:

The business and employment use of the Station Works site has been in steady decline for many decades, this
despite its reasonably central location to the village. The relative distance from Tisbury to the main road network,
combined with narrow and often winding lanes accpﬁ'g%t _IAL/iIIage, mean that the site no longer satisfies
modern locational requirements for many businesses, particularly those requiring supply and distribution of
goods.



The linear nature of the Station Works site makes locating more traditional business uses on the site challenging,
whilst the significant costs of decontaminating the site mean that traditional employment uses would render the
development unviable. Concerns have also been expressed during the community consultation regarding traffic
impacts on neighbouring villages and narrow lanes. Locating further businesses on the site would be likely to
exacerbate such issues due to commercial vehicle movements to and from the site on the surrounding local
road network

We would normally expect the application to be accompanied by evidence of a marketing exercise to support
this assessment in order to justify a move away from the policy expectation. This would need to be broadly
along the lines of criteria v. of WCS Core Policy 35:

Within the Principal Settlements, Market Towns, Local Service Centres and Principal Employment Areas
proposals for the redevelopment of land or buildings currently or last used for activities falling within use
classes B1, B2 and B8 must demonstrate that they meet, and will be assessed against, the following criteria:

v. There is valid evidence that the site has no long term and strategic requirement to remain in employment
use; the ability of the site to meet modern business needs must be considered, as well as its strategic value
and contribution to the local and wider economy both currently and in the long term. It must be shown that
the site is no longer viable for its present or any other employment use and that, in addition, it has remained
unsold or un-let for a substantial period of time (at least 6 months), following genuine and sustained
attempts to sell or let it on reasonable terms for employment use, taking into account prevailing market
conditions.

Regards care home proposals, policy 46 of the WCS indicates that: In exceptional circumstances, the
provision of specialist accommodation outside but adjacent to the Principal Settlements and Market Towns
will be considered, provided that (inter alia):

viii. a genuine, and evidenced, need is justified

ix. environmental and landscape considerations will not be compromised

x. facilities and services are accessible from the site

Xi. its scale and type is appropriate to the nature of the settlement and will respect the character and

setting of that settlement.

With regard to the care home element of the proposal, the requirement of criterion viii of WCS Core Policy 46
does not appear to have been clearly addressed, with regard to demonstrating/evidencing the need for a care
facility in this location. The Council’s current data on need is from 2011. New data is currently being gathered on
this point, and is initially suggesting that there is limited need in the tisbury area, and not enough to support a
30-40 bed care home. However, the emerging figures only relates to care homes which provide financial support
from the Council. It does not include self funding private care need.

Provision of a care home is not referred to in Policy BL7, but other housing policy in the Tisbury NP does refer to
care home requirements (BL1 & 2). In justification, the applicants state that:

The development of a 30-40-bed care home, together with associated medical facilities, represents a
commercial use as well as providing supported accommodation for older people, for which there is an
acknowledged need in the area. The care home and medical facilities use could be expected to provide in
excess of 40 full and part-time jobs in a range of skills and functions, providing significant employment in the
local area. This would also represent an increase in employment from that existing on the site now, which is
estimated to be 20-22 full and part time jobs...The care home use will provide much needed local employment,
whilst also being a use compatible with a residepié_lgiévﬂczpment.



The applicants viability assessment envisaged an alternative scheme containing 86 houses, and 8 industrial
units (in lieu of the care home). This assessment indicated that if the current proposal were to be altered to be
more in line with the allocated policy BL7, then the alternative scheme would not be viable enough to provide
policy compliant affordable housing. So it appears that even if a more policy-compliant scheme were to be put
forward, that scheme would be unlikely to provide the full required amount of affordable housing on the site.
(Members should note on this point that other S106 contributions could be reduced to compensate, but either
way, the impacts of the scheme would not be fully mitigated).

Summary

The scheme would not provide the type of industrial employment which is referred to by policy BL7.
Furthermore, the number of dwellings proposed would exceed that required by TNP policy BL7 and current
estimates for the area. Additionally there remains no submitted justification for this scale of care home to serve
the Tisbury area. No detailed layout plans have been provided which indicate how such a proposal would
incorporate a medical facility or how large it would be, or whether such a facility is available to the wider public,
and if so, would there be sufficient parking on site.

However, in discussions with the relevant Council departments, it is considered that the provision of 86 dwellings
(26 approximately about the suggested figure in the policy) would not cause a significant issue in a general land
use planning or policy sense, particularly as the Council cannot demonstrate a 5 year housing supply, and
because the housing figures in the Development Plan (of which the Tisbury NP is part) are “at least” figures, not
limits or targets.

Additionally, it appears that a more policy compliant scheme containing industrial units would also not be viable
enough to provide the full quota of affordable housing required by policy CP43. Furthermore, the provision of a
care home would at least provide a form of local employment, and would provide a local community facility in the
broadest sense. Whilst limited justification has been submitted by the applicant, the Council’s own evidence
related to care home need dates from 2011, and new evidence is only currently in the process of being
compiled. Whilst this is current indicating that there might be limited need, it however seems unlikely that any
such report would indicate that there was no need for a care home, and it is noted that the current adopted
Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan suggests that there is currently limited provision of such accommodation in the
area. Therefore there is likely to be some public benefit resulting from the provision of a care home and possible
medical facility, which would weigh in favour of the proposal.

Thus it is considered that whilst the scheme would not achieve the balanced mix of commercial employment
units and housing envisaged by policy BL7 of the Neighbourhood Plan, a public benefit would result from the
provision of a care home, and the provision of 86 dwellings would contribute modestly to the Council housing
land supply.

9.2 Design, scale and impact to the amenity of the area, including the adjacent Heritage Assets

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2044 require that the determination of planning applications must be made in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. At the current time of the statutory
development plan in respect of this application consists of the Wiltshire Core Strategy (WCS) (Adopted January
2015); Section 66 of The Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires ‘special regard’
to be given to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting; Section 72 of The Planning (Listed
Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 which states that in the exercise of any functions, with respect to any
buildings or other land in a conservation area, under or by any virtue of any of the provisions mentioned in this
Section, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance
of that area; and the relevant ‘saved’ policies from Fhaggis@gy District Local Plan (SDLP).



Policy BL7 criterions 4,5,9 & 10 refer to the design of the scheme, and its impact on the wider landscape of the
AONB and the Conservation Area. Policy CP51, 57 & 58 of the WCS are also of relevance to these matters, as
are the relevant sections and paragraphs of the NPPF related to design, heritage assets, and landscape impact.

The existing industrial site is considered to be in a poor visual condition, and rather at odds with its rural fringe
location adjacent the Conservation Area. The removal of the existing industrial buildings could potentially offer a
general visual improvement to the area. However, the site is located in a prominent and elevated location and
visible from Tisbury and the wider countryside of the AONB.

The applicants Planning Statement explains the illustrative layout thus (extract):

e The Site Layout is linear in form, structured along a street which is parallel with the railway line, albeit
with subtle variations in geometry. The street is punctuated by a square at the centre of the site, which
(either in the event that the railway is dualled or not) creates a secondary access and forecourt to the
Station.

e Of the two existing access points from Jobbers Lane, the eastern one is used for vehicular access as it
provides better visibility splays, whilst the western one is retained for pedestrian access.

¢ The wooded banks which flank these two access points would be retained largely in their present form,
as they have ecological value and act as a characteristic rural approach to the village from the south.

e The square next to the Station is a focal point for the development and could permit future access to the
station and an alternative route to the village centre via a station footbridge. This footpath link would
however be dependent upon any future rail improvements proposed by Network Rail. In the interim
period, the site would not have access to the existing Chantry pedestrian level crossing or public footpath
at this northern end of the site. This is in response to concerns expressed by Network Rail on safety
grounds.

o Built form is in terraces, semi-detached and detached buildings at 2, 2.5 and 3 storeys.

The Council’'s Conservation officer has raised the following points:

The first thing | note is that this is an outline application presumably seeking in principle support for development
at the site, hence the absence of a detailed layout.l note that James Webb of Forum Heritage has supplied a
heritage statement (marked draft) dated October 2020. James is familiar with the historic development of Tisbury
having part authored the Tisbury Conservation Area Appraisal.

James identifies the designated and non-designated heritage assets that are potentially affected by the proposals.
He also includes a plan, within the appendices, that identifies key views and also ‘zones of sensitivity’. | agree
with James’ assessment in respect of his identification of the heritage assets likely to be impacted by the
development and also note his plan and would concur with the flagged up ‘zones of sensitivity’. | hope the
developers will pay heed to areas of sensitivity that are flagged up in the report.

At pre-application stage | did not submit an outright objection to the development of the site on the basis of harm
to designated heritage assets and their settings. | concur with James (his paragraph 7.4) that the site could be
developed without harming the setting of the conservation area or the setting of heritage assets, and indeed, could
offer improvements given the nature of the existing site.

We have an indicative layout plan which might seem to suggest that the proposed care home is within one of the
‘zones of sensitivity’. | therefore have reservations about siting this building in this location. However in the
absence of a detailed design, together with a heritage impact assessment from Forum Heritage, and schematic
views relating to the views identified at figures 9/10 (view from Vicarage Road outwards towards the site) and
figure 11 (view from the High Street looking southwards towards Bridge House) | am unable to assess the actual
impact of the proposals and must reserve judgement until details are submitted (my emphasis)

The Council Urban Design officer has also raiseﬁg(gr% éslhes with the overall design concept of the scheme, as
below (summary)



The development proposed is conveyed by the ‘Sketch Site Layout’ and D&AS which comprise the ‘Masterplan
design and /ayout’ required in point 5 of NP Policy BL.7 for the site (apart from 5vi) phasing of different uses is not
indicated). For my reasons below this would not accord with the high standard of design and place shaping required
by Core Policy 57: in its context and setting it would appear a distinctly concentrated mass and suburban built
form out of character within this surrounding landscape setting detached from the main built up settlement of
Tisbury by the river meadows. ...Point 4 of the NP Policy BL.7 states the estimated capacity of the site for the
Masterplan as 60 dwellings in two storey buildings whereas about 86 dwellings appear to be shown and a
significant number of these incorporate three storeys ( as attic (houses) and part attic (apartments) second floor
levels). This would suggest creating room for more strips and pockets of landscaping including tree planting
creating a fragmented massing of buildings across the length of the development.

The Council’s Landscape officer has indicated that (summary):

o The illustrative sketches provided in the DAS are quite useful however sketch 4 illustrates a 3 storey
building, larger than policy requirements, and a footpath is illustrated but this is not included on the plan.
Sketch 5 demonstrates the large size/scale of the residential care home which is at odds with the scale
of the townscape. It should be noted that the trees filtering views onto the site are in residential gardens
and cannot be relied on for visual or landscape mitigation.

e The application included a Landscape and Visual Appraisal. This was undertaken in two stages, initial
baseline appraisal followed by an assessment of the scheme. The overall outcome is that there will be
some beneficial landscape and visual effects in terms of restoring a degraded landscape into one with
opportunities to flourish. The mediocre scheme would suggest that the masterplan development was not
‘landscape led’. The mitigation proposed is limited to native trees and hedges within the development
and its perimeter to provide screening, the latter is not obvious in the masterplan and the former is
within residential garden, therefore unreliable.

e The planning statement, at paragraph 6.25, explains that the layout of the site has been designed to
incorporate important views in and out of the site. It includes the ‘verdant backdrop’ to the southeast, to
be retained and enhanced. There is no information of the proposed enhancement measures on the
illustrative plan.

e There will no doubt be an improvement to the overall landscape and visual appearance of the site even
though it is below community expectation. But even at this stage | would expect the illustrative
masterplan to deliver a meaningful scheme. The Urban Design Officer has also pointed out some useful
suggestions for tackling the design issues and in that regard, | defer to his comments.

The concerns of the AONB Partnership regards the overall design and impact on the landscape are listed
elsewhere in this report. The consultation response from Wessex Water (see Drainage section of report) also
suggests that a final layout may need to be different from that proposed due to the presence of a water main
running through part of the site.

Summary

As a result of the above issues, the applicant intimated that a design code and other details would be prepared
and submitted to address these points. However, to date, no such additional information has been submitted.

It is also unclear how the part of the site within the railway protection area would be treated in the short to medium
term prior to the land being required. The layout plan suggests that land would not be accessible, but the artists
impressions supplied suggest the land would be utilised as a pathway serving the development. It is also not clear
how this land would be accessed should this land be needed in future for the railway or how this may impact on
the general amenities of development.

The sketch views provided also seems to suggesPeﬂlgﬁ #bn differing from that shown on the indicative scale
diagram. The submission appears to be a mixture of a previous and revised scheme. No schematic diagrams



have been submitted which may more show how prominent the development may be from certain viewpoints and
the impact on the landscape of the AONB.

Notwithstanding, as the consultees allude to, the site is and has historically been visually detrimental to the wider
area and the landscape, and the redevelopment of the site for a large quantum of development is considered
acceptable by virtue of the allocation of the land by policy BL7 of the TNP. Whilst the redevelopment of the site
would also be prominent in the wider area to the west, it is considered that such impacts could result in a visual
improvement overall compared to the existing and historical situation, if a future scheme is of an attractive overall
design, including materials, and landscaping.

In officers opinion, the elongated site is of a significant size, and the submitted indicative plan appears to
indicates that 86 dwellings and a care home could fit onto the site without any significant harm resulting in
terms of the final scheme being overdeveloped or cramped. Whilst the concerns of the Council’s Urban
Designer, Landscape officer, and Conservation officer are noted, it has been agreed with them that most the
detailed concerns they have referred to in their submissions can be dealt with as part of any future application
for the detailed design and layout of the buildings and the site. The Council would however also like to see any
future application being submitted with a supporting Design Code document or similar, which clarifies the
qualities of the materials, landscaping, and architectural detailing, and how they are complimentary to and
would enhance the site and the general area.

As a result, as access is the only detailed matter at this stage, and other layout and design matters are reserved,
it is considered that it is possible for such matters to be considered at the reserved matters stage should the
Inspector approve the current outline consent.

9.3 Impact on Amenity

The site is located some distance from most residential properties in Tisbury, with the closest being to the north
and west of the site across the railway line. Whilst the proposed development may well be visible from these
dwellings (particularly those to the north adjacent the river bridge and footpath) and there may be some
overlooking created from the proposed dwellings, it is considered that any relationship would be at a suitable
distance, and the loss of privacy would not be so significant as to warrant refusal, particularly given existing mature
planting and the railway line between the proposal site and the existing housing.

This industrial site is directly adjacent the Tisbury Railway station and railway line, and the applicants
contamination survey confirms there may be contaminants in the site. The applicants noise and vibration survey
concludes that:

The Stage 1 assessment indicates a low to medium noise risk across the site. A vibration survey has been
undertaken and vibration levels have been found to be acceptable for residential use. Noise sources affecting the
site are trains, announcements from the train station, a substation and existing commercial uses.

Noise propagation across the site has been calculated using noise mapping software. Appropriate external and
internal noise criteria have been considered to minimise adverse impacts on health and quality of life as a result
of the new development. The majority of the site is subject to low noise levels and suitable for residential use with
minimal mitigation.

However, some areas have higher noise exposure. Appropriate mitigation measures have been outlined which
should be developed during detailed design, including building orientation, screening and thermal double- glazing
and trickle vents. With appropriate mitigation, the proposed scheme is not expected to experience a significant
adverse noise impact and the site is considered acceptable for the proposed residential use.

The Council’s Public Protection have advised that:

There are multiple contaminants onsite that currently pose an unacceptable risk to human health.
The development site is located adjacent to Tisbury railway station and the main line between Waterloo and
Exeter. It is noted the final layout of the site and internal layout of the dwellings has not yet been finalised.

| have reviewed the Noise Assessment completg)d%g@eﬂtg Acoustic dated July 2020 which identifies that
mitigation is required to meet internal and external ambient noise levels. Mitigation is detailed at Section 8 of the



report. The proposed development scheme includes development of a Care Home. No details have been
submitted in respect of building services plant that may be installed for the care home, or details about delivery
schedules to and from that site, | have therefore recommended specific conditions below which relate to the care
home.

Having appraised the application, | recommend conditions are applied to any approval of this application.

In light of the response of the Council’s public protection officer, the scheme would be acceptable subject to
conditions. Thus the scheme could not have been refused on this basis in officers opinion. Conditions will be
agreed between the parties at the future Inquiry.

9.4 Highway safety/parking/linkages

Policy BL7 of TNP contains a number of criteria which relate to access works and pedestrian linkage, namely
criteria 2,3 & 5. Policy 60 & 61 of the WCS also relate to highway issues and works.

The road system adjacent to the site and leading to and from it is relatively narrow and rural in nature. As described
in the applicants Planning Statement, the site currently has a dual vehicular access onto Jobbers Lane, just south
of the railway bridge where the lane crosses beneath the Waterloo to Exeter railway line. Jobbers Lane continues
beneath the railway bridge, becoming Station Road at a sharp right- hand bend, and continuing past Tisbury
Railway Station toward the High Street. The narrow footway continues beyond the railway bridge where it connects
with a public footpath toward the village centre on Church Street, known locally as the Stubbles Path. There is no
footway on either side of Station Road after this point.

The access for this development would be retained from Jobbers Lane. However, as referred to elsewhere in
this report, the access/egress to the site suffers from flooding/drainage issues, particularly under and around the
railway bridge. The application therefore proposes to close one of the three arches under the railway bridge and
provide a raised pedestrian/cycle walkway above the level of any flooding. The following improvements to the
site access and pedestrian/cycle access are listed by the applicant:

To close the eastern bore of the railway bridge to vehicular traffic and
create a widened pedestrian and cycle lane under the bridge.

¢ To widen the existing footways on Jobbers Lane/Station Road a standard
suitable for a combined pedestrian/cycle shared space, between the site

entrance and a point opposite the Stubbles Path.

e To raise the height of the footway and underbridge lane to create a safe means

of access-based climate change flood scenarios.

e To provide a pedestrian crossing point as part of associated traffic

management proposals set out below.

e The introduction of a section of single directional traffic movement between a

controlled by traffic signals,

e The traffic signals to also include pedestrian phasing to allow pedestrians to
cross from the site access to the footway on the east side of Jobbers Lane and

vice versa.

Page 47



e A 40-mph speed limit at a suitable point to the south of the site entrance along
Jobbers Lane.

The applicants Statement also refers to the aspirations to have a bridge over the railway or a tunnel:

Firstly, any improvements at Tisbury Station remain uncertain in terms of funding and timescales..,
albeit that some technical work has taken place. Network Rail are supportive of the rail safeguarded
area set out on the indicative layout plan for the development but have not specifically asked for any
provision of bridges or tunnels. In addition, the Neighbourhood Plan Policy for the site does not
specifically require provision of a footbridge or tunnel, rather requiring the safeguarding of land for rail
improvements.

Secondly, in the absence of any pedestrian crossing of the railway via a footbridge or tunnel, the
development should provide safe pedestrian, cycle and disabled access to the village and the
station...., the existing highway and footway in Jobbers Lane/Station Road is inadequate and indeed
dangerous for pedestrians and cyclists, and the limited footways too narrow for wheelchair users. There
has been much local concern noted regarding vehicle speeds in Station Road/Jobbers Lane. It is
important therefore that the development is supported by safe and appropriately designed pedestrian
and cycle access to the rest of the village, particularly in the absence of any clear proposals for
improvements at Tisbury Station.

The applicants have submitted a Transport Assessment which concludes that:

......... the results indicate that an increase of 45 additional vehicle trips are anticipated on
the local road network during the AM Peak. This equates to less than 1 vehicle movement
every 1 minute and is not considered to have any material impact on the existing road
network in terms of highway capacity or highway safety. In accordance with Wiltshire Local
Transport Plan — Car Parking Strategy, a total of 207 car parking spaces should be provided
as part of the Proposed Development. Appropriate provisions for cycling has also been put
forward in order to encourage local residents to cycle more. The Proposed Development will
provide secure, covered and conveniently located cycle parking facilities for flats, visitors and
the residential care home. Itis envisaged that appropriate cycle storage will be feasible within
private gardens for each of the houses within the Proposed Development.

It is concluded that the Proposed Development can provide safe and suitable access for all
users. Travel to and from the Site has been carefully considered and the proposed layout has
been designed to accommodate the needs of all users of the Site. Overall this Transport
Assessment concludes that the Proposed Development can be safely and conveniently
accessed by other, sustainable modes of transport.

The Council’s Highways officer has commented thus (extract):

The Transport Assessment accompanying the application correctly indicates that existing provision for
pedestrians and cyclists in the vicinity of the site is very poor.

Page 48



Network Rail oppose any increase in use of the level crossing at the north of the site, and an existing footway on
the opposite side of the proposed access (along Jobbers Lane) is less than 1m in width with no reasonable
prospect of improvement and/or integration.

(Network Rail do not accept the applicant’s statement that future residents would not have access to the existing
Chantry pedestrian level crossing or public footpath at this northern end of the site, believing that any boundary
treatment stands the chance of being breached especially considering that the crossing provides a more direct
route to the town for most of the development.)

In order to compensate for an otherwise lack of suitable pedestrian/cycle access, the applicant proposes the
closure of the southbound railway arch to vehicular traffic, to be replaced by the installation of a new elevated
3m wide pedestrian/cycle route at a height to coincide with flood thresholds. (I do not propose to comment on
the flood levels quoted, but should the EA argue for a higher level, it may well compromise the minimum
headroom required for such facilities.)

It would also seem obvious that such a structure would occupy a significant volume within the arch, thereby
reducing the space that would otherwise be available for flood storage.

Were such a scheme to progress, it would require advertising and resolving to approve a Traffic Order that
would secure closure of the section of the road in question to vehicular traffic — it would also rely on the Highway
Authority being prepared to license the provision of such a structure over/on the public highway.

The TA indicates that the surface level of the proposed structure would be built at 91.3m AOD, some 0.6m
above existing road level (quoted as ‘approximately’ 90.63m AOD)

Campbell Reith’s drawing numbered 0002 P1 shows the distance between the surface of the proposed elevated
structure and the underside of the bridge arch to be 3118mm. The plated height of the bridge shows the height
of the bridge arch above road surface level to be 10°3” (ie 3124mm) ie virtually the same. It is not possible to
reconcile the design drawing with the situation on the ground.

On the basis of those measurements, it is unclear whether such a structure would fit within the arch. The
structure and railings would occupy most space within the arch, and would need to accord with DfT’s Local
Transport Note 1/20 which looks for clear headroom across the whole width of 2.4m. There is insufficient
information to demonstrate whether those standards and requirements can be met.

There is also clear photographic evidence to show that there are existing services and drainage facilities within
and across the road proposed for covering with the elevated structure, but no indication of the effect of the
proposed works or how their provision could be safeguarded.

The nature of the elevated structure is such that any detritus that gathered below the structure would be
extremely hard to remove.

The plan accompanying the Transport Assessment proposes that the elevated structure will be built using piling
techniques. The TA gives no indication whether Network Rail have been approached to seek their view on
whether such a procedure would be acceptable so close to this stone arched structure.

The TA indicates that the structure would be built using open mesh decking. That is not a material that would be
accepted for adoption by the Highway Authority.

Closing one of the arches to traffic would result in all vehicles having to use the significantly narrower and lower
(currently southbound) single arch. To facilitate such a proposal, the TA indicates the provision of a set of shuttle
traffic signals, one set at each end of the closure (at the northern end, pedestrian crossing facilities are
indicated). There is insufficient information to demonstrate whether there is sufficient space to accommodate
signal poles and other associated infrastructure as well as sufficient road width noting the proximity of stop lines

and potential queue lengths.
Page 49



Alongside, the TA shows plans for significant kerb realignment at both ends of the closure indicating tight non-
standard reverse curves, and on a map base that is not accurate to show whether it could be delivered within
the red line of the application accurate and/or any other constraints.

In terms of the need for wider connectivity, the TA indicates that the proposed elevated structure would land at a
point which would allow access into the town centre via footpaths TISB74 and WTIS14. | am advised however
that these paths are also subject to flooding, nor suitable or permitted for cycling.

Even in the unlikely event that all of the above could be resolved, the proposed arrangements for pedestrians
and cyclists to access would be lengthy and inconvenient.

Whilst land is shown as safeguarded within the site for the potential railway line dualling and second platform, |
understand that Network Rail (and the rail industry in general) has no firm plan in place to undertake these
works currently. These works were proposed in the West of England Line Study 2020 (part of NR’s modular
strategic planning) but the proposals are unfunded and at an early stage of business case development. It is
thus unclear whether this safeguarded land would be sufficient for these purposes at this stage.

Conclusion
Given the above, | see no way of being able to recommend a conditional approval.

The basic premise of closing a road open to all traffic and replacing it with an exclusive facility that has been put
forward to do no more than improve the planning case for an individual planning proposal is in my view
unacceptable.

| do not believe that the Council would be prepared to sponsor or support a corresponding Traffic Regulation
Order, nor do | believe the Council would be prepared to enter a license for construction of the elevated
structure.

Other proposed works including installation of traffic signals and kerb/road realignment are a) insufficiently
detailed to show whether they can be delivered and b) shown to an unacceptable standard.

In detail, (bearing in mind that detailed approval for access is sought at this stage) there remains uncertainty
over whether such a structure could be built to a suitable standard within the confines of the arch, or whether the
practicalities of construction and ongoing maintenance can be dealt with. (in that context, | am doubtful whether
Network Rail would agree to a piled structure, but | accept it is for them to be asked and to respond to.)

Notwithstanding the above, the overall approach to pedestrian/cycle connectivity is contrived, poorly conceived
and fails to achieve an acceptable access arrangement for the site. It is noted that previous planning
submissions (S/2002/1367 & S/2003/2547) on this site were refused by Salisbury District Council for broadly the
same reason. These latest proposals are not considered to have overcome these issues.

In conclusion, | would currently recommend the application be refused.....
Summary

The proposed walkway would result in the loss of part of the public highway, and result in highway issues to the
operation of that part of the highway. As outlined elsewhere, there also appear to be flooding/drainage issues
raised by this structure. Notwithstanding, once users of the walkway join the existing Station Road, there is then
no additional highway improvements into Tisbury centre. Together with the closure of the existing railway line
footpath to future residents, this means that sustainable access to the services and facilities of Tisbury centre
would not be readily available or prioritised, particular at times of flooding events.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would not be in accordance with aims and objectives of policy BL7 of
the Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan, and would also not accord with the aims of the transport and highways policies
of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, or the NPPF.

Page 50

9.5 Impact on railway station and line and infrastructure




Point 2 of policy BL7 of TNP indicates that any development proposal should:

2. Liaise with Network Rail (and other parties as required) to identify and
safeguard land to meet their current and future operational requirements
including appropriate access and parking prowvision for the southern side of
the line.

Policy TR2 of the TNP also indicates that:

Development at or within the environs of the Tisbury Railway Station
that protects and enhances the existing railway service will be supported.
To ensure the necessary co-ordination, proposals should be developed

in conjunction with the Local Planning Authority, Network Rail and other
interested parties as appropriate.

Proposals should have appropriate regard for the following:

I. Increasing and accommodating the use of public transport - train, bus and
tax.

2. Accommodating sustainable travel needs, such as pedestrian accesses,
bicycle shelters and electric car charging points.

3. Extending car parking in line with the levels of station usage.

4.The requirements of the Tisbury Conservation Area and the Victorian
character of the station buildings

The applicants Planning Statement explains the situation (extract):

Network Rail, in late 2020, published a technical study on various improvements to the West of England line along
its length from London Waterloo to Exeter St Davids. The report, “Continuous Modular Strategic Planning — West
of England Line Strategic Planning” makes a number of recommendations in respect of dualling the line at Tisbury
and associated station improvements:

8.1.1 Description
This intervention is an extension of the current Tisbury Loop westward
through Tisbury to enable a 5.5km loop with an additional platform at
Tisbury station. This is required for performance/ resilience, capacity and
journey time savings on SWR services.

8.1.2 Overview Page 51



Land would need to be acquired on the Down side to accommodate the new
platform. There could be an opportunity to extend the existing platform and
the proposed new platform at Tisbury to accommodate six-car services. This
has not been considered in this study but would form part of any future
scheme development.

Additionally, a new footbridge will be required to connect the new platform on the Down side of Tisbury station
with the existing Platform 1 on the Up side....... to be Access for All (AfA) compliant, the footbridge would be
required to have either compliant ramps and/or lifts. Lifts are likely to be the preferred option at this station
location and further development will be required to understand whether this can be achieved safely at this
location or whether additional land on the up side may be required owing to the width of the platform.

Whilst details exist of what these improvements could be, there is as yet no information on what funding exists
for them, or in what timescale the improvements are programmed to take place. It is clear that the works do not
form part of any specific transport or planning policy, nor, as far as the applicant is aware, are they defined in
any Network Rail infrastructure programme.

The indicative layout for Station Works ..includes an area of approximately 0.4 hectares immediately adjoining
the railway line and station which is to be left undeveloped and safeguarded for future improvements to the
station and line. Given the lack of detail on the timescale for any these proposals, it is considered that this
safeguarding represents a reasonable and proportionate obligation on behalf of the applicant to future rail
infrastructure provision, and which, from the technical study undertaken by Network Rail in 2020, appears more
than adequate to accommodate the improvements suggested.

Subsequent discussions have taken place with Network Rail which have confirmed that it considers the
safeguarded area adequate to allow for any future improvements at Tisbury.

Network Rail has stated the following (summary extract):

Whilst in principle NR are supportive of the proposal and welcome the safeguarded land to facilitate future
improvements to Tisbury railway station, some concern remains regarding the potential risk of accessing
Chantry pedestrian level crossing and the parking management of the development.

Chantry pedestrian level crossing

We note that the applicant states future residents would not have access to the existing Chantry pedestrian
level crossing or public footpath at this northern end of the site, however, Network Rail’s Level Crossing team
remain concerned that if the boundary treatment is not adequate it may be breached.

As part of our license to operate and manage Britain’s railway infrastructure, we have the legal duty to protect
rail passengers, the public, the railway workforce, and to reduce risk at our level crossings so far as is
reasonably practicable.

The most effective way to mitigate any additional risk to the pedestrian level crossing would be to close the
level crossing by diverting the Public Right of Way (PROW) TISB16 either over a new footbridge or through
the development and along the new shared pedestrian / cycle way, however, this is unlikely to be feasible
given the length of the diversion required to rejoin PROW TISB15.

As aresult, we request a number of conditions are attached to any planning to address our concerns of increased
use and consequently increased risk to the Chantry pedestrian level crossing and the future residents.

1. A prior to commencement condition which details how the pedestrian level crossing will be

inaccessible from the development duljjggi@ S)zstruction phase. This could be included within
a ‘Construction Management Plan’.



2. A prior to commencement condition that provides Network Rail with the opportunity to
review and agree the boundary treatments post construction.
3. A prior to occupation condition ensuring that the agreed boundary treatment is installed.

4. A priorto occupation condition requiring a ‘Boundary Treatment Management Plan’that
ensures the boundary treatment is regularly monitored and if breached, repaired within a certain

timeframe.

Summary

From the Network Rail response, it appears that provided any application is approved with conditions
restricting access by future occupiers of the scheme to the adjacent footpath crossing the railway line, and
provided that parking on the proposal site is adequately managed, then Network Rail would not object. This
response also suggests that additional railway parking is not considered to be required as part of any
proposal. Therefore the aims of criterion 2 of policy BL7 are met in the sense that Network Rail seem satisfied
with the current outline proposals, and does not appear to be asking for any additional parking or for a suitable

access to the site.

However, it is unclear how the railway protection area would be treated in the short to medium term prior to
the land being required. The indicative layout plan is unclear but suggests that land would not be accessible,
but the artists impressions supplied suggest the land would be utilised as a pathway serving the development.
It is also not clear how this land would be accessed should this land be needed in future for the railway or
how this may impact on the general amenities of development. These would need to be sorted out at the

reserved matters stage.

9.6 Access to adjacent Rights of Way system including railway line crossing.

Currently, the public footpath runs across the adjacent railway line to the north of the railway station and through
the northern section of the existing site.

As Network Rail objects to occupiers of this proposed scheme using the adjacent footpath system which runs
across the main railway line adjacent the site (see below), the Council’s rights of way officer has withdrawn her
initial objection (to new residents not having access to the footpath network) subject to a financial contribution to
the footpath system in the immediate area of the site, as below:

Our preferred solution would be access to TISB16, the off-site contribution would overcome our objection. The
£7,250 would cover the costs of the following improvements that have been identified for paths that would see
increased use if the link to TISB16 is not provided:

Re-surface the first section of TISB74 with tarmac (1.5m width) for approximately 50m from the Station Road
end. Improve the surface of WTIS13 with stone (1.2m width) for approx. 153m long split over 2 sections ) and
50m of wooden edging on side of the path.

As a consequence, even though it is considered to be a regressive step in planning and overall design terms to
stop future residents accessing the right of way system, a refusal of the application on this basis may be difficult
to justify, unless Members feel that that the enhanl:_éalg& dde existing footpath system is outweighed by the



benefit of retaining the footpath link with the application site. Such access however would of course be contrary
to wishes of Network rail as outlined below.

9.7 Archaeology

The Council’s Archaeologist has commented thus:

The Archaeology Service has previously been consulted about this proposal and we have previously been in
receipt of the archaeological desk-based assessment report (Cotswold Archaeology, September 2020)
submitted with the current application. The assessment report has established the potential of the site to contain
buried remains of prehistoric and Roman date and notes in particular the discovery of a stone-coffined Roman
inhumation found in 1953 just to the east of the red line boundary of the site. Unfortunately, further details of this
discovery are unknown.

The assessment report also notes that the site is likely to have been substantially disturbed from several phases
of previous development, along with substantial terracing into the north-west facing natural slope. This is
corroborated by the geotechnical data that shows deep ‘made ground’ deposits in some parts of the site.
However, the report notes that there may be areas of the site where buried remains may have survived,
undisturbed by previous uses of the site. The area within the red line boundary that is likely to be the least
disturbed, and therefore has the highest archaeological potential, is the green space along the east side of the
site, but this is not proposed for any development. On this basis, the report concludes that further archaeological
investigation would be appropriate if the application was permitted, and this could be secured by an
appropriately worded condition.

In view of the previous history of the site and the existing buildings on site and provided the green space in the
east of the site is not proposed for development, | agree with the conclusion of the archaeological desk-based
assessment report and that archaeological investigation would best await demolition to ground level of the
existing buildings. The archaeological investigation should initially take the form of an exploratory trial trench
evaluation which will determine if there are any areas of archaeological interest within the site that will be
impacted by the proposed development. The results of the exploratory investigation will, if justified, be used to
develop an archaeological mitigation strategy, which may include further archaeological investigation prior to the
commencement of development in areas of archaeological interest or monitoring during construction work. The
archaeological mitigation strategy should be prepared and agreed prior to the approval of any reserved matters
applications in relation to this outline application.

The following condition is proposed:

No development, other than demolition to ground level, shall commence within the area indicated by application
PL/2021/09778 until:

a) A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should include on-site work and off-site work such
as the analysis, publishing and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the

Local Planning Authority; and

b) The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

REASON: To enable the recording of any matters of archaeological interest.

The programme of archaeological work should gr@r&@eﬁ% following elements:



i) Exploratory archaeological investigation through trial trenching after demolition but prior to the commencement
of development

i) The archaeological investigation of any areas of archaeological interest identified by the exploratory
investigation. This may comprise further investigation prior to the commencement of development in the areas of

archaeological interest or monitoring during development.

ii) A programme of assessment, analysis, and publication commensurate with the significance of the
archaeological results.

As a result, there are no archaeology issues with the development, subject to conditions being imposed.

9.7 Ecological Impact/River Avon Catchment Area

Point 4 of Policy BL.7 stipulates: ‘The estimated capacity of the site is 60 dwellings in two storey buildings
plus commercial uses, but density overall must be appropriate for the edge of a rural settlement in an AONB
with the potential to impact on the Conservation Area and two Special Areas of Conservation (SAC) (the
River Avon SAC and the Chilmark Quarries SAC).’

Point 11 of Policy BL.7 states: ‘All necessary species and habitat surveys must be carried out to determine
the extent to which the development would affect the bat species that are features of the Chilmark Quarries
SAC and appropriate measures taken to avoid and mitigate impacts to roosts, foraging and commuting
habitats.’

Policies CP50 and CP52 relate to ecology matters and biodiversity/green infrastructure and are also
relevant, as well as CP69 related to the protection of the River Avon SAC.

The application is accompanied by an ecological survey. This concludes that:

e A construction environmental management plan should be developed to mitigate

any construction impacts on the River Nadder;

¢ Afinancial contribution should be made (through S106 obligation or CIL)

toward implementation of the River Avon Phosphate Management Plan;
¢ Replacement hedgerow planting to be provided for any lost as part of bat mitigation;

¢ Alandscape and environmental management plan to be developed to ensure the
vegetated bank, together with any new landscaped areas, and the attenuation pond

are managed for wildlife in the long term;

e The Himalayan Cotoneaster on the railway embankment where it encroaches on the

site should be removed;

e Specific mitigation proposals for foraging badgers, birds, barn owls, bats and

reptiles to be incorporated into the development.

A Habitats Regulations Assessment was then provided by the applicant. The assessment specifically considered
the impact of the proposed development at Station Works on the Chilmark Quarries SAC and the River Nadder,
which is a tributary of the River Avon SAC. The HFFAageeE@ considered that likely significant effects could not
be ruled out in the absence of mitigation for River Avon SAC phosphate pollution and recreational impacts and




for Chilmark Quarries loss or fragmentation of functional habitat (both physical loss and via light disturbance
impacts).

The applicants HRA recommended the following mitigation:

e Extensive habitat creation for bats leading to a net increase in

available foraging/commuting habitat;

e Lighting design with light spill reduction methods to ensure continued use of
bat foraging/commuting habitats; and

e Phosphate neutral development via CIL payments as set out in the Wiltshire Local Plan.

¢ The Habitats Regulations Assessment Information Report concludes that the Local
Planning Authority should be able to safely conclude that an Appropriate Assessment of
the proposed development under Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) can be passed.

This information has been reviewed by the Council’s Ecology team. They objected subject to the carrying out of a
positive Habitats Regulations Assessment, and subject to the following matters being addressed by the applicant:

e Provision of currently omitted ‘net gain assessment’ report cited in the EclA. The completed Biodiversity
Metric should also be provided in its entirety. Provision of two scaled and detailed plans; the first should
clearly illustrate and quantify the existing habitat; and the second plan should illustrate and quantify the
areas of habitatto be retained as well as areas of proposed habitat / habitat to be enhanced.

Extent of proposals

e Provision of revised Sketch Site Layout showing full extent of current proposals including the proposed
steps and footpath up the bank in the south-eastern section of the site and an area of POS at the top of
the bank as these proposals are referred to in the EclA but not shown on the submitted plans. The areas
that these proposals would cover should also be quantified and provided.

e Soft landscaping for bats proposed in the EclA comprising planting of hedgerows on the bank and new tree
planting at the base of the bank are not shown on the Sketch Site Layout — 06 Rail Safeguard (Drawing
no. SKL-06).

o Proposed swales are not suitably annotated/shown in the key of the Sketch Site Layout.

e The Sketch Site Layout should be revised to show full extent of proposals and to demonstrate that
recommendations set out in the EclA will be implemented. There should also be consistency across the
submitted plans. This is needed in interests of proper planning and to facilitate fully informed
assessment of effects on protected species including bats, reptiles and birds

Ecology survey
o Clarification regarding the date that the update Phase 1 Habitat Survey was undertaken.

e Confirmation regarding whether the validity of the ecological survey data was reviewed as most of the
data was over 2 years old at the time the application and EclA was submitted, and the EclA stipulates
the data is only valid for 18 months. The Council generally considers survey data to be valid for 2 years
and applications should be supported by valid data particularly where the data informs HRA as is the
case for this application. Therefore, a rationale setting out why the data was still considered valid and
why update surveys were not conduct @g)rovided as this is not included within the EclA. If a
sound rationale cannot be provided surveys would need to be updated.



Reptiles

e Itis considered that the minimum number of trapping days proposed for the reptile translocation is too
low and not in accordance with best practice. A rationale is required for the proposed approach (e.g.
is it due to the size of the area to be excluded). The strategy should be revised if a sound justification
cannot be provided

Ecological Parameters Plan

e Revised EPP requested which shows and quantifies all ecological, landscape and arboricultural
parameters and consideration should be given to the incorporation of an ecological buffer between the
bank in the southeast of the site and the development/works footprint. This should be shown on the plan.

Phosphate issues

e Provision of bespoke phosphorus mitigation strategy, which has been discussed with NE through their
DAS, forthe ‘unplanned’ uplift in proposed development at the site from that which was allocated
in the NDP.

Chilmark Quarries SAC

e Provision of currently omitted lighting report cited as in the EclA as: ‘Alan Tulla Lighting (2021). Lighting
design for car parks at Tisbury Station, Wilts.’

¢ Requested revision to scheme layout to incorporate further avoidance and mitigation measures for bats,
including ecological buffer zone / ‘dark corridor’ between identified bat flight lines used by Annex Il
qualifying species of the SAC and the development/works footprint.

It has been some months since the Council’s ecologist expressed her initial views. The applicant has suggested
that they would provide further information to address the above, but at the time of writing, nothing has been
received. However, the applicants viability assessment received just before this report was finalised suggests
that they may wish to offer a Nutrient Reduction Agreement contribution of £237,379. No further information
regards this contribution has yet been forthcoming, but in principal, the Council’s ecology officer considers that
such a contribution would be useful in phosphate mitigation. However, such a contribution can only be secured if
and once the appellant submits a suitable legal agreement which is agreed as part of the appeal decision.

The Council’s ecologist has now indicated that in the period since their initial comments, the Council’s own work
on providing a solution to the phosphate issue has progressed, and given the Ministerial Statement on 20 July
2022 measures are coming forward to help minimise nutrient burdens of development through wastewater
treatment works improvements and a Natural England led strategic mitigation scheme. Some of these measures
are being secured through other legislation in due course. This will hopefully lift the significant burden on Local
Authorities.

Regards the other issues raised above related to the various reports, it remains the fact that the submitted details
are somewhat contradictory. However, should the Inspector be minded to approve this scheme, the Council’s
ecologist is now of the view that suitable conditions could be imposed to ensure that the suggested mitigation
works occur as suggested.

Based on the above, and subject to suitable phosphate mitigation, and suitable conditions, including in relation to
the Chilmark Quarries SAC, and subject to finalisation of the proposed national measures to ease the phosphorus
issue in due course, it is considered that the proposal would accordance with aims and objectives of policy BL7
(point 4 and 11) of the Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan, and the aims of Core Policy 50 and 52 of the Wiltshire Core
Strategy, and the biodiversity aims of the NPPF.

Because of the likely significant effects on the Rivm%séﬂf and the Chilmark Quarry SAC, a positive Habitats
Regulations Assessment will however need to be Co ed Dy the Inspector.


https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2022-07-20/hcws258

9.8 Drainage and Flooding

Whilst the site itself is located in Flood Zone 1, the adjacent highways access via Jobbers Lane around the railway
bridge/arches area and the adjacent field system to the north is in Flood Zone 2 & 3, and has a recent history of
flooding issues. Third Parties have highlighted this matter in the various responses. This is an issue for the scheme
as the highway system beneath the railway bridge (Flood Zone 3) would be the only way that any future occupiers
of the proposal would be able to access Tisbury and its facilities, given that access to the existing footpath system
would not be allowed.

Policy CP67 of Wiltshire Core Strategy relates to developments in Flood Zones 2 & 3. Policy HNA 3 of the Tisbury
NP and its supporting text relates to flooding issues in Tisbury and around the application site.

The Environment Agency has currently concluded that (extract and summary):
Flood Risk
Flood Zone Compatibility

..The proposed walkway should be classified as a water-compatible use. If the Local Planning Authority (LPA)
are satisfied with this classification, then the proposed walkway will need to:

* remain operational and safe for users in times of flood;

* result in no net loss of floodplain storage;

* not impede water flows and not increase flood risk elsewhere.

We understand that designing the walkway to remain operational may be impractical and therefore measures
will need to be put in place to make it safe; this along with the other points are discussed further below.

Safe Access

It is the LPA’s responsibility to decide if the access arrangements are safe and they should determine this
through consultation with their emergency planners. The EA’s role is to provide technical advice regarding the
flood hazard rating, which should be provided in the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA).

In this instance, all of the proposed buildings will be located in Flood Zone 1, but the access is via Jobbers Lane
which is located in Flood Zone 3. Therefore, if residents or the emergency services needed to access the site
during the design flood they would need to pass through floodwater.

The assessment of hazard for vehicular access uses flood levels that differ to those stated in the FRA. The letter
estimates a flood level of 91.70mAQD for the 1% annual probability event plus 38% climate change allowance,
whilst the FRA states in paragraph 5.1.6 a flood level of 92.38mAOD, which is significantly higher. Clarification
on the design flood level is required before an assessment of the hazard for the vehicular access can be
concluded.

We note that the letter states “safety would be controlled by individual users because the extent of any flooding
would be immediately apparent”. Whilst the extent of flooding will be clear to see, the depth of flooding may not
be immediately apparent and, therefore, it may be advisable to provide some indication of this to users.

Increase in Flood Risk Elsewhere

The letter provides a high-level assessment of the potential impact of the raised walkway based on the loss of
floodplain storage volume. However, the potential reduction in conveyance through the bridge arches is more of
a concern. The restriction on flow caused by the bridge means that changes in conveyance through this
structure have the potential to have a significant effect on flood risk elsewhere.

Whilst the letter appears to try and address the B&@@ B@iitatively, this is not sufficient to overcome our
concern. We request that hydraulic modelling is undertaken to assess the impact of the proposals and any



potential compensation. Alternatively, the design of the proposed walkway could be altered to avoid reducing
conveyance and loss of storage. Measures would need to be installed to appropriately manage the risk to users
and the LPA’s emergency planners should be consulted on any such proposals.

Other matters

Our comments provided in our previous letter dated the 12 November 2021 relating to groundwater and
contaminated land are still relevant to this application. (Officer note - These state as below:)

Groundwater and Contaminated Land

The investigation reported in the Environmental Risk Assessment (Ridge, November 2020) has identified
hydrocarbon contamination of soils and shallow groundwater beneath the northern end of the site. This part of
the site is in close proximity and up gradient of the River Nadder and we therefore agree with the conclusions of
the report that there is the potential for unacceptable levels of pollution of controlled waters.

The nature of the hydrogeological pathway between the identified contamination and the River Nadder is not
described explicitly in the report; we consider that further refinement of this part of the site conceptual model
could aid the design of the proposed permeable reactive barrier and assessment of residual risk following
remediation.

A remediation options appraisal and strategy has been presented in the Remediation Method Statement (Ridge,
August 2021). Bioremediation is stated as being the preferred option for dealing with soil and groundwater
contamination in section 9.2 though the table of remedial actions in section 9.14 states remediation is to be
achieved through treatment using clay stabilisation. We have no objection to either method in principle although
it must be ensured that the treatment design takes account of site specific conditions to achieve optimum
performance.

Remediation target criteria for soils and groundwater should be defined prior to commencement of remedial
works to ensure a defined end-point is known and to reduce the risk of delays during the verification process. In
the absence of derived site-specific target concentrations, the conservative Environmental Quality Standards (or
Drinking Water Standards where no EQS available) should be used.

An Environmental Permit is likely to be required to regulate the proposed remediation of soils and groundwater
unless the conditions of RPS 215 for small scale remediation schemes can be met in full. Further details are
available at Land contamination pilot trials and small scale remediation schemes: RPS 215

- GOV.UK (www.gov.uk).

We note that re-use of excavated materials is proposed as part of the development. Any such re-use should be
carried out in accordance with an appropriate regulatory regime such as an Environmental Permit or declaration
under the CL:AIRE Definition of Waste Code of Practice. We recommend early application for any permit that
may be required for remediation activities or re-use of materials since determination can take a number of
months.

We recommend the following conditions are included in any planning permission granted (if our flood risk
objection can be overcome) to ensure the risks from the identified contamination are dealt with appropriately.
Without these conditions we would object to the proposal in line with paragraph 170 of the National Planning
Policy Framework because it cannot be guaranteed that the development will not contribute to, be put at
unacceptable risk from, or be adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution...

In addition, if our objection in relation to flood risk matters could be overcome, we would wish a condition for a
Construction Environmental Management Plan to be included in any granted planning permission for the site.
This condition would be required to ensure there would no pollution of the environment during the construction
phase of the scheme. We can provide suggested wording for this condition in due course.

The Council’s Drainage team in their capacity as Lead Local Flood Authority have the below objections to the
application; and have stated that these must be O\Pragre BJore a drainage objection can be removed:


https://gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/

1. The drainage team mirror the concerns laid out by the Environment Agency (in their consultation response
dated 18™ August 2022), with regards to Flood Zone Compatibility, Safe Access, Increasing flood risk
elsewhere and groundwater and contaminated land. For brevity, these objections have not been repeated
as part of our response.

2. The applicant is proposing construction in Jobbers Lane (outside of the catchment boundary). The footpath
/ cycleway will impact on how surface water is drained which has not been addressed in the proposed
drainage strategy (Appendix H of the Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy); the LLFA also
guestion whether a legal agreement is in place for construction within this area, and discharge of surface
water to third party assets. Furthermore, as the proposed footpath / cycleway will impact on levels within
Flood Zone 3, additional compensatory storage (on 3rd party land) will likely be required, and will need to
be agreed with the EA.

3. The proposed drainage strategy includes an existing manhole within what appears to be easement for the
railway line. The location of this should be revised due to potential for a clash with any track-dualling that
might occur in the future. Furthermore, detailed drawings are required of the connectivity between the SW
line, flow control and attenuation pond.

Whilst not objecting to the proposals, Wessex Water have also indicated that:

There is a 1” water supply main with the site boundary at the south west end of the site.In accordance with Wessex
Water Policy, there must be no habitable buildings within a minimum of 3m either side of the distribution main and
no tree planting within a minimum of 6m. This includes no surface water attenuation features and associated
earthworks in the easement strip. The water main must not run through enclosed private rear gardens, it must be
within a 6m (3m either side) open access easement strip or roads. Wessex Water require unrestricted access to
maintain and repair our apparatus. The proposed layout (shown on drawing ref SKL-06 Rev P9 dated 21/05/20)
appears to conflict with this existing main, however as this is an outline application, we would not object at this
time, the applicant will need to either consider diverting the main or changing the proposed layout to accommodate
the required easements for the main.

Summary

It is clear from a recent events and from the Tisbury NP that the highway and field systems around the site have
a history of flooding issues. The applicants would therefore have been fully aware of this issue prior to submission
of an application from its consultation process. However, at the time of writing, this matter has not yet been
resolved to the satisfaction of the Environment Agency or the Council’s Drainage officers. Thus, at the time of
writing, the proposals do not address the flooding and drainage issues associated with the accessing of the site
and hence how suitable linkage between the site and the facilities and services in Tisbury can be achieved. The
proposal is therefore contrary to the aims of policy BL7 (criterion 3 & 5), and HNA 3 of the Tisbury NP, and also
the aims of policy CP67 of the WCS, and the NPPF guidance related to flooding matters.

9.9 Viability and affordable housing provision

Points 1 & 6 of policy BL7 relate to contamination issues, viability, and affordable housing provision.

The applicants have indicated via a recently revised viability assessment that the development will be unable to
provide the required 30 percent stated within policy BL7 and CP43 of the WCS. The Council’s own viability
adviser has currently indicated to the contrary, that the proposal subject of this application is viable enough to
provide 30 percent affordable housing as well as the other suggested S106 contributions/requirements
elsewhere in this report. As stated elsewhere in this report, it is however the case that an “alternative” scheme
which could provide some industrial units on the site has also found to be unviable in that it too would be unable
to provide policy compliant affordable housing.

At the time of writing, the assessment of the applicants viability report has yet to be concluded. Thus at the
moment, whilst point 1 above has been complieEJ\&'g\epﬁﬁl 6 of the policy BL7 regards the provision of



affordable housing has not been complied with. The Council Housing Officer has requested 30 percent
affordable housing, and this remains the position until the outcome of the viability assessment is known.

The proposal is therefore currently in policy terms contrary to the aims of point 6 of BL7, and to the aims of
CP43.

S106 mitigation matters

The Wiltshire Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (Adopted May 2015) supports Core
Policy 3 and provides further detail on the council’s approach to developer contributions

e Provision of affordable housing on site

The applicants have submitted an affordable housing viability statement that indicates that in its view, a policy
compliant amount of affordable housing cannot be provided on this site. The viability assessment process
related to this matter is ongoing at the time of writing. Subject to that being resolved, the Council’s affordable
housing officer response remains as follows:

Policy Requirements:

I note that an Affordable Housing Viability Statement was submitted with the application and that
subsequently, the Viability Review Report demonstrates that the scheme is viable with provision of the full
policy requirement. My comments therefore are provided on this basis.

Core Policy 43 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy (as amended by the National Planning Policy Framework)
sets out a requirement for 30% on-site Affordable Housing provision within the 30% Housing Zone, on all
sites of 10 or more dwellings. There is therefore a requirement to provide 26 affordable units within a
scheme of 86 dwellings. This would meet the policy requirement and would assist in addressing the need
for affordable housing in Tisbury.

With respect to the care home proposals, the development of a care home does not require provision of an
affordable housing contribution. However, if the scheme includes provision of any self-contained retirement
apartments to be sold or let on the open market, this aspect of the scheme would require an affordable
housing contribution of 30% on-site affordable housing in accordance with Core Policy 46 and Core Policy
43 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy.

Tenure Mix:

In accordance with Core Policies 43 and 45 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy the tenure mix should reflect
local need for affordable housing and should therefore be provided with a tenure mix of 60% of the units (16
units) being for Affordable Rented housing, and 40% of the units (10 units) being provided for shared
ownership.

Unit Size Mix:

Core Policy 45 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy states that housing size and type will be expected to reflect
that of the demonstrable need for the community within which a site is located. There is currently a need for
all sizes of affordable accommodation in Tisbury. The following mix is currently suggested by theapplicant
as the mix that would be provided, should provision of the full policy requirement be considered viable:

Affordable Rent |Shared Ownership |
Page 61




2 x 1 bed flats 7 x 2 bed flats

2 X 2 bed flats 3 x 3 bed houses
10 x 2 bed houses
2 x 3 bed houses

There is a predominance of 2 bed provision within this proposed mix. If it could be achieved without impact
on viability, a slight amendment would provide the following preferable mix which would better reflect
demonstrable need:

Affordable Rented:

4 units - 1 bed / 2 person (maisonette style) flat or bungalow
8 units - 2 bed / 4 person house or bungalow

4 x 3 bed /5 person house

Shared Ownership:
7 units - 2 bed / 4 person house
3 units - 3 bed / 5 person house

There is also a demonstrable need for adapted housing in Tisbury. On all schemes which provide more than
10 Affordable Housing units, it is requested that 10% of affordable units are provided as adapted units in
order to help meet this need. These units should be provided as ground floor flats / bungalows to Building
Regulations M4(2) standards with a level access shower provided. In this instance it would be appropriate
to provide the ground floor flats as adapted units to meet demonstrable need.

Design of Scheme (including Minimum Floorspace Standards):

Affordable housing in Wiltshire is expected to meet high standards of design and quality, and to be visually
indistinguishable from open market housing. | note that the layout provided is indicative and does not show
the location of the Affordable Housing units. In designing the final scheme, the following should be taken
into account:

e The Affordable Housing units should be evenly dispersed, in small clusters of no more than 15 units,
within mixed tenure developments.

e Any 1 bedroom flats should be provided in small blocks. Please note that 2 bedroom flats above
ground floor level, and flats over commercial units or garages, are considered unsuitable for
affordable units.

e Parking courts are not considered suitable for affordable homes (other than for blocks of flats).
Parking for houses should be provided in curtilage or adjacent to the property.

In order to ensure that the affordable housing units are eligible for inclusion in Homes England’s Affordable
Housing programme, we would advise that all affordable homes are built to meet at least 85% of the
Nationally Described Space Standard (NDSS) relevant to the dwelling type and minimum person criteria.

NDSS and 85% NDSS are shown in the table below:

Page 62




Number of |[Number NDSS Minimum 85% NDSS
bedrooms gfpgcegs 1storey | 2 3 storey |1storey |2 3 storey
(sgm) storey (sgm) (sgm) storey (sgm)
(sqm) (sqm)
Studio 1p 39 (37)* 34 (32)*
1b 2p 50 58 43 50
2b 3p 61 70 52 60
4p 70 79 60 68
3b 4p 74 84 90 63 72 77
5p 86 93 99 74 80 85
6p 95 102 108 81 87 92

*Where a one person flat has a shower room rather than a bathroom the floorspace may be reduced from 39
sqm to 37 sqm (NDSS) or from 34 sqm to 32 sqm (85% NDSS).

Transfer to Registered Provider:

The affordable dwellings will be required to be transferred to a Registered Provider,
approved by the Council, or to the Council, on a nil subsidy basis.

It is strongly recommended that the applicant makes contact with Registered
Providers and Wiltshire Council’s Residential Development Team as soon as
possible in order to discuss the best option for the affordable dwellings including an
indication of transfer prices that can be expected. A list of Registered Providers
who work in partnership with Wiltshire Council can be provided on request.

Nominations:

The Local Authority would have nomination rights to the affordable dwellings,
secured through a S106 Agreement.

At the current time, subject to the outcome of the ongoing viability assessment

process, it is considered that the scheme is viable enough to provide the required
level of affordable housing provision referred to above.

o Provision of waste and recycling facilities

The Council’'s Waste officer has confirmed that recycling facilities are required under policy
CP3 and WCS6. He has requested the following contribution:

The Council requests s106 contributions towards the provision of waste and recycling
containers for each residential unit, under policies CP3 and WCS6. The following estimated
contribution is required for the proposed development:

Page 63



Property type Contribution per Quantity Total
category house/per category
Individual house £91 69 £6279
Bin store for block of 6- £581 0 £0
10 flats
Bin store for block of £1,038 0 f0
11-14 flats
Bin store for block of £1,474 1 £1474
15-18 flats

Total £7753

Please note that all arrangements for the Care Home and associated treatment
centres are classed and commercial and Wiltshire Council do not have an obligation
to collect from these properties.

e Provision and maintenance of public open space on and off site
The Council’s open space officer has confirmed that:

The dwelling mix stated in the design and access statement generates a requirement of
1455mz of public open space and 873m2 of equipped play.

A public open space has been included within the development, please note that we cannot
accept attenuation basins as POS unless the area remains dry and useable for a substantial
amount of the year, please do not include in the area calculation if it does not meet this
requirement. All on-site open space provision must be secured in perpetuity. Wiltshire
Council will not adopt the POS.

An off-site contribution of £125,712.00 is required for equipped play.

An off-site Youth and Adult contribution of £52,380.00 is required.

The target site for this contribution is the Lower Recreation Ground and/or playing pitch and
ancillary services within the facility of the development. The Lower Recreation Ground next
to the development which has a range of facilities in need of upgrading, including the
pavilions which host the sports, social club and bowls club alongside the playing pitches.
The Lower Recreation Ground also has a play area in need of upgrading/developing so this
would be a target site for equipped play alongside upgrading play provision at the field by
the Nadder centre.

Closing the level crossing would mean the formal play area would not be accessible and |
would say it needs to be looked at from a view of keeping and upgrading from a safety
perspective if there is an issue here. Closing the crossing is of concern and takes a link
away from the development.

Retirement Home:

Page 64



The open space requirement for 30-40 care home would fall between 609.93m?2 - 813.24m? -
the final figure is to be calculated once the exact dwelling number is finalised. If the provision
cannot be met on site then an off-site contribution will be required using £34.87m?2 to make
up any shortfall. All on-site open space provision must be secured in perpetuity. Wiltshire
Council will not adopt the POS.

There is no requirement for Equipped Play or Youth and Adult facilities to be provided for the
care home development.

The appellant has confirmed the following:

Dwelling Rate Number Total requirement
1-Bedroom 10m2 2 20m?2

2-Bedroom 15m2 52 780m2
3-bedroom 20m2 29 580m2
4+-bedroom 25m2 3 75m2

Care Home 8m?2 40 max 320m2

This gives a total requirement of 1,455m2 for the residential development, and 320m2 for the
care home. The provision within the indicative scheme is in excess of both requirements.

As a result, as the area of open space shown on the outline plan exceeds 320 sqm, it is
considered that any future legal agreement should simply contain a requirement that any
care home should have an open space area adjacent and available to it for its residents of at
least the equivalent of 8sgm per occupant. This is in line with saved policy R3 of the SDLP,
which specifies that 0.81hecatres of open space be available per 1000 population, which
equates to 8sqm per person).

e Public Art

The Council’s open space team has also confirmed the contribution below for public art. This
is based on the required contribution of £300 per dwelling, and is supported by saved policy
D8 (of the Salisbury District Local Plan), and policies CP3, CP57 of the Wiltshire Core
Strategy, and the Planning Obligations DPD.

The Public Arts provision for this development is required as an off-site contribution of
£25,800.00.

e Provision of financial contribution towards off site Education facilities
The applicants have submitted an Education Impact Assessment which concludes that there
is surplus places in the catchment area and hence the application does not need to provide

any financial contribution towards educational facilities.

The Council’s Education officer maintains her view that a contribution is required as below:

Page 65



We note that among the documentation submitted by the applicant there is an Education
Impact Assessment, which attempts to rebut the S106s cases that were advised to them at
the pre-app stage. However, the assessment includes primary schools which aren’t within 2
miles safe walking distance of the development site, and as such are not appropriate
destinations for the pupils who will live on it. The Council would be obliged to provide
transport for them, which is not sustainable, and would incur significant and ongoing costs
which the Council is unable to meet. The only appropriate primary school designated to
serve this development, is St John’s CE, Tisbury.

PRIMARY ASSESSMENT DETAILS:

o Capacity = 140 places.

e Oct 21 number on roll = 123 pupils.

o Highest numbers forecast = 127 pupils.

o Additional places required in housing already registered/approved but not yet built
out = 4.

e S0, the school currently has 9 spare places available.

PRIMARY S106 CONTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS: Current primary cost multiplier = £18,758 per place:
*(Please refer to accompanying caveats as the cost multiplier quoted is due to be updated shortly
for the 2021/22 year).

e There is limited capacity currently available at St John’s CE, and it is insufficient to
accommodate the full pupil product of this proposed development. There are no other
primaries within 2 miles safe walking distance of the development site.

e As aresult, we require a developer contribution towards the 25 - 9 (available places)
= 16 places that this development generates a need for at St John’s CE Primary,
Tisbury. Using the current cost multiplier, (but please see note * above) = 16 places x
£18,758 = £300,128. This contribution would be subject to indexation and secured by
an S106 agreement to which the Council’s standard terms will apply.

e Rights of Way enhancement

As Network Rail objects to occupiers of this proposed scheme using the adjacent footpath
system (which runs across the main railway line adjacent the site), the Council’s rights of

way officer has requested a financial contribution to the footpath system in the immediate
area of the site, as below:

Our preferred solution would be access to TISB16, the off-site contribution would overcome
our objection. The £7,250 would cover the costs of the following improvements that have
been identified for paths that would see increased use if the link to TISB16 is not provided:

Re-surface the first section of TISB74 with tarmac (1.5m width) for approximately 50m from
the Station Road end. Improve the surface of WTIS13 with stone (1.2m width) for approx.
153m long split over 2 sections ) and 50m of wooden edging on side of the path.

Page 66



¢ Phosphate mitigation

Explanation of the phosphate issue and justification for this contribution is provided for in the
ecology section of this report. Core Policy CP69 applies.

The applicants viability assessment suggests that they may wish to offer a Nutrient
Reduction Agreement contribution £237,379.

10. Conclusion and planning balance

The comments of the Town Council and other third parties and consultees have been taken
into account.

The site has been recently included within the settlement boundary of Tisbury, within which,
residential development is considered acceptable in principle. The site is also allocated for
development within the adopted Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan. As the Council does not
currently have a 5 year housing land supply at the current time, the development of the site
for housing is considered to be of significant weight, particularly in terms of the provision of
much needed housing, including any affordable housing. However, as stated elsewhere, it is
considered that due to flooding issue related to this site, the “tilted balance” towards approving
the development does not apply in this instance.

Whilst the proposal does not accord with the aims of policy BL7 in terms of providing industrial
type employment on the site, the proposed care home would provide a local facility and would
provide employment. This should also carry weight. Similarly, whilst the number of dwellings
proposed is above that suggested by the allocation policy, such figures are not regarded as a
ceiling figure, and no harm has been identified in relation to the additional housing over and
above the number referred to in the policy, particularly as it will make a modest contribution to
housing land supply. Whilst the suggested layout and design of the scheme could be improved
upon, it is considered that this can be dealt with via any future reserved matters application.

However, there remains an objection from the Council’'s Highways department, the
Environment Agency and WC Drainage. The Council must therefore conclude that there
remains a significant highway, flooding and drainage issue related to this application in terms
of the access and egress of the site, including how occupiers of the site would access services
and facilities in the adjacent town during a flooding event. The Council’s Highways officer has
objected to the access works. This significantly weighs against the proposal.

Furthermore, at the present time, the applicants viability assessment process is still ongoing,
and the applicant has also indicated that they would not wish to provide the required
educational contribution. In the absence of a suitable legal agreement, the proposal would
therefore not be able to contribute any suitable mitigation towards off site educational facilities,
onsite affordable housing, the management or enhancement of on or off site open space
facilities, on site waste and recycling facilities, the enhancement of highways access
infrastructure, off site rights of way, or public art provision. The suggested contribution towards
nutrient mitigation cannot be achieved. This is considered to be of significant weight.

Page 67



Consequently, as the applicant has now appealed and the Council need to conclude its
consideration of the application as the decision making body, the proposal is considered to
not accord with the aims and objectives of the adopted Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan in
particular policy BL1, BL2 BL3 BL7, HNA1, & HNAS It would also fail to accord with the
sustainable development aims of the NPPF and the Wiltshire Core Strategy, including saved
policy R2 & policies CP1,CP2, CP3, CP27, CP35, CP43, CP46, CP50, CP51, CP52, CP57,
CP61, CP67, CP69. As a result, based on the existing proposals and justification, the harm
caused by the proposal is likely to significantly outweigh any positive benefits provided by the
provision of housing on the site.

11. RECOMMENDATION: THAT THE PROPOSAL WOULD HAVE BEEN REFUSED, for
the following reasons:

1.The proposal envisages the closing off of one of the existing vehicular routes under the
existing railway bridge, and the construction of a raised pedestrian and cycle structure.
In terms of several critical aspects, the application does not contain sufficient information
to allow proper consideration of the proposals. Notwithstanding the lack of detail, the
principles of access for pedestrians and cyclists is unacceptable. The route proposed is
unattractive and circuitous, and is conditional on the road being close to vehicular traffic
and the implications thereof, which is an unacceptable proposition.

Consequently, it has not been demonstrated that an acceptable and safe means of
access for non-motorised users can be achieved to the site. Furthermore, insufficient
information has been provided to demonstrate that the proposed pedestrian/cycle route
meets the requirements set out within the Department of Transport’s Local Transport
Note 1/20 and Disability Discrimination Act 1995, and that the proposed signals can be
accommodated within the existing highway.

As a result, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan
policies BL3 (2), BL7 (3), Wiltshire Core Policies 60, 61 & 62 and NPPF Section 9, paras
104-106 & 110-112.

2.Notwithstanding the highway access issues, the highway and field systems around the
site have a history of flooding issues. The proposal envisages the access via Jobbers
Lane which is located in Flood Zone 3. Therefore, if residents or the emergency services
needed to access the site during the design flood they would need to pass through
floodwater, during a flood event. The proposed walkway access will need to remain
operational and safe for users in times of flood; result in no net loss of floodplain storage;
not impede water flows, and not increase flood risk elsewhere.

However, this matter has not yet been resolved, and the proposals do not address the
flooding/drainage issues associated with the accessing of the site and hence how
suitable linkage between the site and the facilities and services in Tisbury can be
achieved. The proposal is therefore contrary to the aims of policy BL7 (criterion 3 & 5),
and HNA 3 of the Tisbury Neighbourhood Plan, and also the aims of policy CP67 of the
Wiltshire Core Strategy, and the NPPF guidance related to flooding matters.

3.Furthermore, at the present time, the viability assessment of the application remains
ongoing. The applicants assessment is currently indicating that a policy compliant
percentage of affordable housing cannot be provided on site. Until this viability process is
completed, the Council assume that the proposal can provide the required quantum of

Page 68



affordable housing required by policy. Notwithstanding, the applicant has also indicated
that they would not wish to provide the required contribution towards mitigating the
impact of the scheme on existing educational infrastructure. Consequently, and in the
absence of a suitable legal agreement, the proposal would therefore not be able to
contribute suitable mitigation towards off site educational facilities; onsite affordable
housing; the management or enhancement of on or off site open space facilities, on site
waste and recycling facilities, the enhancement of highways access infrastructure, off
site rights of way, public art provision, or any contribution towards nitrate mitigation.

As a result, the proposal is contrary to the aims of CP3, CP43, CP50, CP52, CP57,

CP69 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, the Council’s Planning Obligations DPD, saved
policies R2, D8 , the waste and recycling core strategy policy WCS6, and the aims of
policy BL1, BL2, and BL7 criterion 6 in relation to the quantum of affordable housing.

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



, . " PL/2021/09778
WIH’ShIre Counc|l Land at Station Works, Station

Road, Tisbury, SP3 6QU

Playing
Field

Tisbu
Statiorr¥

Survey
049050

1:5,000

394582E 128993N m
A © Crown Copyright and Database Rights 2022 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100049050

Page 71




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7b

REPORT OUTLINE FOR AREA PLANNING COMMITTEES Report No.
Date of Meeting 10" November 2022

Application Number PL/2022/02766

Site Address Land rear of Caynton Lawns, Oak Drive, Alderbury, SP5 3AJ
Proposal New dwelling with associated drive, carport/garage and garden

amenity space (as approved under planning ref 20/07065/FUL
with revised access position) — resubmission of PL/2022/02035

Applicant Mr P Farmer

Town/Parish Council Alderbury

Electoral Division Alderbury— (Richard Britton)
Grid Ref 418,857 126,804

Type of application Full Planning

Case Officer Joe Richardson

Reason for the application being considered by Committee
The application has been called-in by Clir Britton if officers are minded to approve.

1. Purpose of Report

The purpose of the report is to assess the merits of the proposal against the policies of the
development plan and other material considerations and to consider the recommendation that
the application be approved for the reason(s) set out below.

2. Report Summary
The issues in this case are:

e Principle of development, policy and planning history;
Design, scale and impact to the amenity of the area;
Parking/Highways Impact;

Ecological Impact/River Avon Catchment Area;

Flood Risk;

Other matters

There have been four different re-consultations for amendments and revisions to this planning
application that have generated in total nineteen letters of objection to the application. The
application has also received three letters of objection from Alderbury Parish Council to the
proposed development.

Four separate consultation phases have been undertaken for this planning application in order
to address the concerns received from statutory consultees and members of the public
primarily around the proposed access, its positioning and widening. Concerns received from
the Highways Officer of Wiltshire Council to this proposal were in respect of the size of the
access point, the lack of a swept analysis plan and the fore-mentioned swept path analysis
plan for the access as proposed not providing sufficient manoeuvrability. As such, the case

Page 73



officer has sought to address these matters throughout the course of this planning application
which has resulted in the need for re-consultation to all interested parties.

As mentioned, this application has resulted in various sets of amended plans being produced
for this planning application that has resulted in the need for re-consultation to all interested
parties. Despite the submission of the amended plans, the Parish Council have maintained
their objection to this proposal for the reasoning as set out in Section 7 (Summary of
consultation responses).

3. Site Description

The site forms part of the residential curtilage of the dwellinghouse known as Caynton
Lawns and is located within the village of Alderbury. The site is accessed via Oak Drive, a
private gravel track that is bounded by trees and shrubbery and provides access to a
number of other residential dwellinghouses within the vicinity.

4. Planning History

S/1986/1557 — Outline application for a chalet bungalow with detached bungalow —
refused for access reasons with appeal dismissed

S/2006/1224 — Construct garage at rear of property Approved with Conditions 01.08.06

S/2007/1622 — Retrospective application to remove dilapidated block boundary wall and
construct a new brick wall with railings and entrance gate — original wall now removed
Refused 05.10.07

S/2008/0851 — Outline application for Proposed detached bungalow and detached
garage Refused 21.08.08

20/07065/FUL — New dwelling with associated drive, carport/garage and garden/amenity
space Approved with conditions 25.02.21

PL/2022/02035 — New dwelling with associated drive, carport/garage and
garden/amenity space. Revision of 20/07065/FUL Withdrawn on officer advice 01.04.22

5. The Proposal

The proposal seeks planning permission for the erection of a dwellinghouse to the rear of the
property known as Caynton Lawns with access obtained via Oak Drive, a private track that
serves the application site and a number of other dwellinghouses within the vicinity.

6. Local Planning Policy

National Planning Policy Framework

Section 2 Achieving Sustainable Development

Section 12 Achieving Well Designed Places

Section 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Page 74



Wiltshire Core Strategy

Core Policy 1 Settlement Strategy

Core Policy 2 Delivery Strategy

Core Policy 23 Southern Wiltshire Community Area

Core Policy 50 Biodiversity and Geodiversity

Core Policy 51 Landscaping

Core Policy 57 Ensuring high quality design and place shaping
Core Policy 61 Transport and New Development

Core Policy 67 Flood Risk

Core Policy 69 Protection of the River Avon SAC

National Planning Policy Framework

Section 2 Achieving Sustainable Development

Section 12 Achieving Well Designed Place

Section 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2015-2026:
Car Parking Strategy

7. Summary of consultation responses
Alderbury Parish Council — Objection with comments stating:

(1) The proposed access is located near the end of a private track lying within the
curtilage of the adjoining property ‘Mere’ and leading exclusively to the two properties
at ‘Treetops’. The track is unsurfaced, is only 2.5m wide, and too narrow for access
by emergency, refuse or other service vehicles. It cannot be widened as this land is
not within the boundary of the site. The extra traffic generated by the proposed 4-
bedroomed house including delivery and business vehicles will greatly increase
vehicle movements along the track. In addition, the proposed entry access point for
the new development provides inadequate visibility for road users approaching from
north, and vehicles egressing the site will have inadequate sight lines to the north.
This will significantly increase road safety risks. The application can make no
accommodation for this within the current boundary line. The Council considers the
proposed access to be unsafe as it will increase highway safety risks to an
unacceptable level and should be refused in accordance with Policy 61 (ii) of the
Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015.

(2) The proposed access by virtue of its narrow width and lack of passing places,
pedestrian refuges and turning areas presents a danger to pedestrians, cyclists and
other road users and is therefore contrary to Policy 61 (i) of the Wiltshire Core
Strategy 2015.

(3) The proposed access by virtue of its narrow width and lack of passing places and
turning areas is inadequate to serve delivery and service vehicles and is therefore

contrary to Policy 61 (ii) (e) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015.

(4) The proposed access will involve cutting through a bank and the removal of
mature hedgerow. This will have a harmful impact upon the landscape character of

Page 75



the narrow rural lane and involve the loss of valuable natural habitat. Therefore, the
Council considers this application should be refused in accordance with Policies 50
and 51 (i) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015.

(5) The LPA must satisfy itself that the access proposed can be achieved without
third party consent.

(6) The Council feels that the access issue can most easily be resolved by
connecting the existing access to Caynton Lawns to the proposed bungalow along
the inside of the existing hedge line. This will avoid removing the ancient hedgerow
and resolve the traffic issues.

WC Highways — No objection subject to conditions
WC Ecology — No objections subject to conditions

WC Arboriculture Officer — No objection provided trees are protected in accordance with
the report

WC Archaeology — No objection
8. Publicity

The application has been advertised by way of letters to near neighbours as have the re-
consultation of amended plans for this proposal.

The publicity has generated nineteen letters of objection in total with comments received
summarised as the following:

e Concerns around the access being very narrow, unsafe for pedestrians and
unsuitable for additional traffic generated by way of this proposal;
Emergency vehicles unable to access Treetops;

Surface water run-off;

Amenity impacts;

Loss of mature hedgerow and damage to trees;

Land ownership/Rights of Way matters;

No specification for size of vehicle shown on the swept path analysis;

No provision for refuse bins;

Ecological concerns;

Use of the existing access serving Caynton Lawns rather than the new access;
Backland development

9. Planning Considerations

9.1 Principle of development, policy and planning history

The site forms part of the residential curtilage of the dwellinghouse known as Caynton Lawns
and is located within the village of Alderbury. The site is accessed via Oak Drive, a private

Page 76



gravel track that is bounded by trees and shrubbery and provides access to a number of other
residential dwellinghouses within the vicinity.

The site is located within the Southern Wiltshire Community Area and is within the defined
limits of development of Alderbury as set out within the Wiltshire Core Strategy (WCS). Within
Core Policy 23 of the WCS, Alderbury is defined as a Large Village where there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development.

Officers note applications S/1986/1577 and S/2008/0851 that sought planning permission for
the erection of chalet bungalows/bungalows were refused with the 1986 decision dismissed
on appeal for highway safety matters.

The refusal reason for application S/2008/0851 stated the following:

The proposed bungalow to the end of Oak Drive is considered unacceptable due to the
unsatisfactory form of access to the site. Oak Drive is a long, narrow track with no passing
places, it is unlit and poorly constructed, suffering also from poor visibility at its access point
to the public highway. Oak Drive currently serves nine dwellings and in its current state it is
considered that it is not a suitable condition to be used by the additional vehicular traffic that
will be generated by the proposed dwelling. As such, it is considered that the additional traffic
generated by the proposed development will be detrimental to the safety of the users of Oak
Drive and the adjacent public highway of Lights Lane, contrary to ‘saved’ Policy G2 of the
adopted Salisbury District Local Plan (June 2003).

Officers also note the recent planning approval 20/07065/FUL granted planning permission
for the erection of a new dwellinghouse with associated drive, carport/garage and
garden/amenity space subject to a number of conditions. Due to land ownership/rights of way
access along Oak Drive, this application has not been implemented. Notwithstanding the
matters around land ownership/rights of way matters, the Council’'s Highways Officer had no
objection to this scheme as the vehicle access for the proposed dwelling was shown to be
widened to create a passing point as well as an access to the property that was acceptable in
highway terms to all users of the private drive.

As such, officers consider that in principle the provision of an additional residential unit within
this location is considered to be acceptable, subject to further accordance with other relevant
elements of the development plan that include scale, design, materials, amenity, access,
parking provision, ecological matters including the River Avon SAC that will be covered within
the further sections of this report.

9.2 Design, scale and impact to the amenity of the area

Core Policy 57 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy (WCS) requires there to be a high standard of
design is required in all new developments, including extensions, alterations, and changes of
use of existing buildings. Development is expected to create a strong sense of place through
drawing on the local context and being complimentary to the locality.

The design of the proposed dwellinghouse would see the erection of a 1 % storey
dwellinghouse sited centrally within the plot of land to the rear of Caynton Lawns. The proposal
also includes the erection of a detached carport/garage to the rear of the site. The design and
layout of the proposed dwellinghouse as shown in the proposed plans below is identical to
that of the previous approval 20/07065/FUL.

Page 77



— ]

NORTH ELEVATION sus v EAST ELEVATION wus v

i

e —
g

SOUTH ELEVATION cus v WEST ELEVATION casm

Core Policy 57 requires that development should ensure the impact on the amenities of
existing occupants is acceptable, and ensuring that appropriate levels of amenity are
achievable within the development itself, and the NPPF (paragraph 130f) states that planning
decisions should ‘create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote
health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.’

The dwelling is proposed to be orientated east to west. A small window is proposed on the
south side elevation. This faces towards their side garden and the boundary comprised of
mature vegetation. Pigeon Hill is situated to the south however given the boundary treatment
and with a separation distance of over 30m, it is not considered this would result in undue
overlooking. For similar reasons, neither is the first-floor side window to the north considered
to have a negative impact on the host dwellinghouse known as Caynton Lawns.

The dwelling is set back approximately 12m from the eastern boundary and whilst the three
dormer windows on the front elevation would introduce an element of overlooking of the side
garden of 1 Treetop it would, nonetheless, be shielded to an extent by the existing vegetation
and mature trees separating the application site and this neighbouring property. As such, this
matter is not considered to be so significantly harmful as to warrant refusal of the scheme on
this basis.

By way of the central location of the dwelling within the plot, officers consider that there would
not be any significant overbearing on nearby properties as a result of this proposal to justify
the refusal of planning permission. The site has an existing residential use and whilst as a
result of this proposal, there would likely to be a slight increase in noise and disturbance by
way of the use of the site, this increase is unlikely to be excessive for a residential area once
the dwelling is built.

Within  Oak Drive, plot sizes are varied, but the lane has a low-density
character typified by dwellings that are mostly set in large plots. Officers consider that the
proposed plot size does allow for sufficient amenity space around the dwelling and the dwelling
would not be overly large for the plot. It is therefore considered that it would not appear out of
character with the existing form of development in Oak Drive. The site is not covered by any
TPOs, however there are mature trees that surround the boundaries of the site.

Part of the proposal would see the removal of a section of laurel hedgerow and bank to
facilitate the access point/turning space serving the proposed new dwellinghouse. Officers
note the comments received from the Parish Council and members of the public in regard to
this element of the proposal. Whilst the loss of existing hedgerow and bank is regrettable,

Page 78



these works are considered necessary from a highways perspective. This will be covered in
more detail in the next section of this report.

The application is also accompanied by an Arboricultural Assessment and Method Statement
undertaken by Barrell Tree Consultancy and a Tree Protection Plan. This assessment
confirms that the majority of trees on site as being of low quality, one of which is to be removed
to facilitate the works. The loss of the tree would not have any significant impact on the verdant
character of the area. The Council’s Arbroicultural Officer has assessed this proposal and has
returned comments of ‘no objection’ subject to the works being carried out in accordance with
the submitted report. A condition imposed onto any consent would address this matter.

Having regard to the design and layout of the proposed dwellinghouse being identical to that
of the previously approved scheme 20/07065/FUL, officers consider that this proposal is
acceptable in planning terms and therefore would not be contrary to Core Policy CP57 of the
WCS or the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF.

9.3 Highway safety/parking

Core Policy CP61 of the WCS states ‘new development should be located and designed to
reduce the need to travel particularly by private car, and to encourage the use of sustainable
transport alternatives’.

The plot is proposed to be accessed through the western boundary hedge onto the private
track, leading north to Lights Lane, the public highway. The track is narrow, particularly the
southern spur leading to the dwellinghouses known as 1 and 2 Treetops.

Officers note the comments that have been received to this element of the proposal from the
Parish Council and members of the public. In order to address concerns around this element,
officers have sought the opinion of the Highways Officer that have, after clarification and
additional information from the agent resulting in the need to re-consult all interested parties,
enabled the Highways Officer to have ‘no objection’ subject to conditions imposed onto any
consent for this proposal.

The proposed red line of the application site has been moved approximately 11 metres further
away from the dwellinghouse known as 1 Treetops to hegate matters of landownership and
access rights in comparison to the previous application.

A larger passing point has also been proposed at this access point by removing a section of
hedgerow and bank and incorporating a section of land within the curtilage of Caynton Lawns,
thus providing an access with passing point and turning to address the concerns raised by the
Parish Council and members of the public in respect of safety concerns. This additional
passing place at the point of the proposed access for the dwelling would provide a betterment
in highway terms as it provides an option for vehicles to pass towards the middle of the spur
rather than reversing to the end.

The agent has also provided a swept path analysis for a 7.5 ton panel van demonstrating that
should a vehicle be required to turn, there is sufficient manoeuvrability within the passing point
to enable this without damage to the verges of Oak Drive. This plan demonstrates that a 7.5
ton panel van similar in stature to a delivery van could manoeuvre satisfactorily.

Page 79



The access to the proposed new dwellinghouse and previously approved scheme
20/07065/FUL are shown below:

Proposed access subject of this planning application:

Approved access under planning permission 20/07065/FUL below:

As stated, officers note the concerns received from the members of the public and Parish
Council to this element of the proposal.

It should be stated that this lane, Oak Drive is not a public highway and a passing bay will be
introduced as previously stated, at the site access, to the benefit of all users of Oak Drive,
both pedestrian and vehicles. There are also informal passing places along the length of Oak
Drive. Whilst comments received raise objection to the lack of passing places and concerns
for pedestrian safety by virtue of the layout of Oak Drive, the proposal that creates an
additional passing place at the entrance to the access and additional justification as outlined,

Page 80



is in officers opinion beyond what is considered necessary in respect of highway safety given
the nature of the proposal, this being a single dwellinghouse.

In regard to concerns received around the access/egress from Oak Drive onto Lights Lane, it
is noted that no accidents have been recorded at this junction in its current form and that there
is a requirement for the visibility splays to be provided at this junction as part of planning
approval 20/06080/REM. The onus for implementation of the visibility splays lies solely with
the applicant or landowner and is not a matter for the Local Planning Authority to become
involved with. Furthermore, additional vehicle movements associated with one additional
dwellinghouse are not considered to be significant and vehicle speeds by way of the nature of
Oak Drive are low and therefore, it can be considered that any highway safety concerns are
limited.

The Council’'s Highways Officer has no objection to this scheme subject to the imposing of
conditions around the completion of the parking spaces prior to occupation of the
dwellinghouse and that a Construction Method Statement to manage matters of construction
and related issues during construction works associated with any consent.

Whilst the previous history of the site is noted, for the reasons as outlined above and subject
to the imposing of the conditions as recommended by the Highways Officer, it is considered
that there would not be any significant adverse harm to highway safety by way of this proposal
and as such the proposal, is not contrary to Core Policy CP61 of the WCS. Therefore, any
refusal of planning permission on this basis would be difficult to justify.

9.4 Ecological Impact including the River Avon Catchment Area

The application is accompanied by a Preliminary Ecological Assessment undertaken by Abbas
Ecology which has been reviewed by the Council’s Ecologist. Comments received from the
Ecologist following an assessment of this proposal state the following:

The application is located immediately adjacent to deciduous woodland habitat to the south in
close proximity to the County Wildlife Site (Hightrees Wood CWS) which is described as a
mixed woodland with field evidence that it is partly of ancient origin. Due to the scale of the
development and separation from these features adverse impacts on them are not predicted.
The Site is reported to largely comprise an area of well-manicured lawn/ improved grassland
bordered by trees, non-native hedgerow and shrubs. It is reported that there are no potential
bat roosting features within the Site but the assessment recognises that the western and
southern boundary have some potential to be used by foraging and commuting bats.
Mapping and aerial photography shows the boundaries connect to high value bat foraging
habitat in the wider landscape including Hightrees Wood CWS within 30m to the west and
woodland to the south. Bat activity surveys have not been carried out so it must be assumed
that the boundaries of the Site are used by a good assemblage of foraging and commuting
bats.

The Tree Protection Plan (Barrell Plan Ref: 20133-2, Barrell Tree Consultancy) demonstrates,
that with the exception of a single tree, all boundary trees will be retained and protected
however the introduction of artificial light may discourage bats from foraging and commuting
along these features.

Page 81



In order to ensure no loss of bat foraging and commuting habitat a lighting strategy
demonstrating a level of 0.5Lux or less can be achieved at the Site boundaries is required.

If not provided in advance of determination the strategy could be secured by a condition
requesting it is submitted to and approved by the planning authority prior to construction
commencing.

Features in the boundaries are potentially suitable for use by nesting birds and widespread
species of reptile and amphibian. Measures to avoid impacts on these groups are provided in
section 7. Recommendations of the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Abbas Ecology, August
2020) and must be adhered to.

Subject to conditions imposed onto any consent around lighting details and any permitted
works being carried out in accordance with the Tree Protection Plan and the recommendations
of the Preliminary Ecological Assessment, impacts to any protected species are likely to be
mitigated.

Core Policy CP50 of the WCS requires all development to demonstrate no net loss of
biodiversity. Comments received from the Ecologist on this matter state the following:

Evidence of no net loss of biodiversity has not been submitted and measures to deliver net
gain not proposed. Given the scale of the development and low value of habitats affected
significant net loss of biodiversity is considered unlikely however a condition is recommended
to minimise any loss and ensure measures for net gain are provided.

Officers therefore consider it necessary to impose the suggested condition onto any consent
to demonstrate biodiversity net gain.

The site is located within the New Forest Protected Sites which included the new Forest SPA,
New Forest SAC and New Forest Ramsar site. As such, it is screened into the Appropriate
Assessment under the Habitats Regulations 2017 (as amended) on account of its potential to
cause adverse effects through increased recreational pressure, which may occur alone and
in-combination with other plans and projects. The necessary mitigation for this development
is via a contribution through the Community Levy Infrastructure (CiL) that can be added as an
informative onto any consent.

WCS policy CP50 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity) and the NPPF requires the Local Planning
Authority to ensure protection of important habitats and species in relation to development and
seeks enhancement for the benefit of biodiversity through the planning system. Whilst the
application site is not adjacent to any rivers or in any respective flood zones, it is situated
within the River Test catchment which drains into the Solent. This region is protected by a
number of international designations including the Solent Maritime Special Area of
Conservation (SAC), Chichester and Langstone Harbours Special Protection Area (SPA) and
Ramsar site, Portsmouth Harbour SPA and Ramsar site, Solent and Southampton Water SPA
and Ramsar site; as well as the nationally designated Sites of Special Scientific Interest
(SSSiIs) that underpin these international designations.

This development falls within the catchment of the River Avon SAC and has potential to cause
adverse effects alone or in combination with other developments through discharge of
phosphorus in wastewater. Comments received from the Ecologist on this matter state ‘As the
development will not result in a change of land use, | conclude it will not lead to adverse
impacts alone and in-combination with other plans and projects on the Solent protected sites.’

Based on the comments, it is considered that the proposal subject to the conditions as

suggested imposed onto any consent, will not cause any significant adverse ecological impact
in respect of Core Policies CP50 and CP69 of the WCS.

Page 82



9.5 Flood Risk/Drainage

The application site is located within the Flood Zone 1 and therefore it is considered that there
is a low chance of the site flooding. Notwithstanding this, the application is accompanied by a
Flood Risk Assessment that sets out the main area to be addressed is the surface water
drainage strategy to ensure that this does not cause an issue to other properties. It is noted
that the final drainage strategy will conform to building regulations and be
assessed at that stage of the development process. It is considered that it will be possible to
adequately drain the site. As such, in planning terms, this is seen as acceptable and therefore
the proposal is considered not to be contrary to Core Policy CP67 of the WCS.

9.6 Other matters

Concerns received regarding emergency vehicles being able to access the site and beyond
are noted. However, in respect to the new dwelling proposed and fire appliances being unable
to access the site in the case of an emergency, the dwelling could be fitted with a full domestic
sprinkler system in accordance with Building Regulations. This is a matter that would need to
be addressed through the building regulation process and is not a consideration for the Local
Planning Authority. An ambulance would be able to access the property as it would not exceed
7.5 tons.

Concerns received around the proposal not using the existing access/egress to Caynton
Lawns are noted. Whilst this matter was discussed with the applicant/agent, it was requested
that the proposal should be assessed on the plans and justification put forward for the creation
of the new access as outlined within this report.

10. Conclusion and Planning Balance

There have been four different re-consultations for amendments and revisions to this planning
application that has generated a large number of objections from members of the public and
the Parish Council which are duly noted and have been carefully considered.

The majority of these concerns relate to the use of Oak Drive, a private gravel track and its
unsuitability for this proposal. Negotiations between the case officer, the Highways Officer and
the agent/applicant have sought to address these concerns through the provision of additional
information and revised plans that includes a swept path analysis for a 7.5 ton parcel van
demonstrating manoeuvrability within an enlarged passing point at the proposed access that
has required re-consultation to all interested parties through the planning application process.

The planning history of the site is noted and has been referred to within this report. On this
basis, that the comments received from the Highways Officer are satisfied from a highway
safety aspect and that this proposal for an additional dwellinghouse, subject to conditions
imposed onto any consent, would not have any adverse impact to users of Oak Drive it is
considered, planning permission should be granted for this proposal.

As such for the reasons outlined within this report, officers consider the proposal for the

erection of a new dwellinghouse and associated works conforms to the objectives of Core
Policies 23, 50, 51, 57, 61, 67 and 69 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and the aims of the NPPF.

Page 83



Taking the above into account, the application is not considered contrary to these policies as
it does not cause any significant material harm that would justify a refusal of planning
permission. Therefore, planning permission should be granted for the development.

11. RECOMMENDATION:

Approve with conditions:

1

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:

DWG No: 9466.121 Rev P2 Site Location Plan, Proposed Block Plan, Elevations,
Floor and Roof Plans Date Received 30.06.22

DWG No: 9466.130 Rev P5 Proposed Site Plan and Site Sections Date Received
05.08.22

DWG No: 2007044-TKO5 Rev B Swept Path Analysis 7.5t Panel Van Plan Date
Received 29.07.22

DWG No: 2007044-TK03 Swept Path Analysis 7.5t Panel Van Plan Date Received
24.05.22

DWG No: 9466.132 Rev P2 Proposed Garage Floor Plans and Elevations Date
Received 01.04.22

DWG No: 20133-2 Tree Protection Plan Date Received 01.04.22

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

No development shall commence above DPC ground floor level of the development
hereby permitted until details and sample panels of the external brickwork including
the chimney and roof tile, timber cladding, doors, windows, rooflights and roof lantern
to be used in the construction of the dwellinghouse and details of the external
brickwork, timber cladding, oak posts and roof tiles for the detached garage have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved detail.

REASON: To preserve and enhance the appearance of the countryside.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or
amending that Order with or without modification), there shall be no extensions,
alterations or further window openings inserted to the roofslopes or first floor
elevations to the approved dwelling other than as approved as part of a formal
planning application by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area.

Page 84



No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied until the access,
turning areas and parking spaces have been completed in accordance with the details
shown on the approved plans. The areas shall always be maintained for those
purposes thereafter and maintained free from the storage of materials.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

No development shall commence on site, until a Construction Management
Statement, together with a site plan, that shall include details of the parking of vehicles
of site operatives and visitors; Loading and unloading of plant and materials; Storage
of plant and materials used in constructing the development; Wheel washing facilities;
Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; Measures for
the protection of the natural environment and; Hours of construction, including
deliveries; has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction
period. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with
the approved construction method statement without the prior written permission of
the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, the
amenities of the area in general, detriment to the natural environment through the
risks of pollution and dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase.

Prior to the commencement of construction of the development hereby permitted,
details of the existing and proposed new lighting to include a site plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted
details must demonstrate a level of 0.5Lux can be achieved at the boundaries of the
site. The approved lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the
approved details.

REASON: In order to minimise unnecessary light spillage above and outside the
development site and to avoid illumination of habitat used by bats.

No development shall commence on site to include the removal of trees, shrubs or
hedgerow until full details of a Wildlife Protection and Enhancement Scheme has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
details of the scheme shall include:

0] Details of proposed measures that will be taken to avoid harm to wildlife,
including timing of works to avoid nesting birds and pre-commencement
checks for protected species including reptiles and amphibians.

(ii) Biodiversity net gain provision to include a plan showing the location(s)
and type(s) of feature(s) to enhance the site for wildlife such as bats,
nesting birds and hedgehogs.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and for the protection, mitigation and
enhancement of biodiversity.

The development hereby permitted shall be designed to ensure it does not exceed
110 litres per person per day water consumption levels (which includes external

Page 85



10

11

12

water usage). Within three months of the development first being brought into use, a
post construction stage certificate certifying that this standard has been approved
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for its written approval.

REASON: To ensure the development is nutrient neutral.

The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with Section 7 of the
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal by Abbas Ecology dated August 2020, the
Arbroicultural Appraisal and Method Statement by Barrell Tree Consultancy dated the
4" March 2022 and the Tree Protection Plan (Barrell Plan Ref: 20133-2) by Barrell
Tree Consultancy.

REASON: To protect the trees on sire in the interests of visual amenity of the area
and for the protection, mitigation and enhancement of biodiversity.

No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft landscaping
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the
details of which shall include:

(i) location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows on the
land;

(ii) full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the
course of development;

(iii) a detailed planting specification showing all plant species to include species, size
and density;

(iv) means of enclosure;
(v) all hard and soft surfacing materials to include details of refuse bin storage

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority
before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an
acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development.

All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of the landscaping scheme
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the first
occupation of the dwelling or the completion of the development whichever is the
sooner; All shrubs, trees and any other planting shall be maintained free from weeds
and shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which,
within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size
and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. All
hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with the approved details
prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with a
programme to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the
protection of existing important landscape features.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT(S):

Page 86



1.The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may represent
chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010
(as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging Schedule. If the development is
determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability Notice will be issued notifying you of the
amount of CIL payment due. If an Additional Information Form has not already been
submitted, please submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition,
you may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL Commencement
Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to Wiltshire Council prior to
commencement of development. Should development commence prior to the CIL
Liability Notice being issued by the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or
relief will not apply and full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect.
Should you require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to
the Council's Website
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructur

elevy

2.The applicant should note that under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act
(1981) and the Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence to disturb or harm any
protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting place. Please
note that this consent does not override the statutory protection afforded to any
such species. In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected
species you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist
and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to commencing works.
Please see Natural England’s website for further information on protected species.

3. The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any private
property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land
outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary for the applicant
to obtain the landowners consent before such works commence.

If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you are also

advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with regard to the
requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996.

Page 87


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.naturalengland.org.uk/Images/ProtectedSpeciesLists_tcm6-25123.pdf
http://www.ieem.net/members-directory
http://www.naturalengland.org.uk/ourwork/planningdevelopment/spatialplanning/standingadvice/default.aspx

This page is intentionally left blank



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2021 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Wiltshire Council

PL/2022/02766

Land rear of Caynton Lawns,
Oak Drive, Alderbury, Wilts,
SP5 3AJ

/
|

\) =\ —— 7 VOUTToy
B ; T ! ol
= - ¢

\ Crossways

\ -

)% Oakwood

) 5Rbsebu<is

Hamilton . . N

y 78.9m'
/. Windelbro,

N\
\
\ \ 9/ 4
] y

Westwood™. -

\
\ The a
\ Laurells /
\\ A
\

\\

U Tal

A \ Trees/
ﬁ Mere /"  /

|

. Treetops
S ‘\;\; \@/f /,
© Crown Copyright and Database Riéﬁts 2022 Ordnance Survey
T - 100049050/

e
ST

418838E 126919N m
© Crown Copyright and Database Rights 2022 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100049050

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



le L® " PL/2022/02766
Wiltshire Council Land rear of Caynton Lawns,

Oak Drive, Alderbury, Wilts,
SP5 3AJ

N
418838E 126919N m
1 : 1 ;250 A © Crown Copyright and Database Rights 2022 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100049050

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7c

REPORT OUTLINE FOR AREA PLANNING COMMITTEES Report No.
Date of Meeting 10" November 2022

Application Number PL/2022/03968 and PL/2022/04157

Site Address Berrybrook Farm, Street Lane, Sedgehill, SP7 9JQ
Proposal Proposed change of use of the Long Barn to holiday

accommodation, including new fenestration, rooflight's, an

extension, internal alterations and refurbishment of a granary

Applicant Mr P Harding

Town/Parish Council Sedgehill

Electoral Division Sedgehill- (Bridget Wayman)
Grid Ref 386,107 127,816

Type of application Full Planning

Case Officer Joe Richardson

Reason for the application being considered by Committee

The application has been called-in by Clir Wayman if officers are minded to approve.

1. Purpose of Report

The purpose of the report is to assess the merits of the proposal against the policies of the
development plan and other material considerations and to consider the recommendation that

the application be approved for the reason(s) set out below.
2. Report Summary
The issues in this case are:

e Principle of development;
o Design, scale and impact to the listed building;

¢ Impact to the amenity of the area and the special landscape area,;

e Ecological Impact and Archaeological Impact;
e Parking/Highways Impact;
Other matters

There have been three different re-consultations for amendments and revisions to this
planning application that have generated in total seven letters of objection to the application.
The application has also received two letters of objection from Sedgehill and Semley Parish
Council to the proposed development and an objection from Cllr Wayman, the local ward

member.

Three separate consultation phases have been undertaken for this planning application in
order to address the concerns received from statutory consultees, the Parish Council and
members of the public primarily around the design of the converted outbuilding known as Long
Barn (Building B). Concerns received from the Conservation Officer of Wiltshire Council to
this proposal were in respect of rooflights/fenestration arrangements proposed for the

Page 93



conversion of the curtilage listed Long Barn and the request to remove the proposed porch
and reservations around the size of the window openings proposed. Further concerns were
received from the Parish Council as outlined in their response. As such, the case officer has
sought to address these matters throughout the course of these applications which has
resulted in the need for re-consultation to all interested parties.

As mentioned, this application has resulted in various sets of amended plans being produced
for these applications that has resulted in the need for re-consultation to all interested parties.
Despite the submission of the amended plans, the Parish Council have maintained their
objection to this proposal for the reasoning as set out in Section 7 (Summary of consultation
responses).

3. Site Description

Berrybrook Farm, the subject of these applications for planning permission and listed building
consent is a grade Il listed farmhouse located within an existing farmyard of various
outbuildings of which some pre-date 1948 and therefore are considered curtilage listed. The
site is not located within a settlement boundary and is thereforeoutside of the defined limits of
development as defined by the relevant policies of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy (WCS)
and as such is considered to be within the countryside for the purposes of the local plan.

4. Planning History

PL/2021/08480(FUL) & PL/2021/09025(LBC) — Single storey rear extension to existing
farmhouse. Internal and external renovations to windows, doors and dormers. Alteration
to access. Conversion of cowshed (building J) to garage and conversion and renovation
of cowshed/cart shed to home office stores and carports (building I). Demolition of barns
H, G and M (post 1948). A.C 13.12.21

21/00072/PNCOU — Notification for prior approval under Class Q for a proposed change
of use and conversion of agricultural buildings to five dwellings (Use Class C3) and
associated building operations WTD 02.02.21

20/05785/LBC — Repair and reinstatement of a partly collapsed wall WTD 24.09.20

5. The Proposal

The proposal seeks planning permission and listed building consent for the change of use of
the Long Barn to provide two holiday accommodation units with associated works that include
new fenestration, rooflights, an extension, internal alterations and the refurbishment of the
granary building.

For the purposes of this report, Long Barn is referred to as Building B1/B2 and the granary
building is referred to as Building E.

6. Local and National Planning Policy

S16/66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

National Planning Policy Framework

Page 94



Section 2 Achieving Sustainable Development

Section 12 Achieving Well Designed Places

Section 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Section 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Wiltshire Core Strategy

Core Policy 1 Settlement Strategy

Core Policy 2 Delivery Strategy

Core Policy 39 Tourist Development

Core Policy 48 Supporting Rural Life

Core Policy 50 Biodiversity and Geodiversity

Core Policy 51 Landscaping

Core Policy 57 Ensuring high quality design and place shaping

Core Policy 58 Ensuring the conservation of the historic environment
Core Policy 61 Transport and New Development

National Planning Policy Framework

Section 2 Achieving Sustainable Development

Section 12 Achieving Well Designed Place

Section 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Section 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2015-2026:
Car Parking Strategy

Salisbury District Local Plan
C6 Special Landscape Area

7. Summary of consultation responses
Sedgehill and Semley Parish Council — Objection with comments stating:

This letter is Sedgehill and Semley Parish Council’'s (SSPC) formal response to Wiltshire
Council (WC) regarding Planning Application PL/2022/03968 SSPC have considered the
application, the plans and accompanying planning statement, as submitted.

Main issue : Intensification of development within a rural environment. In considering this new
application, SSPC support the preservation of historic buildings and where appropriate the re-
imagining of their future use as a route to retaining both their character and presence within
the parish and the rural landscape surrounding. This application proposes the re-use of an
existing vacant, and ultimately derelict, barn within a listed setting and in so doing a natural
balance must be struck between the commercial interests of the applicant and the much-
needed restoration and preservation of the building form. The principle of repurposing the
listed barn for residential accommodation in the form of 2 holiday let properties is not
something SSPC seeks to object against. SSPC are, however, concerned that the proposals
as submitted create an over intensification of the building form and on balance does not
sufficiently address the impact of such change of use, upon the amenity of Sedgehill House
and the wider rural character of the area. The applicant has positively engaged with SSPC, in
responding to several questions posed in recent weeks. However, the applicant has still not
presented an outline masterplan for the entire site to illustrate their overall ambitions and to

Page 95



show how they intend to manage the accumulative effects of submitting multiple applications.
It seems illogical to SSPC that the applicant would not want to showcase their ambition for
this important location and the phased approach to bringing it back to life for the modern era.
There are several changes SSPC would wish to see to the application or subsequent new
application should officers be minded to refuse. These are addressed further below. SSPC,
however, feel the fundamental issue is the intensification of the buildings use in the form of 2
x 3 bed residential properties intended to be used for holiday lets. One can see that in order
to balance the living and sleeping accommodation for the 2" of the 2 properties, furthest from
the road, the applicant proposes a single storey extension with centrally positioned French
doors. This extended addition, intensifies the amount of built form to the rear of the barn, and
in doing so negatively encroaches upon the neighbouring property Sedgehill house. The
intensification of built form and therein future usage will, in the opinion of SSPC, create a
harmful relationship with Sedgehill House and an urbanising effect. In assessing the
application and balancing the need to preserve an important building within the parish, whilst
still protecting the amenity of Sedgehill House and the rural character of the parish, SSPC
does not feel the applicant has provided sufficient justification and evidence as to why 2 x 3
bed residential properties are required. SSPC opinion is that the property which presently has
the ground floor extension proposed, should in fact be a 2 bed property and the extension
removed. Should the applicant seek to amend or change via a new application their proposals,
and subject to also adhering to the matters listed below, SSPC would consider the application
in more positive light. It has been disappointing to see the applicant not embrace and address
certain other key and in part fundamental considerations within their application. SSPC
consider the application, which at a very basic level proposes two new residential properties,
should have addressed the following items. 1. The proposed boundary should be secured by
way of a 1.8m fence, the detail of which should be conditioned and agreed with officers prior
to commencement. SSPC would also expect the applicant to work with the owner of Sedgehill
House to ensure the design and specification was agreeable. 2. All external windows should
be designed with light reducing film, in order to reduce any internal light from emitting to the
external natural environment. This is to preserve the rural character of the area and limit the
extent of light pollution created from the proposed future use. 3. All external lights (other than
emergency/security lighting) should not be erected more than 1.5m from the ground. The bulb
illumination should be no greater than circa 150 lumens, and with the direction of illumination
being no greater than 80 degrees facing downwards, when affixed to an external wall. The
bulb should be of LED and not incandescent design. 4. Any emergency or security light should
have no greater than circa 1,000 lumens, and with a direction of illumination being no greater
than 80 degrees facing downwards, when affixed to an external wall. The height should be no
more than 2m from the ground and the lamp should have a manual override. The bulb should
be of LED and not incandescent design 5. Any bollard lighting should have a directional cover
to ensure no light pollution is created than absolutely required. No up lighting should be
allowed. 6. Each property should provide a minimum of 20% carbon reduction, through the
use of renewable technologies and be required to limit the use of water to no more than
110l/per person/day. 7. Each property should be fitted with a fast charging electric charging
point. Further additional items which SSPC would advise officers to also consider are: 8. The
use of the grain store, as a store, should be conditioned. 9. All PD rights should be removed.
10. The occupation of each property should be a condition limiting the maximum occupation
period to 90 days in any 12 month period. 11. An ecological management plan should be
submitted and approved by officers, and in doing so no works should commence until the bat
roosts and any other such habitats have been appropriately safeguarded. 12. The relocation

Page 96



of the Dutch Barn, which is necessary to create the required outdoor space for the 2 properties,
should be relocated and positioned parallel and not perpendicular with building K. No works
to the barn should commence until this Dutch barn has been relocated. Considering the
content of the application, the intensification of the built form and the lack of justification
thereto, SSPC’s recommendation to WC Planning Officer/Committee is that this planning
application PL/2022/03968 be refused in its current form.

WC Conservation — No objection subject to conditions
WC Highways — No objection subject to conditions
WC Ecology — No objections subject to conditions
WC Archaeology — No objection

Wessex Water — No objection

8. Publicity

The application has been advertised by way of letters to near neighbours as have the re-
consultation of amended plans for this proposal.

The publicity has generated seven letters of objection in total with comments received
summarised as the following:

¢ Detrimental impact on the amenity of the surrounding area, namely Sedgehill House;
o Proposal is not considered to be ‘sustainable development’ and would lead to
increased vehicular movement;

Lack of ecological surveys;

Contrary to saved policy C6 of the Salisbury District Local Plan (SDLP);
Separation distances between Sedgehill House and the application site;

Lack of suitable boundary treatments;

Lack of a masterplan for the re-development of the site;

Overdevelopment of the site;

Need for an extension on the northern elevation of Long Barn B;

Concern for the conversion of Barn F and future uses of the site;

Issue around energy performance for privately rented buildings;

Light pollution from relocated rooflights

9. Planning Considerations

9.1 Principle of development

The application site relates to the farm complex of Berrybrook Farm, which lies within the rural
surrounds of Semley and within the special landscape area. The associated detached stone
and tile dwellinghouse is Grade Il listed within an existing farmyard of various outbuildings of
which some pre-date 1948 and therefore are considered curtilage listed.

Page 97



The site is not located within a settlement boundary and is thereforeoutside of the defined
limits of development as defined by the relevant policies of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy
(WCS) and as such is considered to be within the countryside for the purposes of the local
plan.

Planning permission and listed building consent are sought for the change of use of the Long
Barn to provide two holiday accommodation units with associated works that include new
fenestration, rooflights, an extension, internal alterations and the refurbishment of the granary
building.

Below is an extract from the masterplan for the site that shows the matters pertinent to the
applications for this scheme and future proposals. For the purposes of these applications the
Long Barn B that is to be converted into two holiday lets is referred to as B1/B2 and the
Granary building referred to as E. Barn C, the Dutch barn is no longer proposed to be re-sited
within the farmyard complex and is to be demolished. This building is shown with a red line
and is referred to as Building C.

Both buildings subject to these applications, Long Barn B (B1/B2) and the Granary (E) are
curtilage listed.

It is noted from the planning history Barns B, D & F were subject of a Notification for Prior
Approval under Class Q for a Proposed Change of Use and Conversion of Agricultural
Buildings to Five Dwellings which was subsequently withdrawn after officers had advised the
barns were curtilage listed.

SAEEES ¢ Barns G and H

| e —— A currently used to store hay
| { Barns F to be replaced with a will be demolished
| [ new building in the future to compliment following the Barn K is currently used by livestock and
‘ the existing bam i’ by creating a development of Bam for storage in the future it is proposed that

F or relocation of Barn K this barn is to be moved or replaced with a
new barn for agriculture elsewhere on the
farm subject to obtaining any prior approval.
The existing site will be returned to use as
arable land.

courtyard arrangement, to enhance
the setting of the whole farmyard,
building use subject to

planning permissions.

Barmn E to Bat Loft
and Store.

| Barn D will be retained
as as an agricultural barn.

Barn C to be demolished and removed.

Page 98




Regards the principle of development, the application proposes new tourist development in
the form of two holiday lets following the conversion of the Long Barn (Building B1/B2) and it
must demonstrate the scheme is accordant with the exceptions criteria set out under criteria i
to v of Core Policy 39. The policy states:

In exceptional cases development may be supported away from the Principal Settlements,
Market Towns, Local Service Centres and Large and Small Villages where it can be
demonstrated that all of the following criteria are met:

i. There is evidence that the facilities are in conjunction with a particular countryside attraction;
ii. No suitable alternative existing buildings or sites exist which are available for re-use;

iii. The scale, design and use of the proposal is compatible with its wider landscape setting
and would not detract from the character or appearance of the landscape or settlement and
would not be detrimental to the amenities of residential areas;

iv. The building is served by adequate access and infrastructure; and

v. The site has reasonable access to local services and a local employment base.

Any proposal needs to carefully consider the need to protect landscapes and environmentally
sensitive sites with the objective of providing adequate facilities, enhancing enjoyment and
improving the financial viability of the attraction. If new buildings are required in the countryside
for tourist development these should be directed towards the Local Service Centres and Large
and Small Villages.

The policy states that development should be located towards settlements, towns and villages
however there are exceptions criteria as listed above. Officers note that the proposal may not
be strictly in accordance with the criterion of Core Policy CP39 of the WCS. Essentially this is
a curtilage listed barn that by way of the works proposed, is to be maintained and enhanced
thus increasing the longevity of the building. Officers therefore consider that this proposal for
a residential use would be the most viable option for the longevity and preservation of this
curtilage listed building.

Officers consider it appropriate to limit the use of the two proposed holiday lets by imposing
conditions onto any consent thus mitigating potential amenity impacts. It is considered
appropriate to limit the occupation of each holiday let by not allowing any person(s) to reside
within the holiday let for more than 28 days in one calendar year or allowing either building to
be used as permanent residential accommodation for one person(s). Whilst the use of the
holiday lets can be limited for a time period each year, i.e. 15t March to the 315 October via a
planning condition, in this instance it would not be reasonable or necessary to impose a
condition to this extent. Given that the optimum use of this curtilage listed building is for a
residential use, thus enhancing and preserving this building, the use of the converted building
for holiday lets for an all year round use rather than a limited time period is considered
reasonable on this occasion.

In terms of the principle of development, with regards the conversion and re-use of rural
buildings Core Policy 48 states —

Proposals to convert and re-use rural buildings for employment, tourism, cultural and
community uses will be supported where they satisfy the following criteria:

i. The building(s) is/are structurally sound and capable of conversion without major
rebuilding, and with only necessary extension or modification which preserves the character
of the original building.

ii. The use would not detract from the character or appearance of the landscape or
settlement and would not be detrimental to the amenities of residential areas.

Page 99



iii. The building can be served by adequate access and infrastructure.
iv. The site has reasonable access to local services.

v. The conversion or re-use of a heritage asset would lead to its viable long term
safeguarding.

In this instance the use of the Long Barn (Building B1/B2) for holiday lets is considered a
suitable use and the use of the granary following the repairs and recladding of this building
to enable part of this to become a compensatory bat roost would result in improvements
within the site and to the setting and safeguarding of heritage assets in line with the
requirements of this policy. As such officers consider this proposal to adhere to Core Policy
CP48 of the WCS.

The proposed development at the site is considered acceptable in principle, provided the
development is appropriate in terms of its scale, siting and design to its context, and provided
other interests including heritage impacts, landscape, residential amenity, highways and
ecology are addressed. These matters are discussed in subsequent sections.

9.2 Design, scale and impact to the listed building

Core Policy 57 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy (WCS) requires there to be a high standard of
design is required in all new developments, including extensions, alterations, and changes of
use of existing buildings. Development is expected to create a strong sense of place through
drawing on the local context and being complimentary to the locality.

Core Policy CP58 states that designation of a conservation area or listed building does not
preclude the possibility of new development. In considering applications for new development,
the council will seek to ensure that the form, scale, design and materials of new buildings are
complementary to the historic context. Core Policy CP58 also states that ‘Development should
protect, conserve and where possible enhance the historic environment’.

Section 16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states that in
considering whether to grant listed building consent for any works the local planning authority
[or the Secretary of State] shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building
or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires
‘special regard’ to be given to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting.

The proposed works would see the conversion of the existing long barn (B1/B2) into two
holiday lets. The existing long barn is a single build of English Bond brick with a slate roof that
originally contained individual loose boxes, stalls and stores that was partially converted to a
milking parlour and diary. The existing elevations of this building are shown below.

Page 100



East Elevation 1:100

West Elevation 1:100

wa

o B 2l -
| —-a -y .
H - o - -

In the respect of the context of the site, the eastern elevation is adjacent to the grade Il listed
building, Berrybrook Farmhouse. The Council’s Conservation Officer commented on this

element of the proposal with the following:

The handling of this elevation is important and the current character of the openings should
be retained as they are of evidential significance. In that respect, | welcome the use of the
existing openings and retention of existing doors (largely). | would request that rooflights
should be relocated on the rear slope and | consider the porch element to be harmful to the

character of the building and | would recommend omitting it.

A snippet of her comments is shown below:

Remove porch as
interrupts eaves line

Rooflights on rear,
not on this slope

| Welcome retention of doors | Can existing door be

oppesite side

retained here but
perhaps nmg on

Feeservations about size of this opening in view of
amount of glazing the close to the road so will be
visible?

West Elevation 1:100 ‘I,J’




To address these concerns, the design of the conversion of the barn evolved and the following
amendments were provided that omitted the porch and re-sited the rooflights to the western
roofslope and with a reduction in the glazing proposed. The design includes the retention of
the small extension to create a dining/open plan kitchen area which in officer opinion is very
modest in scale and massing. The plans below are the revised and final version to which the
Council’'s Conservation Officer considers are acceptable as her original concerns have now
been addressed.

East Elevation 1:100

West Elevation 1:100

e uzas

= — 4

——
—
TR
(L
i
-

30

In respect of the proposed works to the Granary building (E), the Conservation Officer has no
objection to these works that would largely be around the maintenance of the building subject
to a number of conditions imposed onto any consent. The works that include repairs should
be carried out in situ and the building should not be dismantled to facilitate these works.

An objection to the dismantling and relocating of the Dutch Barn (Barn C) was raised by the
Conservation Officer in respect of the adverse impact the relocation of this barn would have
on the setting of the listed farmhouse. Following discussions and negotiations with between
the case officer and the agent, this element of the proposal has been omitted from the scheme.
It is now intended to demolish this Dutch Barn (Barn C) and not relocate it as previously
outlined.

Subject to the suggested conditions as advised from the Council’s Conservation Officer, that
include the use of reclaimed clay tiles for the works to the Granary (Building E) and further
materials details in respect of the works proposed to convert Long Barn (Building B1/B2), the
proposals are considered to preserve the setting of the listed farmhouse whilst at the same
time providing new uses (with the exception of the granary) for the curtilage listed buildings
and thereby ensuring their on-going preservation. As such officers consider that the proposals
are in accordance with Sections 16 and 66 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation
Area) Act 1990 and accord to the requirements of Core Policies CP57 and CP58 of the WCS.

9.3 Impact to the amenity of the area and the special landscape area

Core Policy 57 requires that development should ensure the impact on the amenities of
existing occupants is acceptable, and ensuring that appropriate levels of amenity are

Page 102



achievable within the development itself, and the NPPF (paragraph 130f) states that planning
decisions should ‘create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote
health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.’

Saved policy C6 Within the Special Landscape Area, proposals for development in the
countryside will be considered having particular regard to the high quality of the landscape.
Where proposals which would not have an adverse effect on the quality on the landscape are
acceptable, they will be subject to the following criteria;

(i) the siting and scale of development to be sympathetic with the landscape; and

(ii) high standards of landscaping and design, using materials which are appropriate to the
locality and reflect the character of the area.

Officers note the concerns received from the members of the public and Parish Council in
relation to this proposal. The existing farm complex is located in a relatively rural area with the
dwellinghouse known as Sedgehill House in close proximity to the site, specifically the Long
Barn (Building B1/B2) that is proposed to be converted to two holiday lets. Sedgehill House is
sited approximately 50 metres from the application site subject to these applications.
Comments received in respect to the relocating of the proposed rooflights to the western
elevation of Long Barn (Building B1/B2) to be converted into two holiday lets by way of
overlooking impacting on the amenity of this neighbouring property are duly noted.

Having regard for the proposed residential use of the converted barn as holiday lets, there
would potentially be an increased level of overlooking from the rooflights inserted into the
western roofslope to the adjacent property known as Sedgehill House. In order to address the
concerns around light pollution from the converted barn, all glazing is to be treated with film to
reduce visible light spill which includes the proposed rooflights in the western roofslope.
However, it should be noted that the rooflights proposed are serving bedrooms that are not
principal habitable rooms. Furthermore given the relationship and distance between Sedgehill
House and the barn to be converted, some 50 metres, any overlooking/amenity impacts would
be minimal in officer opinion and would not justify the refusal of planning permission and listed
building consent.

Whilst third parties may feel that the ability to simply view the converted barn and alterations
from Sedgehill House would somehow reduce privacy levels, in this particularly situation, the
changes that include the extension are relatively modest in scale, a refusal of the proposed
works solely on the basis that it would unduly harm neighbouring amenity by creating the
perception of overlooking is unlikely to be successful at appeal, particular given the degree of
separation between the application site and this neighbouring property. Furthermore, a new
hedge and 1.8 metre fence is proposed to be erected/planted along this section of the
boundary, on land within the applicant’s control to reduce the levels of potential overlooking
onto the neighbouring property, Sedgehill House by users of the two proposed holiday lets
following the conversion of this barn. It is noted that the proposed hedgerow will take some
time to mature appropriately, however this would be mitigated to an extent by the erection of
the 1.8 metre fencing proposed. The concerns received regarding the removal of the proposed
hedgerow are noted but it would not be reasonable in the context of the use of planning
conditions to impose a condition onto any consent requiring that hedgerow to be maintained
in perpetuity.

Other works include the erection of dwarf walling on the south elevation/roadside to infill a gap
between the existing stone walling thus enclosing the proposed redevelopment of the barn.

Page 103



As referred to in the previous section of this report, the use of the two holiday lets proposed
can have conditions imposed onto any consent ensuring that these holiday lets do not become
any person(s) permanent residential abode.

The comments received from the members of the public and Parish Council in regard to this
matter are noted but for the reasons as outlined with conditions imposed onto any consent
limiting the use of the proposed holiday lets, officers consider that the proposed works would
not have any significant adverse impact to the amenity of the area that would warrant the
refusal of planning permission and listed building consent.

Given the totality of the works proposed by way of this development proposal and having
regard for the visual improvements by way of the Long Barn being converted and Granary
being maintained and enhanced, it is considered there would not be any impact on the special
landscape area.

9.4 Ecological Impact and Archaeological Impact

CP50 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework require that
the planning authority ensures protection of important habitats and species in relation to
development and seeks enhancement for the benefit of biodiversity through the planning
system.

The application is accompanied by an Ecological Impact Assessment (EIA) undertaken by
Darwin Ecology which has been reviewed by the Council’s Ecologist. Comments received
from the Ecologist following an assessment of this proposal have no objection to this scheme
subject to the proposed works being carried out in accordance with this document and the
Mitigation, Compensation and Enhancement Plan that shows appropriate ecological mitigation
by way of the proposed. Subject to the imposing of a condition to this extent as per the
recommendations of the Council’s Ecologist, officers consider that the works proposed will not
cause any significant adverse ecological impact in respect of Core Policy CP50 of the WCS.

The Council’'s Archaeologist has commented on this scheme and has provided the following
comments to this proposal:

The heritage statement (Western Design Architects, May 2022) submitted in support of this
application notes (Para. 1.1.2) that ‘Berrybrook Farm is part of an historic dairy farm which
comprises of a farmhouse, various agricultural buildings of differing ages and uses and
agricultural land...The site dates from the late C17 with various building alterations and
additions taking place up until the late 1990s’. Wiltshire’s Historic Environment Record (HER)
notes that placename evidence suggests that the farmstead may have medieval origins, while
the Royal Commission on the Historical Monuments of England (RCHME) recorded
earthworks south of the farm in the 1990s that may represent traces of medieval settlement.

Having reviewed the details of this proposal, there are elements that have below ground
impacts. However, the proposed extension to the Long Barn is small in area, while the other
works, such as services, hard standings and the relocation of the 1950s Dutch barn to the
north of the late 20th-century cow sheds, are not substantial in terms of their below ground
impacts and fall within the existing farm complex. On this basis, | am satisfied that in this
instance an archaeological response to this proposal is not justified. No further action is
therefore required in relation to this application as regards the buried archaeological heritage.

Page 104



Based on the comments received above, officers consider that the proposed works would not
have any adverse impact to buried archaeological heritage that would warrant the refusal of
planning permission or listed building consent for this scheme.

9.5 Parking/Highway Safety

Officers note that the previous planning consents on the site, PL/2021/08480 and
PL/2021/09025 involved works that included access alterations, widening of the existing
access, improvements to the visibility and new gates set back from the highway.

The proposed subject to this scheme for planning permission and listed building consent are
identical to that of the previous schemes. The only differences would be the changes in style
of the access gates to the entrance of the farm complex in the form of black metal estate gates
and the creation of an internal access to the converted Long Barn (B1/B2) building. The
Council's Highways Officer has assessed this proposal and has returned the following
comments:

| note the proposed conversion of the existing barn for use as two, three bedroom holiday
lets. | also note the recent planning history of the site and that this application also includes
the welcomed access alterations within the proposals, which seek to widen the access, with
new gates set back form the highway, as well as an improvement to visibility. Adequate car
parking is also shown on site and as such, | recommend that no Highway objection is raised,
subject to the following conditions and informative being added to any consent granted;

CONDITIONS:

1. The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into use until the first 5m of
the access, measured from the edge of the carriageway, has been consolidated and
surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety

2. Notwithstanding the submitted details, the proposed development shall not be occupied
until means/works have been implemented to avoid private water from entering the highway.

REASON: To ensure that the highway is not inundated with private water.

3. Any gates shall be set back 5 metres from the edge of the carriageway, such gates to
open inwards only.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

4. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first brought into use until the
access, turning areas & parking spaces have been completed in accordance with the details
shown on the approved plans. The areas shall always be maintained for those purposes
thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

INFORMATIVE:

1. The application involves an extension to the existing/creation of a new vehicle
access/dropped kerb. The consent hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to
carry out works on the highway. The applicant is advised that a licence will be required from
Wiltshire’s Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath,

Page 105



carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the highway. Please contact our Vehicle
Crossing Team on vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk and/or 01225 713352 or visit their
website at http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets to make an application.

Subject to the imposing of the suggested conditions from the Council’s Highways Officer onto
any consent, officers consider that the proposed works will not cause any significant
detrimental impact to highway safety or highway users to justify the refusal of planning
permission and listed building consent for this proposal.

9.6 Other matters

Written concerns have been received from members of the public regarding the overall
intention of the applicant for the use and redevelopment of the farm complex in that these
applications are piecemeal in approach and; there is no overall masterplan for the complex. It
can be stated that each application received by the Local Planning Authority is judged on its
own merits and against local and national planning policies. There is no requirement for the
applicant as part of these applications to provide details of potential other projects within the
site. Whilst the applicant has provided a masterplan that does illustrate what works are
proposed in the future, the Local Planning Authority can only assess the currents applications
subject to this proposal.

Written concerns received in respect of the converted holidays having a rating of C or above
for Energy Performance Certificates (EPC) as a requirement of national government in 2025
are noted. This is a matter for the applicant to address with building regulations and is not a
material consideration for these applications.

Written concerns around the provision of electric vehicle charging points are noted. The
revised proposed site layout plan (DWG No: 29 Rev |) shows provision for two charging points,
one for each holiday let proposed within the proposed parking spaces.

10. Conclusion and Planning Balance

There have been three different re-consultations for amendments and revisions to these
applications for planning permission and listed building consent that has generated a number
of objections from members of the public and the Parish Council which are duly noted and
have been carefully considered.

Throughout the course of these applications, the applicant and agent have sought to address
the concerns received from members of the public and the Parish Council through the
submission of additional information and amended plans.

The use of the converted Long Barn (B1/B2), a curtilage listed building for holiday let
accommodation is considered the optimum use for the building that would appropriately
preserve and enhance this building whilst ensuring its future longevity. The maintenance and
upkeeping of the Granary building (E) for bat compensatory measures again would in the
opinion of the case officer appropriately preserve and enhance the longevity of this curtilage
listed building thus preserving and enhancing the setting of the grade Il listed farmhouse,
Berrybrook Farm and the wider area.

As such, for the reasons as outlined within this report, officers consider the proposal for the
redevelopment of the farm complex and associated works conforms to the objectives of Core

Page 106


mailto:vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets

Policies 39, 48, 50, 51, 57, 58 and 61 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and saved policy C6 of
the Saved Salisbury District Local Plan.

Taking the above into account, the applications are not considered contrary to these policies
as it does not cause any significant material harm that would justify a refusal of planning
permission and listed building consent. Therefore, planning permission and listed building
consent should be granted for the development.

11. RECOMMENDATION:

Approve with conditions:

Conditions for planning permission application PL/2022/03968

1

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:

DWG No: 22 Rev A Site Location Plan Date Received 09.09.22

DWG No: 29 Rev | Proposed Site Layout Plan Date Received 19.10.22

DWG No: 27 Rev B Proposed Longbarn B Floor Plans, Roof Plan and South
Roadside Elevation Date Received 09.09.22

DWG No: 28 Rev C Proposed Longbarn B Elevations and Sections Date Received
09.09.22

DWG No: 30 Rev B Proposed Granary E Elevations, Floor Plans and Ground Floor
Joist Plan Date Received 09.09.22

DWG No: Figure 3 Mitigation, Compensation and Enhancement Plan Date Received
25.10.22

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Prior to the occupation of the holiday lets hereby approved, all glazing to be inserted
into the converted building shall be fitted with solar control film to reduce visible light
transmittance and spill as per the details of an email received by the Local Planning
Authority dated the 9" September 2022.

REASON: In the interest of amenity and to avoid unnecessary light spill.
Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 2020 as
amended (or any Order revoking and re-enacting this Order), the holiday lodges

hereby approved shall be used for holiday/tourism accommodation only and for no
other residential or business purpose.

Page 107



10

11

REASON: The holiday lodges are sited in a position where the Local Planning
Authority, having regard to the reasonable standards of residential amenity, access,
and planning policies pertaining to the area, would not permit a wholly separate
dwelling.

No person/s shall occupy the two holiday lodges for a continuous period of more than
28 days in any calendar year, and the holiday/tourism accommodation hereby
approved shall not be re-occupied by the same person/s within 28 days following the
end of that period.

REASON: This site is in a position where the Local Planning Authority, having regard
to the reasonable standards of residential amenity, access, and planning policies
pertaining to the area, would not permit permanent residential accommodation.

The two holiday lodges hereby permitted shall not be occupied as any person’s sole
or main place or residence.

REASON: This site is in a position where the Local Planning Authority, having regard
to the reasonable standards of residential amenity, access, and planning policies
pertaining to the area, would not permit permanent residential accommodation.

The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into use until the first 5m
of the access, measured from the edge of the carriageway, has been consolidated and
surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access shall be maintained as such
thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

Notwithstanding the submitted details, the proposed development shall not be
occupied until means/works have been implemented to avoid private water from
entering the highway.

REASON: To ensure that the highway is not inundated with private water.

Any gates shall be set back 5 metres from the edge of the carriageway, such gates to
open inwards only.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first brought into use until the
access, turning areas and parking spaces have been completed in accordance with
the details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall always be maintained for
those purposes thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with Ecological impact
Appraisal by Darwin Ecology dated July 2022 and the Proposed Mitigation,
Compensation and Enhancement Plan (DWG No: Figure 3).

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and the protection, mitigation and
enhancement of biodiversity.

Page 108



12

13

No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft landscaping
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the
details of which shall include:

(i) location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows on the
land;

(ii) full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the
course of development;

(i) a detailed planting specification showing all plant/hedgerow species to include
species, size and density;

(iv) means of enclosure to include details of the fencing and new estate fencing lining
the entrance drive;

(v) all hard and soft surfacing materials to include details of the surface way material
that shall not be tarmac and details of refuse bin storage and bikes stores.

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority
before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an
acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development.

All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of the landscaping scheme
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the first
occupation of the dwelling or the completion of the development whichever is the
sooner; All shrubs, trees and any other planting shall be maintained free from weeds
and shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which,
within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size
and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. All
hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with the approved details
prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with a
programme to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the
protection of existing important landscape features.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT(S):

1.The roof space of Barn B is used as a bat roost. Under the Conservation of Habitat
Regulations, it is an offence to harm or disturb bats or damage or destroy their roosts.
Planning permission for development does not provide a defence against prosecution
under this legislation. The applicant is advised that a Natural England licence will be
required before any work is undertaken to implement this planning permission.

2. The application involves an extension to the existing/creation of a new vehicle
access/dropped kerb. The consent hereby granted shall not be construed as authority
to carry out works on the highway. The applicant is advised that a licence will be
required from Wiltshire’s Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any
footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the highway. Please
contact our Vehicle Crossing Team on vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk and/or 01225

Page 109


mailto:vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk

713352 or visit their website at http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets to make an
application.

3. The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any private
property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land

outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary for the applicant
to obtain the landowners consent before such works commence.

If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you are also
advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with regard to the
requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996.

Conditions for listed building consent application PL/2022/04157

1. The works for which Listed Building Consent is hereby granted shall be begun before
the expiration of three years from the date of this consent.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:

DWG No: 22 Rev A Site Location Plan Date Received 09.09.22

DWG No: 29 Rev | Proposed Site Layout Plan Date Received 19.10.22

DWG No: 27 Rev B Proposed Longbarn B Floor Plans, Roof Plan and South
Roadside Elevation Date Received 09.09.22

DWG No: 28 Rev C Proposed Longbarn B Elevations and Sections Date Received
09.09.22

DWG No: 30 Rev B Proposed Granary E Elevations, Floor Plans and Ground Floor
Joist Plan Date Received 09.09.22

DWG No: Figure 3 Mitigation and Enhancement Plan Date Received 25.10.22

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. No works shall commence above DPC ground floor level of the development hereby
permitted until details of the following have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority:

e Brochure details of the black metal gate for the farmhouse and access gates;

For LongBarn building (B1/B2):

e Details of the new external doors and windows (brochure details will suffice) and
brochure details of the rooflights to be used that shall be metal, flush and
conservation style;

Details of the bi-folding doors (brochure details will suffice);
o Details of the stone for the walling that shall be reclaimed from site or salvaged stone

Page 110


http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets

to match with a sample panel showing pointing detail;

Details of the new guttering/rainwater goods that should be metal and painted a dark
colour;

Details to include location and style of any external lighting proposed.

For Granary building (E)

A detailed photographic record is made of the timber-framed structure prior to the
commencement of works;

A schedule of repairs and methodology is provided to the Local Planning Authority
prior to the commencement of works;

Details of the proposed roof tile to be reclaimed clay tiles and new loft door;
Details of the cill plate replacement and how these works will be carried out.

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order to ensure the development is undertaken in an acceptable
manner and in the interests of preserving the character and appearance of the
curtilage listed building and its setting.

The repair works to the Granary Building (E) shall be carried out in situ and in
accordance with the approved schedule of repairs and methodology. The building
shall not be dismantled. The window in the north elevation shall be repaired/reglazed
and not replaced unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order to ensure the development is undertaken in an acceptable

manner and in the interests of preserving the character and appearance of the
curtilage listed building and its setting.

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



PL/2022/03968 & PL/2022/04157

W'ItSh're COUHCI| Berrybrook Farm, Street Lane,
' Sedgehill, SP7 91Q
s

O

Sweetwell
Farm

Rectory
Cottages

Burwood

N
Mount
leasant

Sedgehill
House

v,

Butterstakes
Dewdown House ‘
Copse © Crgivn Copyrigh@';d/[za\tat{ase RgDIs 202 Ordnance Survey
WY T00049056—|
v, I ’ /\ "
h [
N

386124E 127845N m
1:5,000 A

© Crown Copyright and Database Rights 2022 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100049050

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Planning Appeals and Updates
	7a APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2021/09778 - Station works, Tisbury
	PL.2021.09778 - Location Plan

	7b APPLICATION NUMBER: PL/2022/02766 - Land to the rear of Caynton Lawns, Alderbury
	PL.2022.02766 - Location - new
	PL.2022.02766 - Aerial Plan - new

	7c APPLICATION NUMBERs: PL/2022/03968 & PL/2022/04157 Berrybrook Farm, Sedgehill
	PL.2022.03968 & PL.2022.04157 - Location Plan


